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INDEX TO PETITIONERS’ APPENDIX

DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION LOCATION
Complaint (filed 12/17/2013) Vol. 1, 1-17
Declaration of Salvatore Morabito in Support of Snowshoe | Vol. 1, 18-21
Capital’s Motion to Dismiss for Lack of Personal
Jurisdiction (filed 05/12/2014)
Defendant Snowshoe Petroleum, Inc.’s Motion to Dismiss | Vol. 1, 22-30
Complaint for Lack of Personal Jurisdiction NRCP 12(b)(2)
(filed 05/12/2014)
JH, Inc., Jerry Herbst, and Berry Hinckley Industries | Vol. 1, 3143
Opposition to Motion to Dismiss (filed 05/29/2014)
Exhibits to Opposition to Motion to Dismiss
Exhibit Document Description
1 Affidavit of John P. Desmond (filed 05/29/2014) | Vol. 1, 4448
2 Fifth Amendment and Restatement of the Trust | Vol. 1, 49-88
Agreement for the Arcadia Living Trust (dated
09/30/2010)
3 Unanimous Written Consent of the Directors and | Vol. 1, 89-92
Shareholders of CWC (dated 09/28/2010)
4 Unanimous Written Consent of the Board of | Vol. 1, 93-102
Directors and Sole Shareholder of Superpumper
(dated 09/28/2010)
5 Plan of Merger of Consolidated Western | Vol. 1, 103—107
Corporation with and into Superpumper, Inc.
(dated 09/28/2010)
6 Articles of Merger of Consolidated Western | Vol. 1, 108-110
Corporation with and into Superpumper, Inc.
(dated 09/29/2010)
7 2009 Federal Income Tax Return for P. Morabito | Vol. 1, 111-153
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibits to Opposition to Motion to Dismiss (cont.)

8 May 21, 2014 printout from New York Secretary | Vol. 1, 154-156
of State

9 May 9, 2008 Letter from Garrett Gordon to John | Vol. 1, 157-158
Desmond

10 Shareholder Interest Purchase Agreement (dated | Vol. 1, 159-164
09/30/2010)

11 Relevant portions of the January 22, 2010 | Vol. 1, 165-176
Deposition of Edward Bayuk

13 Relevant portions of the January 11, 2010 | Vol. 1, 177-180
Deposition of Salvatore Morabito

14 October 1, 2010 Grant, Bargain and Sale Deed Vol. 1, 181-187

15 Order admitting Dennis Vacco (filed 02/16/2011) | Vol. 1, 188—190

JH, Inc., Jerry Herbst, and Berry Hinckley Industries, Errata
to Opposition to Motion to Dismiss (filed 05/30/2014)

Vol. 2, 191-194

Exhibit to Errata to Opposition to Motion to Dismiss

Exhibit

Document Description

12

Grant, Bargain and Sale Deed for APN: 040-620-
09, dated November 10, 2005

Vol. 2, 195-198

Answer to Complaint of P. Morabito, individually and as
trustee of the Arcadia Living Trust (filed 06/02/2014)

Vol. 2, 199-208

Defendant, Snowshow Petroleum, Inc.’s Reply in Support
of Motion to Dismiss Complaint for Lack of Personal
Jurisdiction NRCP 12(b)(2) (filed 06/06/2014)

Vol. 2, 209-216
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibit to Reply in Support of Motion to Dismiss
Complaint for Lack of Personal Jurisdiction NRCP
12(b)(2)

Exhibit Document Description

1 Declaration of Salvatore Morabito in Support of
Snowshow Petroleum, Inc.’s Reply in Support of
Motion to Dismiss Complaint for Lack of
Personal Jurisdiction (filed 06/06/2014)

Vol. 2,217-219

Defendant, Superpumper, Inc.’s Motion to Dismiss
Complaint for Lack of Personal Jurisdiction NRCP 12(b)(2)
(filed 06/19/2014)

Vol. 2, 220-231

Exhibit to Motion to Dismiss Complaint for Lack of
Personal Jurisdiction NRCP 12(b)(2)

Exhibit Document Description

1 Declaration of Salvatore Morabito in Support of
Superpumper, Inc.’s Motion to Dismiss for Lack
of Personal Jurisdiction (filed 06/19/2014)

Vol. 2,232-234

JH, Inc., Jerry Herbst, and Berry Hinckley Industries,
Opposition to Motion to Dismiss (filed 07/07/2014)

Vol. 2, 235-247

Exhibits to Opposition to Motion to Dismiss

Exhibit Document Description

1 Affidavit of Brian R. Irvine (filed 07/07/2014)

Vol. 2, 248252

2 Fifth Amendment and Restatement of the Trust

Agreement for the Arcadia Living Trust (dated
09/30/2010)

Vol. 2, 253-292

3 BHI Electronic Funds Transfers, January 1, 2006
to December 31, 2006

Vol. 2, 293-294
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibits to Opposition to Motion to Dismiss (cont.)

4 Legal and accounting fees paid by BHI on behalf | Vol. 2, 295-328
of Superpumper; JH78636-JH78639; JH78653-
JH78662; JH78703-JH78719

5 Unanimous Written Consent of the Directors and | Vol. 2, 329-332
Shareholders of CWC (dated 09/28/2010)

6 Unanimous Written Consent of the Board of | Vol. 2, 333-336
Directors and Sole Shareholders of Superpumper
(dated 09/28/2010)

7 Plan of Merger of Consolidated Western | Vol. 2, 337-341
Corporation with and into Superpumper, Inc.
(dated 09/28/2010)

8 Articles of Merger of Consolidated Western | Vol. 2, 342-344
Corporation with and into Superpumper, Inc.
(dated 09/29/2010)

9 2009 Federal Income Tax Return for P. Morabito | Vol. 2, 345-388

10 Relevant portions of the January 22, 2010 | Vol. 2, 389-400
Deposition of Edward Bayuk

11 Grant, Bargain and Sale Deed for APN: 040-620- | Vol. 2, 401-404
09, dated November 10, 2005

12 Relevant portions of the January 11, 2010 | Vol. 2, 405-408
Deposition of Salvatore Morabito

13 Printout of Arizona Corporation Commission | Vol. 2, 409414

corporate listing for Superpumper, Inc.

Defendant, Superpumper, Inc.’s Reply in Support of
Motion to Dismiss Complaint for Lack of Personal
Jurisdiction NRCP 12(b)(2) (filed 07/15/2014)

Vol. 3, 415421

Order Denying Motion to Dismiss as to Snowshoe
Petroleum, Inc.’s (filed 07/17/2014)

Vol. 3, 422431
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Notice of Entry of Order Denying Motion to Dismiss as to
Snowshoe Petroleum, Inc.’s (filed 07/17/2014)

Vol. 3, 432435

Exhibit to Notice of Entry of Order Denying Motion to
Dismiss as to Snowshoe Petroleum, Inc.’s

Exhibit Document Description

1 Order Denying Motion to Dismiss as to Snowshoe
Petroleum, Inc.’s

Vol. 3, 436446

Order Denying Superpumper, Inc.’s Motion to Dismiss
Complaint for Lack of Personal Jurisdiction NRCP 12(b)(2)
(filed 07/22/2014)

Vol. 3, 447-457

Notice of Entry of Order Denying Superpumper, Inc.’s
Motion to Dismiss Complaint for Lack of Personal
Jurisdiction NRCP 12(b)(2) (filed 07/22/2014)

Vol. 3, 458461

Exhibit to Notice of Entry of Order Denying
Superpumper, Inc.’s Motion to Dismiss Complaint

Exhibit Document Description

1 Order Denying Superpumper, Inc.’s Motion to
Dismiss Complaint for Lack of Personal
Jurisdiction NRCP 12(b)(2) (filed 07/22/2014)

Vol. 3, 462473

Answer to Complaint of Superpumper, Inc., and Snowshoe
Petroleum, Inc. (filed 07/28/2014)

Vol. 3, 474483

Answer to Complaint of Defendants, Edward Bayuk,
individually and as trustee of the Edward William Bayuk
Living Trust, and Salvatore Morabito (filed 09/29/2014)

Vol. 3, 484-494

Notice of Bankruptcy of Consolidated Nevada Corporation
and P. Morabito (filed 2/11/2015)

Vol. 3, 495-498
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Supplemental Notice of Bankruptcy of Consolidated
Nevada Corporation and P. Morabito (filed 02/17/2015)

Vol. 3, 499-502

Exhibits to Supplemental Notice of Bankruptcy of
Consolidated Nevada Corporation and P. Morabito

Exhibit Document Description
1 Involuntary Petition; Case No. BK-N-13-51236 | Vol. 3, 503-534
(filed 06/20/2013)
2 Involuntary Petition; Case No. BK-N-13-51237 | Vol. 3, 535-566
(06/20/2013)

3 Order for Relief Under Chapter 7; Case No. BK-
N-13-51236 (filed 12/17/2014)

Vol. 3, 567-570

4 Order for Relief Under Chapter 7; Case No. BK-
N-13-51237 (filed 12/17/2014)

Vol. 3, 571-574

Stipulation and Order to File Amended Complaint (filed
05/15/2015)

Vol. 4, 575-579

Exhibit to Stipulation and Order to File Amended
Complaint

Exhibit Document Description

1 First Amended Complaint

Vol. 4, 580-593

William A. Leonard, Trustee for the Bankruptcy Estate of
P. Morabito, First Amended Complaint (filed 05/15/2015)

Vol. 4, 594-607

Stipulation and Order to Substitute a Party Pursuant to
NRCP 17(a) (filed 05/15/2015)

Vol. 4, 608-611

Substitution of Counsel (filed 05/26/2015)

Vol. 4, 612-615

Defendants’ Answer to First Amended Complaint (filed
06/02/2015)

Vol. 4, 616623
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Amended Stipulation and Order to Substitute a Party
Pursuant to NRCP 17(a) (filed 06/16/2015)

Vol. 4, 624-627

Motion to Partially Quash, or, in the Alternative, for a
Protective Order Precluding Trustee from Seeking
Discovery Protected by the Attorney-Client Privilege (filed
03/10/2016)

Vol. 4, 628635

Exhibits to Motion to Partially Quash, or, in the
Alternative, for a Protective Order Precluding Trustee
from Seeking Discovery Protected by the Attorney-
Client Privilege

Exhibit Document Description

1 March 9, 2016 Letter from Lippes

Vol. 4, 636638

2 Affidavit of Frank C. Gilmore, Esq., (dated
03/10/2016)

Vol. 4, 639-641

3 Notice of Issuance of Subpoena to Dennis
Vacco (dated 01/29/2015)

Vol. 4, 642-656

4 March 10, 2016 email chain

Vol. 4, 657-659

Minutes of February 24, 2016 Pre-trial Conference (filed
03/17/2016)

Vol. 4, 660-661

Transcript of February 24, 2016 Pre-trial Conference

Vol. 4, 662725

Plaintiff’s (Leonard) Opposition to Defendants’ Motion to
Partially Quash, or, in the Alternative, for a Protective Order
Precluding Trustee from Seeking Discovery Protected by
the Attorney-Client Privilege (filed 03/25/2016)

Vol. 5, 726-746

Exhibits to Opposition to Motion to Partially Quash or,
in the Alternative, for a Protective Order Precluding
Trustee from Seeking Discovery Protected by the
Attorney-Client Privilege
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibit Document Description

1 Declaration of Teresa M. Pilatowicz in Support | Vol. 5, 747-750
of Plaintiff’s Opposition to Defendants’ Motion
to Partially Quash (filed 03/25/2016)

2 Application for Commission to take Deposition | Vol. 5, 751-759
of Dennis Vacco (filed 09/17/2015)

3 Commission to take Deposition of Dennis Vol. 5, 760-763
Vacco (filed 09/21/2015)

4 Subpoena/Subpoena Duces Tecum to Dennis Vol. 5, 764-776
Vacco (09/29/2015)

5 Notice of Issuance of Subpoena to Dennis Vol. 5, 777-791
Vacco (dated 09/29/2015)

6 Dennis C. Vacco and Lippes Mathias Wexler Vol. 5, 792-801
Friedman LLP, Response to Subpoena (dated
10/15/2015)

7 Condensed Transcript of October 21, 2015 Vol. 5, 802-851
Deposition of Dennis Vacco

8 Transcript of the Bankruptcy Court’s December | Vol. 5, 852-897
22,2015, oral ruling; Case No. BK-N-13-51237

9 Order Granting Motion to Compel Responses to | Vol. 5, 898-903
Deposition Questions; Case No. BK-N-13-
51237 (filed 02/03/2016)

10 Notice of Continued Deposition of Dennis Vol. 5, 904-907
Vacco (filed 02/18/2016)

11 Debtor’s Objection to Proposed Order Granting | Vol. 5, 908-925

Motion to Compel Responses to Deposition
Questions; Case No. BK-N-13-51237 (filed
01/22/2016)
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Reply in Support of Motion to Modify Subpoena, or, in the
Alternative, for a Protective Order Precluding Trustee from
Seeking Discovery Protected by the Attorney-Client
Privilege (filed 04/06/2016)

Vol. 6, 926-932

Plaintiff’s Motion to Compel Production of Documents
(filed 04/08/2016)

Vol. 6, 933-944

Exhibits to Plaintiff’s Motion to Compel Production of
Documents

Exhibit Document Description

1 Declaration of Teresa M. Pilatowicz in Support | Vol. 6, 945-948
of Plaintiff’s Motion to Compel (filed
04/08/2016)

2 Bill of Sale — 1254 Mary Fleming Circle (dated | Vol. 6, 949-953
10/01/2010)

3 Bill of Sale — 371 El Camino Del Mar (dated Vol. 6, 954-958
10/01/2010)

4 Bill of Sale — 370 Los Olivos (dated Vol. 6, 959-963
10/01/2010)

5 Personal financial statement of P. Morabito as Vol. 6, 964-965

of May 5, 2009

6 Plaintiff’s First Set of Requests for Production
of Documents to Edward Bayuk (dated
08/14/2015)

Vol. 6, 966977

7 Edward Bayuk’s Responses to Plaintiff’s First

Set of Requests for Production (dated
09/23/2014)

Vol. 6, 978-987

8 Plaintiff’s First Set of Requests for Production
of Documents to Edward Bayuk, as trustee of
the Edward William Bayuk Living Trust (dated
08/14/2015)

Vol. 6, 988997
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibits to Plaintiff’s Motion to Compel Production of

Documents (cont.)

9

Edward Bayuk, as trustee of the Edward
William Bayuk Living Trust’s Responses to
Plaintiff’s First Set of Requests for Production
(dated 09/23/2014)

Vol.

6, 998—-1007

10

Plaintiff’s Second Set of Requests for

Production of Documents to Edward Bayuk
(dated 01/29/2016)

Vol.

6, 1008-1015

11

Edward Bayuk’s Responses to Plaintiff’s
Second Set of Requests for Production (dated
03/08/2016)

Vol.

6, 1016-1020

12

Plaintiff’s Second Set of Requests for
Production of Documents to Edward Bayuk, as
trustee of the Edward William Bayuk Living
Trust (dated 01/29/2016)

Vol.

6, 1021-1028

13

Edward Bayuk, as trustee of the Edward
William Bayuk Living Trust’s Responses to
Plaintiff’s Second Set of Requests for
Production (dated 03/08/2016)

Vol.

6, 1029-1033

14

Correspondences between Teresa M. Pilatowicz,
Esq., and Frank Gilmore, Esq. (dated
03/25/2016)

Vol.

6, 1034-1037

Opposition to Plaintiff’s Motion to Compel Production of

Documents (filed 04/25/2016)

Vol.

7, 1038-1044

Reply in Support of Plaintiff’s Motion to Compel

Production of Documents (filed 05/09/2016)

Vol.

7, 1045-1057

Exhibits to Reply in Support of Plaintiff’s Motion to

Compel Production of Documents
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibit

Document Description

1

Declaration of Gabrielle A. Hamm, Esq., in
Support of Reply in Support of Plaintiff’s
Motion to Compel (filed 05/09/2016)

Vol.

7, 1058-1060

Amended Findings, of Fact and Conclusion of
Law in Support of Order Granting Motion for
Summary Judgment; Case No. BK-N-13-51237
(filed 12/22/2014)

Vol.

7,1061-1070

Order Compelling Deposition of P. Morabito
dated March 13, 2014, in Consolidated Nevada
Corp., et al v. JH. et al.; Case No. CV07-02764
(filed 03/13/2014)

Vol.

7, 1071-1074

Emergency Motion Under NRCP 27(e); Petition
for Writ of Prohibition, P. Morabito v. The
Second Judicial District Court of the State of
Nevada in and for the County of Washoe; Case
No. 65319 (filed 04/01/2014)

Vol.

7,1075-1104

Order Denying Petition for Writ of Prohibition;
Case No. 65319 (filed 04/18/2014)

Vol.

7, 1105-1108

Order Granting Summary Judgment; Case No.
BK-N-13-51237 (filed 12/17/2014)

Vol.

7, 1109-1112

Recommendation for Order RE: Defendants’ Motion to
Partially Quash, filed on March 10, 2016 (filed 06/13/2016)

Vol.

7,1113-1124

Confirming Recommendation Order from June 13, 2016

(filed 07/06/2016)

Vol.

7, 1125-1126

Recommendation for Order RE: Plaintiff’s Motion to
Compel Production of Documents, filed on April 8, 2016

(filed 09/01/2016)

Vol.

7,1127-1133
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION LOCATION
Confirming Recommendation Order from September 1, | Vol. 7, 1134-1135
2016 (filed 09/16/2016)
Plaintiff’s Application for Order to Show Cause Why | Vol. 8, 11361145
Defendant, Edward Bayuk Should Not Be Held in
Contempt of Court Order (filed 11/21/2016)
Exhibits to Plaintiff’s Application for Order to Show
Cause Why Defendant, Edward Bayuk Should Not Be
Held in Contempt of Court Order
Exhibit | Document Description
1 Order to Show Cause Why Defendant, Edward | Vol. 8, 1146-1148
Bayuk Should Not Be Held in Contempt of
Court Order (filed 11/21/2016)
2 Confirming Recommendation Order from Vol. 8, 1149-1151
September 1, 2016 (filed 09/16/2016)
3 Recommendation for Order RE: Plaintiff’s Vol. 8, 1152-1159
Motion to Compel Production of Documents,
filed on April 8, 2016 (filed 09/01/2016)
4 Plaintiff’s Motion to Compel Production of Vol. 8, 1160-1265
Documents (filed 04/08/2016)
5 Opposition to Plaintiff’s Motion to Compel Vol. 8, 12661273
Production of Documents (filed 04/25/2016)
6 Reply in Support of Plaintiff’s Motion to Vol. 8, 1274-1342
Compel Production of Documents (filed
05/09/2016)
7 Correspondences between Teresa M. Pilatowicz, | Vol. 8, 1343—-1346
Esq., and Frank Gilmore, Esq. (dated
09/22/2016)
8 Edward Bayuk’s Supplemental Responses to Vol. 8, 1347-1352

Plaintiff’s Second Set of Requests for
Production (dated 10/25/2016)
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Opposition to Plaintiff’s Application for Order to Show
Cause Why Defendant Should Not Be Held in Contempt of
Court Order (filed 12/19/2016

Vol. 9, 1353-1363

Exhibits to Opposition to Plaintiff’s Application for
Order to Show Cause Why Defendant Should Not Be
Held in Contempt of Court Order

Exhibit Document Description

1 Declaration of Edward Bayuk in Support of
Opposition to Plaintiff’s Application for Order to
Show Cause (filed 12/19/2016)

Vol. 9, 1364-1367

2 Declaration of Frank C. Gilmore, Esq., in Support
of Opposition to Plaintiff’s Application for Order
to Show Cause (filed 12/19/2016)

Vol. 9, 1368-1370

3 Redacted copy of the September 6, 2016,
correspondence of Frank C. Gilmore, Esq.

Vol. 9, 1371-1372

Order to Show Cause Why Defendant, Edward Bayuk
Should Not Be Held in Contempt of Court Order (filed
12/23/2016)

Vol. 9, 1373-1375

Response: (1) to Opposition to Application for Order to
Show Cause Why Defendant Should Not Be Held in
Contempt of Court Order and (2) in Support of Order to
Show Cause (filed 12/30/2016)

Vol. 9, 1376-1387

Minutes of January 19, 2017 Deposition of Edward Bayuk
in RE: insurance policies (filed 01/19/2017)

Vol. 9, 1388

Minutes of January 19, 2017 hearing on Order to Show
Cause (filed 01/30/2017)

Vol. 9, 1389

Motion to Quash Subpoena, or, in the Alternative, for a
Protective Order Precluding Trustee from Seeking
Discovery from Hodgson Russ LLP (filed 07/18/2017)

Vol. 9, 1390-1404
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION LOCATION
Exhibits to Motion to Quash Subpoena, or, in the
Alternative, for a Protective Order Precluding Trustee
from Seeking Discovery from Hodgson Russ LLP
Exhibit Document Description
1 Correspondence between Teresa M. Pilatowicz, | Vol. 9, 1405-1406
Esq., and Frank Gilmore, Esq., dated March 8,
2016
2 Correspondence between Teresa M. Pilatowicz, | Vol. 9, 14071414
Esq., and Frank Gilmore, Esq., dated March 8,
2016, with attached redlined discovery extension
stipulation
3 Jan. 3 — Jan. 4, 2017, email chain from Teresa M. | Vol. 9, 1415-1416
Pilatowicz, Esq., and Frank Gilmore, Esq.
4 Declaration of Frank C. Gilmore, Esq., in Support | Vol. 9, 1417-1420
of Motion to Quash (filed 07/18/2017)
5 January 24, 2017 email from Teresa M. | Vol. 9, 1421-1422
Pilatowicz, Esq.,
6 Jones Vargas letter to HR and P. Morabito, dated | Vol. 9, 1423—-1425
August 16, 2010
7 Excerpted Transcript of July 26, 2011 Deposition | Vol. 9, 14261431
of Sujata Yalamanchili, Esq.
8 Letter dated June 17, 2011, from Hodgson Russ | Vol. 9, 14321434
(“HR”) to John Desmond and Brian Irvine on
Morabito related issues
9 August 9, 2013, transmitted letter to HR Vol. 9, 1435-1436
10 Excerpted Transcript of July 23, 2014 Deposition | Vol. 9, 1437-1441
of P. Morabito
11 Lippes Mathias Wexler Friedman LLP, April 3, | Vol. 9, 1442—-1444

2015 letter
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibits to Motion to Quash Subpoena (cont.)

12 Lippes Mathias Wexler Friedman LLP, October
20, 2010 letter RE: Balance forward as of bill
dated 09/19/2010 and 09/16/2010

Vol. 9, 1445-1454

13 Excerpted Transcript of June 25, 2015 Deposition
of 341 Meeting of Creditors

Vol. 9, 1455-1460

(1) Opposition to Motion to Quash Subpoena, or, in the
Alternative, for a Protective Order Precluding Trustee from
Seeking Discovery from Hodgson Russ LLP; and
(2) Countermotion for Sanctions and to Compel Resetting
of 30(b)(3) Deposition of Hodgson Russ LLP (filed
07/24/2017)

Vol. 10, 1461-1485

Exhibits to (1) Opposition to Motion to Quash
Subpoena, or, in the Alternative, for a Protective Order
Precluding Trustee from Seeking Discovery from
Hodgson Russ LLP; and (2) Countermotion for
Sanctions and to Compel Resetting of 30(b)(3)
Deposition of Hodgson Russ LLP

Exhibit Document Description

A Declaration of Teresa M. Pilatowicz, Esq., in
Support of (1) Opposition to Motion to Quash
Subpoena, or, in the Alternative, for a Protective
Order Precluding Trustee from Seeking
Discovery from Hodgson Russ LLP (filed
07/24/2017)

Vol. 10, 14861494

A-1 Defendants’ NRCP Disclosure of Witnesses and
Documents (dated 12/01/2014)

Vol. 10, 1495-1598

A-2 | Order Granting Motion to Compel Responses to
Deposition Questions; Case No. BK-N-13-51237
(filed 02/03/2016)

Vol. 10, 1599-1604
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION LOCATION
Exhibits to (1) Opposition to Motion to Quash
Subpoena; and (2) Countermotion for Sanctions (cont.)

A-3 | Recommendation for Order RE: Defendants’| Vol. 10, 1605-1617
Motion to Partially Quash, filed on March 10,
2016 (filed 06/13/2016)

A-4 | Confirming Recommendation Order from | Vol. 10, 16181620
September 1, 2016 (filed 09/16/2016)

A-5 | Subpoena — Civil (dated 01/03/2017) Vol. 10, 1621-1634

A-6 | Notice of Deposition of Person Most| Vol. 10, 1635-1639
Knowledgeable of Hodgson Russ LLP (filed
01/03/2017)

A-7 | January 25, 2017 Letter to Hodgson Russ LLP Vol. 10, 1640-1649

A-8 | Stipulation Regarding Continued Discovery | Vol. 10, 1650-1659
Dates (Sixth Request) (filed 01/30/2017)

A-9 | Stipulation Regarding Continued Discovery | Vol. 10, 1660—1669
Dates (Seventh Request) (filed 05/25/2017)

A-10 | Defendants’ Sixteenth Supplement to NRCP | Vol. 10, 1670-1682
Disclosure of Witnesses and Documents (dated
05/03/2017)

A-11 | Rough Draft Transcript of Garry M. Graber, | Vol. 10, 1683—-1719
Dated July 12, 2017 (Job Number 394849)

A-12 | Sept. 15-Sept. 23, 2010 emails by and between | Vol. 10, 1720-1723

Hodgson Russ LLP and Other Parties

Reply in Support of Motion to Quash Subpoena, or, in the
Alternative, for a Protective Order Precluding Trustee from

Seeking Discovery from Hodgson Russ LLP,

and

Opposition to Motion for Sanctions (filed 08/03/2017)

Vol.

11, 17241734
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Reply in Support of Countermotion for Sanctions and to
Compel Resetting of 30(b)(6) Deposition of Hodgson Russ
LLP (filed 08/09/2017)

Vol. 11, 1735-1740

Minutes of August 10, 2017 hearing on Motion to Quash
Subpoena, or, in the Alternative, for a Protective Order
Precluding Trustee from Seeking Discovery from Hodgson
Russ LLP, and Opposition to Motion for Sanctions (filed
08/11/2017)

Vol. 11, 1741-1742

Recommendation for Order RE: Defendants’ Motion to
Quash Subpoena, or, in the Alternative, for a Protective
Order Precluding Trustee from Seeking Discovery from
Hodgson Russ LLP, filed on July 18, 2017 (filed
08/17/2017)

Vol. 11, 1743-1753

Motion for Partial Summary Judgment (filed 08/17/2017)

Vol. 11, 1754-1796

Statement of Undisputed Facts in Support of Motion for
Partial Summary Judgment (filed 08/17/2017)

Vol. 11, 1797-1825

Exhibits to Statement of Undisputed Facts in Support of
Motion for Partial Summary Judgment

Exhibit Document Description

1 Declaration of Timothy P. Herbst in Support of
Separate Statement of Undisputed Facts in
Support of Motion for Partial Summary Judgment

Vol. 12, 1826-1829

2 Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and
Judgment in Consolidated Nevada Corp., et al v.
JH. et al., Case No. CV07-02764 (filed
10/12/2010)

Vol. 12, 1830-1846

3 Judgment in Consolidated Nevada Corp., et al v.
JH. et al; Case No. CV07-02764 (filed
08/23/2011)

Vol. 12, 1847-1849
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION LOCATION
Exhibits to Statement of Undisputed Facts (cont.)

4 Excerpted Transcript of July 12, 2017 Deposition | Vol. 12, 1850-1852
of Garry M. Graber

5 September 15, 2015 email from Yalamanchili RE: | Vol. 12, 1853—-1854
Follow Up Thoughts

6 September 23, 2010 email between Garry M. | Vol. 12, 1855-1857
Graber and P. Morabito

7 September 20, 2010 email between Yalamanchili | Vol. 12, 1858-1861
and Eileen Crotty RE: Morabito Wire

8 September 20, 2010 email between Yalamanchili | Vol. 12, 1862—1863
and Garry M. Graber RE: All Mortgage Balances
as 0 9/20/2010

9 September 20, 2010 email from Garry M. Graber | Vol. 12, 1864-1867
RE: Call

10 September 20, 2010 email from P. Morabito to | Vol. 12, 1868—1870
Dennis and Yalamanchili RE: Attorney client
privileged communication

11 September 20, 2010 email string RE: Attorney | Vol. 12, 1871-1875
client privileged communication

12 Appraisal of Real Property: 370 Los Olivos, | Vol. 12, 1876-1903
Laguna Beach, CA, as of Sept. 24, 2010

13 Excerpted Transcript of March 21, 2016 | Vol. 12, 1904-1919
Deposition of P. Morabito

14 P. Morabito Redacted Investment and Bank | Vol. 12, 1920-1922
Report from Sept. 1 to Sept. 30, 2010

15 Excerpted Transcript of June 25, 2015 Deposition | Vol. 12, 1923-1927
of 341 Meeting of Creditors

16 Excerpted Transcript of December 5, 2015 | Vol. 12, 1928-1952

Deposition of P. Morabito
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibits to Statement of Undisputed Facts (cont.)

17

Purchase and Sale Agreement between Arcadia
Trust and Bayuk Trust entered effective as of
Sept. 27,2010

Vol.

12, 1953-1961

18

First Amendment to Purchase and Sale
Agreement between Arcadia Trust and Bayuk
Trust entered effective as of Sept. 28, 2010

Vol.

12, 1962-1964

19

Appraisal Report providing market value estimate
of real property located at 8355 Panorama Drive,
Reno, NV as of Dec. 7, 2011

Vol.

12, 1965-1995

20

An Appraisal of a vacant .977+ Acre Parcel of
Industrial Land Located at 49 Clayton Place West
of the Pyramid Highway (State Route 445)
Sparks, Washoe County, Nevada and a single-
family residence located at 8355 Panorama Drive
Reno, Washoe County, Nevada 89511 as of
October 1, 2010 a retrospective date

Vol.

13, 1996-2073

21

APN: 040-620-09 Declaration of Value (dated
12/31/2012)

Vol.

14,2074-2075

22

Sellers Closing Statement for real property
located at 8355 Panorama Drive, Reno, NV 89511

Vol.

14,2076-2077

23

Bill of Sale for real property located at 8355
Panorama Drive, Reno, NV 89511

Vol.

14, 2078-2082

24

Operating Agreement of Baruk Properties LLC

Vol.

14,2083-2093

25

Edward Bayuk, as trustee of the Edward William
Bayuk Living Trust’s Answer to Plaintiff’s First
Set of Interrogatories (dated 09/14/2014)

Vol.

14,2094-2104

26

Summary Appraisal Report of real property
located at 1461 Glenneyre Street, Laguna Beach,
CA 92651, as of Sept. 25, 2010

Vol.

14,2105-2155
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibits to Statement of Undisputed Facts (cont.)

27

Appraisal of Real Property as of Sept. 23, 2010:
1254 Mary Fleming Circle, Palm Springs, CA
92262

Vol. 15, 21562185

28

Appraisal of Real Property as of Sept. 23, 2010:
1254 Mary Fleming Circle, Palm Springs, CA
92262

Vol. 15, 21862216

29

Membership Interest Transfer Agreement
between Arcadia Trust and Bayuk Trust entered
effective as of Oct. 1, 2010

Vol. 15, 2217-2224

30

PROMISSORY NOTE [Edward William Bayuk
Living Trust (“Borrower”) promises to pay
Arcadia Living Trust (“Lender”) the principal
sum of $1,617,050.00, plus applicable interest]
(dated 10/01/2010)

Vol. 15, 2225-2228

31

Certificate of Merger dated Oct. 4, 2010

Vol. 15, 2229-2230

32

Articles of Merger Document No. 20100746864-
78 (recorded date 10/04/2010)

Vol. 15, 2231-2241

33

Excerpted Transcript of September 28, 2015
Deposition of Edward William Bayuk

Vol. 15, 2242-2256

34

Grant Deed for real property 1254 Mary Fleming
Circle, Palm Springs, CA 92262; APN: 507-520-
015 (recorded 11/04/2010)

Vol. 15, 22572258

35

General Conveyance made as of Oct. 31, 2010
between Woodland Heights Limited (“Vendor”)
and Arcadia Living Trust (“Purchaser”)

Vol. 15, 2259-2265

36

Appraisal of Real Property as of Sept. 24, 2010:
371 El Camino Del Mar, Laguna Beach, CA
92651

Vol. 15, 22662292
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibits to Statement of Undisputed Facts (cont.)

37 Excerpted Transcript of December 6, 2016 | Vol. 15, 2293-2295
Deposition of P. Morabito

38 Page intentionally left blank Vol. 15, 22962297

39 Ledger of Edward Bayuk to P. Morabito Vol. 15, 2298-2300

40 Loan Calculator: Payment Amount (Standard | Vol. 15,2301-2304
Loan Amortization)

41 Payment Schedule of Edward Bayuk Note in | Vol. 15, 2305-2308
Favor of P. Morabito

42 November 10, 2011 email from Vacco RE: Baruk | Vol. 15, 2309-2312
Properties, LLC/P. Morabito/Bank of America,
N.A.

43 May 23, 2012 email from Vacco to Steve Peek | Vol. 15, 2313-2319
RE: Formal Settlement Proposal to resolve the
Morabito matter

44 Excerpted Transcript of March 12, 2015 | Vol. 15,2320-2326
Deposition of 341 Meeting of Creditors

45 Shareholder Interest Purchase Agreement | Vol. 15, 2327-2332
between P. Morabito and Snowshoe Petroleum,
Inc. (dated 09/30/2010)

46 P. Morabito Statement of Assets & Liabilities as | Vol. 15, 2333-2334
of May 5, 2009

47 March 10, 2010 email from Naz Afshar, CPA to | Vol. 15, 2335-2337
Darren Takemoto, CPA RE: Current Personal
Financial Statement

48 March 10, 2010 email from P. Morabito to Jon | Vol. 15, 2338-2339

RE: ExxonMobil CIM for Florida and associated
maps
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibits to Statement of Undisputed Facts (cont.)

49

March 20, 2010 email from P. Morabito to Vacco
RE: proceed with placing binding bid on June
22nd with ExxonMobil

Vol. 15, 2340-2341

50

P. Morabito Statement of Assets & Liabilities as
of May 30, 2010

Vol. 15, 23422343

51

June 28, 2010 email from P. Morabito to George
R. Garner RE: ExxonMobil Chicago Market
Business Plan Review

Vol. 15, 2344-2345

52

Plan of Merger of Consolidated Western Corp.
with and into Superpumper, Inc. (dated
09/28/2010)

Vol. 15, 23462364

53

Page intentionally left blank

Vol. 15, 2365-2366

54

BBVA Compass Proposed Request on behalf of
Superpumper, Inc. (dated 12/15/2010)

Vol. 15, 2367-2397

55

Business Valuation Agreement between Matrix
Capital Markets Group, Inc. and Superpumper,
Inc. (dated 09/30/2010)

Vol. 15, 2398-2434

56

Expert report of James L. McGovern, CPA/CFF,
CVA (dated 01/25/2016)

Vol. 16, 2435-2509

57

June 18, 2014 email from Sam Morabito to
Michael Vanek RE: SPI Analysis

Vol. 17,2510-2511

58

Declaration of P. Morabito in Support of
Opposition to Motion of JH, Inc., Jerry Herbst,
and Berry-Hinckley Industries for Order
Prohibiting Debtor from Using, Acquiring, or
Disposing of or Transferring Assets Pursuant to
11 US.C. §§ 105 and 303(f) Pending
Appointment of Trustee; Case No. BK-N-13-
51237 (filed 07/01/2013)

Vol. 17, 25122516
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibits to Statement of Undisputed Facts (cont.)

59

State of California Secretary of State Limited
Liability Company — Snowshoe Properties, LLC;
File No. 201027310002 (filed 09/29/2010)

Vol. 17, 25172518

60

PROMISSORY NOTE [Snowshoe Petroleum
(“Maker”) promises to pay P. Morabito
(“Holder) the principal sum of $1,462,213.00]
(dated 11/01/2010)

Vol. 17, 2519-2529

61

PROMISSORY NOTE [Superpumper, Inc.
(“Maker”) promises to pay Compass Bank (the
“Bank” and/or “Holder”) the principal sum of
$3,000,000.00] (dated 08/13/2010)

Vol. 17, 2530-2538

62

Excerpted Transcript of October 21, 2015
Deposition of Salvatore R. Morabito

Vol. 17, 2539-2541

63

Page intentionally left blank

Vol. 17, 25422543

64

Edward Bayuk’s Answers to Plaintiff’s First Set
of Interrogatories (dated 09/14/2014)

Vol. 17, 25442557

65

October 12, 2012 email from Stan Bernstein to P.
Morabito RE: 2011 return

Vol. 17, 2558-2559

66

Page intentionally left blank

Vol. 17, 2560-2561

67

Excerpted Transcript of October 20, 2015
Deposition of Dennis C. Vacco

Vol. 17, 2562-2564

68

Snowshoe Petroleum, Inc.’s letter of intent to set
out the framework of the contemplated
transaction between: Snowshoe Petroleum, Inc.;
David Dwelle, LP; Eclipse Investments, LP;
Speedy Investments; and TAD  Limited
Partnership (dated 04/21/2011)

Vol. 17, 25652572
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION LOCATION
Exhibits to Statement of Undisputed Facts (cont.)

69 Excerpted Transcript of July 10, 2017 Deposition | Vol. 17, 2573-2579
of Dennis C. Vacco

70 April 15, 2011 email from P. Morabito to | Vol. 17, 2580-2582
Christian Lovelace; Gregory Ivancic; Vacco RE:
$65 million loan offer from Cerberus

71 Email from Vacco to P. Morabito RE: $2 million | Vol. 17, 2583-2584
second mortgage on the Reno house

72 Email from Vacco to P. Morabito RE: Tim Haves | Vol. 17, 2585-2586

73 Settlement ~ Agreement, Loan  Agreement | Vol. 17, 2587-2595
Modification & Release dated as of Sept. 7, 2012,
entered into by Bank of America and P. Morabito

74 Page intentionally left blank Vol. 17, 25962597

75 February 10, 2012 email from Vacco to Paul | Vol. 17, 2598-2602
Wells and Timothy Haves RE: 1461 Glenneyre
Street, Laguna Beach — Sale

76 May 8, 2012 email from P. Morabito to Vacco | Vol. 17, 2603-2604
RE: Proceed with the corporate set-up with Ray,
Edward and P. Morabito

77 September 4, 2012 email from Vacco to Edward | Vol. 17, 2605-2606
Bayuk RE: Second Deed of Trust documents

78 September 18, 2012 email from P. Morabito to | Vol. 17, 2607-2611
Edward Bayuk RE: Deed of Trust

79 October 3, 2012 email from Vacco to P. Morabito | Vol. 17, 2612-2614
RE: Term Sheet on both real estate deal and
option

80 March 14, 2013 email from P. Morabito to Vacco | Vol. 17, 2615-2616
RE: BHI Hinckley

81 Page intentionally left blank Vol. 17,2617-2618
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION LOCATION
Exhibits to Statement of Undisputed Facts (cont.)

82 November 11, 2011 email from Vacco to P.| Vol. 17,2619-2620
Morabito RE: Trevor’s commitment to sign

83 November 28, 2011 email string RE: Wiring | Vol. 17, 2621-2623
$560,000 to Lippes Mathias

84 Page intentionally left blank Vol. 17, 2624-2625

85 Page intentionally left blank Vol. 17, 26262627

86 Order for Relief Under Chapter 7; Case No. BK- | Vol. 17, 2628-2634
N-13-51236 (filed 12/22/2014)

87 Report of Undisputed Election (11 U.S.C § 702); | Vol. 17, 2635-2637
Case No. BK-N-13-51237 (filed 01/23/2015)

88 Amended Stipulation and Order to Substitute a | Vol. 17, 2638-2642
Party to NRCP 17(a) (filed 06/11/2015)

89 Membership Interest Purchase Agreement, | Vol. 17, 2643—-2648
entered into as of Oct. 6, 2010 between P.
Morabito and Edward Bayuk

90 Complaint; Case No. BK-N-13-51237 (filed | Vol. 17, 2649-2686
10/15/2015)

91 Fifth Amendment and Restatement of the Trust | Vol. 17, 2687-2726

Agreement for the Arcadia Living Trust (dated
09/30/2010)

Objection to Recommendation for Order filed August 17,
2017 (filed 08/28/2017)

Vol.

18, 2727-2734

Exhibit to Objection to Recommendation for Order

Exhibit

Document Description

1

Plaintiff’s counsel’s Jan. 24, 2017, email
memorializing the discovery dispute agreement

Vol.

18,2735-2736
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Opposition to Objection to Recommendation for Order filed
August 17, 2017 (filed 09/05/2017)

Vol. 18, 2737-2748

Exhibit to Opposition to Objection to Recommendation
for Order

Exhibit Document Description

A Declaration of Teresa M. Pilatowicz, Esq., in
Support of Opposition to Objection to
Recommendation for Order (filed 09/05/2017)

Vol. 18, 2749-2752

Reply to Opposition to Objection to Recommendation for
Order filed August 17, 2017 (dated 09/15/2017)

Vol. 18, 27532758

Defendants’ Opposition to Plaintiff’s Motion for Partial
Summary Judgment (filed 09/22/2017)

Vol. 18, 27592774

Defendants’ Separate Statement of Disputed Facts in
Support of Opposition to Plaintiff’s Motion for Partial
Summary Judgment (filed 09/22/2017)

Vol. 18, 2775-2790

Exhibits to Defendants’ Separate Statement of Disputed
Facts in Support of Opposition to Plaintiff’s Motion for
Partial Summary Judgment

Exhibit Document Description

1 Judgment in Consolidated Nevada Corp., et al v.
JH. et al; Case No. CV07-02764 (filed
08/23/2011)

Vol. 18, 27912793

2 Excerpted Transcript of October 20, 2015
Deposition of Dennis C. Vacco

Vol. 18, 27942810

3 Order Denying Motion to Dismiss Involuntary
Chapter 7 Petition and Suspending Proceedings
Pursuant to 11 U.S.C §305(a)(1); Case No. BK-
N-13-51237 (filed 12/17/2013)

Vol. 18, 2811-2814
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION LOCATION
Exhibits to Defendants’ Separate Statement of Disputed
Facts (cont.)

4 Excerpted Transcript of March 21, 2016 | Vol. 18, 2815-2826
Deposition of P. Morabito

5 Excerpted Transcript of September 28, 2015 | Vol. 18, 2827-2857
Deposition of Edward William Bayuk

6 Appraisal Vol. 18, 2858-2859

7 Budget Summary as of Jan. 7, 2016 Vol. 18, 2860-2862

8 Excerpted Transcript of March 24, 2016 | Vol. 18, 28632871
Deposition of Dennis Banks

9 Excerpted Transcript of March 22, 2016 | Vol. 18, 2872-2879
Deposition of Michael Sewitz

10 Excerpted Transcript of April 27, 2011 | Vol. 18, 28802883
Deposition of Darryl Noble

11 Copies of cancelled checks from Edward Bayuk | Vol. 18, 2884-2892
made payable to P. Morabito

12 CBRE Appraisal of 14th Street Card Lock | Vol. 18, 2893-2906
Facility (dated 02/26/2010)

13 Bank of America wire transfer from P. Morabito | Vol. 18, 2907-2908
to Salvatore Morabito in the amount of
$146,127.00; and a wire transfer from P.
Morabito to Lippes for $25.00 (date 10/01/2010)

14 Excerpted Transcript of October 21, 2015]| Vol. 18, 2909-2918
Deposition of Christian Mark Lovelace

15 June 18, 2014 email from Sam Morabito to | Vol. 18, 2919-2920
Michael Vanek RE: Analysis of the Superpumper
transaction in 2010

16 Excerpted Transcript of October 21, 2015 | Vol. 18,2921-2929

Deposition of Salvatore R. Morabito
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibits to Defendants’ Separate Statement of Disputed
Facts (cont.)

17

PROMISSORY NOTE [Snowshoe Petroleum
(“Maker”) promises to pay P. Morabito
(“Holder”) the principal sum of $1,462,213.00]
(dated 11/01/2010)

Vol.

18,2930-2932

18

TERM NOTE [P. Morabito (“Borrower”)
promises to pay Consolidated Western Corp.
(“Lender”) the principal sum of $939,000.00, plus
interest] (dated 09/01/2010)

Vol.

18,2933-2934

19

SUCCESSOR PROMISSORY NOTE
[Snowshoe Petroleum (“Maker”) promises to pay
P. Morabito (“Holder”) the principal sum of
$492,937.30, plus interest] (dated 02/01/2011)

Vol.

18, 2935-2937

20

Edward Bayuk’s wire transfer to Lippes in the
amount of $517,547.20 (dated 09/29/2010)

Vol.

18, 2938-2940

21

Salvatore Morabito Bank of Montreal September
2011 Wire Transfer

Vol.

18, 2941-2942

22

Declaration of Salvatore Morabito (dated
09/21/2017)

Vol.

18, 2943-2944

23

Edward Bayuk bank wire transfer to
Superpumper, Inc., in the amount of $659,000.00
(dated 09/30/2010)

Vol.

18, 29452947

24

Edward Bayuk checking account statements
between 2010 and 2011 funding the company
with transfers totaling $500,000

Vol.

18,2948-2953

25

Salvatore Morabito’s wire transfer statement
between 2010 and 2011, funding the company
with $750,000

Vol.

18, 2954-2957

26

Payment Schedule of Edward Bayuk Note in
Favor of P. Morabito

Vol.

18,2958-2961
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibits to Defendants’ Separate Statement of Disputed
Facts (cont.)

27 September 15, 2010 email from Vacco to
Yalamanchili and P. Morabito RE: Follow Up
Thoughts

Vol. 18, 2962-2964

Reply in Support of Motion for Partial Summary Judgment
(dated 10/10/2017)

Vol. 19, 2965-2973

Order Regarding Discovery Commissioner’s
Recommendation for Order dated August 17, 2017 (filed
12/07/2017)

Vol. 19, 2974-2981

Order Denying Motion for Partial Summary Judgment
(filed 12/11/2017)

Vol. 19, 29822997

Defendants’ Motions in Limine (filed 09/12/2018)

Vol. 19, 2998-3006

Exhibits to Defendants’ Motions in Limine

Exhibit Document Description

1 Plaintiff’s Second Supplement to Amended
Disclosures Pursuant to NRCP 16.1(A)(1) (dated
04/28/2016)

Vol. 19,3007-3016

2 Excerpted Transcript of March 25, 2016
Deposition of William A. Leonard

Vol. 19, 3017-3023

3 Plaintiff, Jerry Herbst’s Responses to Defendant
Snowshoe Petroleum, Inc.’s Set of Interrogatories
(dated 02/11/2015); and Plaintiff, Jerry Herbst’s
Responses to Defendant, Salvatore Morabito’s
Set of Interrogatories (dated 02/12/2015)

Vol. 19, 3024-3044

Motion in Limine to Exclude Testimony of Jan Friederich
(filed 09/20/2018)

Vol. 19, 3045-3056
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibits to Motion in Limine to Exclude Testimony of
Jan Friederich

Exhibit Document Description
1 Defendants’ Rebuttal Expert Witness Disclosure | Vol. 19, 3057-3071
(dated 02/29/2016)
2 Condensed Transcript of March 29, 2016 | Vol. 19, 3072-3086

Deposition of Jan Friederich

Opposition to Defendants” Motions in Limine (filed
09/28/2018)

Vol. 19, 3087-3102

Exhibits to Opposition to Defendants’ Motions in

Limine
Exhibit Document Description
A Declaration of Teresa M. Pilatowicz, Esq. in| Vol. 19,3103-3107
Support of Opposition to Defendants’ Motions in
Limine (filed 09/28/2018)
A-1 | Plaintiff’s February 19, 2016, Amended | Vol. 19,3108-3115
Disclosures Pursuant to NRCP 16.1(A)(1)
A-2 | Plaintiff’s January 26, 2016, Expert Witnesses | Vol. 19, 3116-3122
Disclosures (without exhibits)
A-3 | Defendants’ January 26, 2016, and February 29, | Vol. 19, 3123-3131
2016, Expert Witness Disclosures (without
exhibits)
A-4 | Plaintiff’s August 17, 2017, Motion for Partial | Vol. 19, 3132-3175
Summary Judgment (without exhibits)
A-5 | Plaintiff’s August 17, 2017, Statement of | Vol. 19,3176-3205

Undisputed Facts in Support of his Motion for
Partial Summary Judgment (without exhibits)

Defendants’ Reply in Support of Motions in Limine (filed
10/08/2018)

Vol. 20, 3206-3217
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibit to Defendants’ Reply in Support of Motions in
Limine

Exhibit Document Description

1 Chapter 7 Trustee, William A. Leonard’s
Responses to Defendants’ First Set of
Interrogatories (dated 05/28/2015)

Vol. 20, 3218-3236

Defendants’ Opposition to Plaintiff’s Motions in Limine to
Exclude the Testimony of Jan Friederich (filed 10/08/2018)

Vol. 20, 3237-3250

Exhibits to Defendants’ Opposition to Plaintiff’s
Motions in Limine to Exclude the Testimony of Jan
Friederich

Exhibit Document Description

1 Excerpt of Matrix Report (dated 10/13/2010)

Vol. 20, 3251-3255

2 Defendants’ Rebuttal Expert Witness Disclosure
(dated 02/29/2016)

Vol. 20, 3256-3270

3 November 9, 2009 email from P. Morabito to
Daniel Fletcher; Jim Benbrook; Don Whitehead;
Sam Morabito, etc. RE: Jan Friederich entered
consulting agreement with Superpumper

Vol. 20, 3271-3272

4 Excerpted Transcript of March 29, 2016
Deposition of Jan Friederich

Vol. 20, 3273-3296

Defendants’ Objections to Plaintiff’s Pretrial Disclosures
(filed 10/12/2018)

Vol. 20, 3297-3299

Objections to Defendants’ Pretrial Disclosures (filed
10/12/2018)

Vol. 20, 3300-3303

Reply to Defendants’ Opposition to Plaintiff’s Motion in
Limine to Exclude the Testimony of Jan Friederich (filed
10/12/2018)

Vol. 20, 33043311
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Minutes of September 11, 2018, Pre-trial Conference (filed
10/19/2018)

Vol. 20, 3312

Stipulated Facts (filed 10/29/2018)

Vol. 20, 3313-3321

Defendants’ Points and Authorities RE: Objection to
Admission of Documents in Conjunction with the

Depositions of P. Morabito and Dennis Vacco (filed
10/30/2018)

Vol. 20, 3322-3325

Plaintiff’s Points and Authorities Regarding Authenticity
and Hearsay Issues (filed 10/31/2018)

Vol. 20, 3326-3334

Clerk’s Trial Exhibit List (filed 02/28/2019)

Vol. 21, 3335-3413

Exhibits to Clerk’s Trial Exhibit List

Exhibit Document Description

1 Certified copy of the Transcript of September 13,
2010 Judge’s Ruling; Case No. CV07-02764

Vol. 21, 34143438

2 Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and | Vol. 21, 3439-3454
Judgment; Case No. CV07-02764 (filed
10/12/2010)

3 Judgment; Case No. CV07-0767 (filed | Vol. 21, 3455-3456
08/23/2011)

4 Confession of Judgment; Case No. CV07-02764 | Vol. 21, 34573481
(filed 06/18/2013)

5 November 30, 2011 Settlement Agreement and
Mutual Release

Vol. 22, 3482-3613

6 March 1, 2013 Forbearance Agreement

Vol. 22, 3614-3622
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibits to Clerk’s Trial Exhibit List (cont.)

8

Order Denying Motion to Dismiss Involuntary
Chapter 7 Petition and Suspending Proceedings,
Case 13-51237. ECF No. 94, (filed 12/17/2013)

Vol.

22,3623-3625

19

Report of Undisputed Election— Appointment of
Trustee, Case No. 13-51237, ECF No. 220

Vol.

22,3626-3627

20

Stipulation and Order to Substitute a Party
Pursuant to NRCP 17(a), Case No. CV13-02663,
May 15, 2015

Vol.

22,3628-3632

21

Non-Dischargeable Judgment Regarding
Plaintiff’s First and Second Causes of Action,
Case No. 15-05019-GWZ, ECF No. 123, April
30,2018

Vol.

22,3633-3634

22

Memorandum & Decision; Case No. 15-05019-
GWZ, ECF No. 124, April 30, 2018

Vol.

22,3635-3654

23

Amended Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law
in Support of Judgment Regarding Plaintiff’s
First and Second Causes of Action; Case 15-
05019-GWZ, ECF No. 122, April 30, 2018

Vol.

22,3655-3679

25

September 15, 2010 email from Yalamanchili to
Vacco and P. Morabito RE: Follow Up Thoughts

Vol.

22, 3680-3681

26

September 18, 2010 email from P. Morabito to
Vacco

Vol.

22, 3682-3683

27

September 20, 2010 email from Vacco to P.
Morabito RE: Spirit

Vol.

22,3684-3684

28

September 20, 2010 email between Yalamanchili
and Crotty RE: Morabito -Wire

Vol.

22,3685-3687

29

September 20, 2010 email from Yalamanchili to
Graber RE: Attorney Client Privileged
Communication

Vol.

22,3688-3689
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibits to Clerk’s Trial Exhibit List (cont.)

30

September 21, 2010 email from P. Morabito to
Vacco and Cross RE: Attorney Client Privileged
Communication

Vol.

22,3690-3692

31

September 23, 2010 email chain between Graber
and P. Morabito RE: Change of Primary
Residence from Reno to Laguna Beach

Vol.

22,3693-3694

32

September 23, 2010 email from Yalamanchili to
Graber RE: Change of Primary Residence from
Reno to Laguna Beach

Vol.

22,3695-3696

33

September 24, 2010 email from P. Morabito to
Vacco RE: Superpumper, Inc.

Vol.

22,3697-3697

34

September 26, 2010 email from Vacco to P.
Morabito RE: Judgment for a fixed debt

Vol.

22,3698-3698

35

September 27, 2010 email from P. Morabito to
Vacco RE: First Amendment to Residential Lease
executed 9/27/2010

Vol.

22,3699-3701

36

November 7, 2012 emails between Vacco, P.
Morabito, C. Lovelace RE: Attorney Client
Privileged Communication

Vol.

22,3702-3703

37

Morabito BMO Bank Statement — September
2010

Vol.

22,3704-3710

38

Lippes Mathias Trust Ledger History

Vol.

23,3711-3716

39

Fifth Amendment & Restatement of the Trust
Agreement for the Arcadia Living Trust dated
September 30, 2010

Vol.

23, 3717-3755

42

P. Morabito Statement of Assets & Liabilities as
of May 5, 2009

Vol.

23, 37563756
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Exhibits to Clerk’s Trial Exhibit List (cont.)
43 March 10, 2010 email chain between Afshar and | Vol. 23, 3757-3758
Takemoto RE: Current Personal Financial
Statement
44 Salazar Net Worth Report (dated 03/15/2011) Vol. 23, 3759-3772
45 Purchase and Sale Agreement Vol. 23, 3773-3780
46 First Amendment to Purchase and Sale | Vol. 23, 3781-3782
Agreement
47 Panorama — Estimated Settlement Statement Vol. 23, 3783-3792
48 El Camino — Final Settlement Statement Vol. 23, 3793-3793
49 Los Olivos — Final Settlement Statement Vol. 23, 3794-3794
50 Deed for Transfer of Panorama Property Vol. 23, 3795-3804
51 Deed for Transfer for Los Olivos Vol. 23, 3805-3806
52 Deed for Transfer of El Camino Vol. 23, 3807-3808
53 Kimmel Appraisal Report for Panorama and | Vol. 23, 3809-3886
Clayton
54 Bill of Sale — Panorama Vol. 23, 3887-3890
55 Bill of Sale — Mary Fleming Vol. 23, 3891-3894
56 Bill of Sale — E1 Camino Vol. 23, 3895-3898
57 Bill of Sale — Los Olivos Vol. 23, 3899-3902
58 Declaration of Value and Transfer Deed of 8355 | Vol. 23, 3903-3904
Panorama (recorded 12/31/2012)
60 Baruk Properties Operating Agreement Vol. 23, 3905-3914
61 Baruk Membership Transfer Agreement Vol. 24, 3915-3921
62 Promissory Note for $1,617,050 (dated | Vol. 24, 3922-3924

10/01/2010)
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Exhibits to Clerk’s Trial Exhibit List (cont.)

63 Baruk Properties/Snowshoe Properties, | Vol. 24, 3925-3926
Certificate of Merger (filed 10/04/2010)

64 Baruk Properties/Snowshoe Properties, Articles | Vol. 24, 3927-3937
of Merger

65 Grant Deed from Snowshoe to Bayuk Living | Vol. 24, 3938-3939
Trust; Doc No. 2010-0531071 (recorded
11/04/2010)

66 Grant Deed — 1461 Glenneyre; Doc No. | Vol. 24, 3940-3941
2010000511045 (recorded 10/08/2010)

67 Grant Deed — 570 Glenneyre; Doc No. | Vol. 24, 3942-3944
2010000508587 (recorded 10/08/2010)

68 Attorney File re: Conveyance between Woodland | Vol. 24, 3945-3980
Heights and Arcadia Living Trust

69 October 24, 2011 email from P. Morabito to | Vol. 24, 3981-3982
Vacco RE: Attorney Client Privileged
Communication

70 November 10, 2011 email chain between Vacco | Vol. 24, 3983-3985
and P. Morabito RE: Baruk Properties, LLC/Paul
Morabito/Bank of America, N.A.

71 Bayuk First Ledger Vol. 24, 39863987

72 Amortization Schedule Vol. 24, 3988-3990

73 Bayuk Second Ledger Vol. 24, 3991-3993

74 Opposition to Motion for Summary Judgment and | Vol. 24, 39944053
Declaration of Edward Bayuk; Case No. 13-
51237, ECF No. 146 (filed 10/03/2014)

75 March 30, 2012 email from Vacco to Bayuk RE: | Vol. 24, 4054-4055

Letter to BOA
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Exhibits to Clerk’s Trial Exhibit List (cont.)
76 March 10, 2010 email chain between P. Morabito | Vol. 24, 40564056
and jon@aim13.com RE: Strictly Confidential
77 May 20, 2010 email chain between P. Morabito, | Vol. 24, 4057-4057
Vacco and Michael Pace RE: Proceed with
placing a Binding Bid on June 22nd with
ExxonMobil
78 Morabito Personal Financial Statement May 2010 | Vol. 24, 4058—4059
79 June 28, 2010 email from P. Morabito to George | Vol. 24, 4060—-4066
Garner RE: ExxonMobil Chicago Market
Business Plan Review
80 Shareholder Interest Purchase Agreement Vol. 24, 4067-4071
81 Plan of Merger of Consolidated Western | Vol. 24, 4072—4075
Corporation with and Into Superpumper, Inc.
82 Articles of Merger of Consolidated Western | Vol. 24, 40764077
Corporation with and Into Superpumper, Inc.
83 Unanimous Written Consent of the Board of | Vol. 24, 40784080
Directors and Sole Shareholder of Superpumper,
Inc.
84 Unanimous Written Consent of the Directors and | Vol. 24, 4081-4083
Shareholders  of  Consolidated ~ Western
Corporation
85 Arizona Corporation Commission Letter dated | Vol. 24, 4084—4091
October 21, 2010
86 Nevada Articles of Merger Vol. 24, 4092—-4098
87 New York Creation of Snowshoe Vol. 24, 40994103
88 April 26, 2012 email from Vacco to Afshar RE: | Vol. 24, 41044106
Ownership Structure of SPI
90 September 30, 2010 Matrix Retention Agreement | Vol. 24, 41074110
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Exhibits to Clerk’s Trial Exhibit List (cont.)

91 McGovern Expert Report Vol. 25,4111-4189

92 Appendix B to McGovern Report — Source 4 — | Vol. 25, 41904191
Budgets

103 | Superpumper Note in the amount of| Vol. 25,4192-4193
$1,462,213.00 (dated 11/01/2010)

104 | Superpumper Successor Note in the amount of | Vol. 25, 4194-4195
$492,937.30 (dated 02/01/2011)

105 | Superpumper Successor Note in the amount of | Vol. 25, 41964197
$939,000 (dated 02/01/2011)

106 | Superpumper Stock Power transfers to S.| Vol.25,4198-4199
Morabito and Bayuk (dated 01/01/2011)

107 | Declaration of P. Morabito in Support of| Vol.25,4200—4203
Opposition to Motion of JH, Inc., Jerry Herbst,
and Berry- Hinckley Industries for Order
Prohibiting Debtor from Using, Acquiring or
Transferring Assets Pursuantto 11 U.S.C. §§ 105
and 303(f) Pending Appointment of Trustee, Case
13-51237, ECF No. 22 (filed 07/01/2013)

108 | October 12, 2012 email between P. Morabito and | Vol. 25, 42044204
Bernstein RE: 2011 Return

109 | Compass Term Loan (dated 12/21/2016) Vol. 25, 4205-4213

110 | P. Morabito — Term Note in the amount of | Vol. 25, 42144214
$939,000.000 (dated 09/01/2010)

111 | Loan Agreement between Compass Bank and | Vol. 25, 4215-4244
Superpumper (dated 12/21/2016)

112 | Consent Agreement (dated 12/28/2010) Vol. 25, 4245-4249

113 | Superpumper Financial Statement (dated | Vol. 25, 42504263

12/31/2007)
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Exhibits to Clerk’s Trial Exhibit List (cont.)

114 | Superpumper Financial Statement (dated | Vol. 25, 42644276
12/31/2009)

115 | Notes Receivable Interest Income Calculation | Vol. 25, 4277-4278
(dated 12/31/2009)

116 | Superpumper Inc. Audit Conclusions Memo | Vol. 25, 4279-4284
(dated 12/31/2010)

117 | Superpumper 2010 YTD Income Statement and | Vol. 25, 42854299
Balance Sheets

118 | March 12, 2010 Management Letter Vol. 25, 43004302

119 | Superpumper Unaudited August 2010 Balance | Vol. 25, 43034307
Sheet

120 | Superpumper Financial Statements (dated | Vol. 25, 43084322
12/31/2010)

121 Notes Receivable Balance as of September 30, | Vol. 26, 4323
2010

122 | Salvatore Morabito Term Note $2,563,542.00 as | Vol. 26, 4324-4325
of December 31, 2010

123 | Edward Bayuk Term Note $2,580,500.00 as of | Vol. 26, 43264327
December 31, 2010

125 | April 21, 2011 Management letter Vol. 26, 4328-4330

126 | Bayuk and S. Morabito Statements of Assets & | Vol. 26, 4331-4332
Liabilities as of February 1, 2011

127 | January 6, 2012 email from Bayuk to Lovelace | Vol. 26, 4333-4335
RE: Letter of Credit

128 | January 6, 2012 email from Vacco to Bernstein | Vol. 26, 43364338

129 | January 7, 2012 email from Bernstein to Lovelace | Vol. 26, 43394343

130 | March 18, 2012 email from P. Morabito to Vacco | Vol. 26, 43444344

Page 39 of 67




DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION LOCATION
Exhibits to Clerk’s Trial Exhibit List (cont.)
131 | April 21, 2011 Proposed Acquisition of Nella Oil | Vol. 26, 43454351
132 | April 15, 2011 email chain between P. Morabito | Vol. 26, 4352
and Vacco
133 | April 5, 2011 email from P. Morabito to Vacco | Vol. 26, 4353
134 | April 16, 2012 email from Vacco to Morabito Vol. 26, 4354-4359
135 | August 7, 2011 email exchange between Vacco | Vol. 26, 4360
and P. Morabito
136 | August 2011 Lovelace letter to Timothy Halves | Vol. 26, 4361-4365
137 | August 24,2011 email from Vacco to P. Morabito | Vol. 26, 4366
RE: Tim Haves
138 | November 11, 2011 email from Vacco to P.| Vol. 26, 4367
Morabito RE: Getting Trevor’s commitment to
sign
139 | November 16, 2011 email from P. Morabito to | Vol. 26, 4368
Vacco RE: Vacco’s litigation letter
140 | November 28, 2011 email chain between Vacco, | Vol. 26, 4369-4370
S. Morabito, and P. Morabito RE: $560,000 wire
to Lippes Mathias
141 | December 7, 2011 email from Vacco to P.| Vol. 26,4371
Morabito RE: Moreno
142 | February 10, 2012 email chain between P. | Vol. 26,4372-4375
Morabito Wells, and Vacco RE: 1461 Glenneyre
Street - Sale
143 | April 20, 2012 email from P. Morabito to Bayuk | Vol. 26, 4376
RE: BofA
144 | April 24, 2012 email from P. Morabito to Vacco | Vol. 26, 43774378

RE: SPI Loan Detail
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Exhibits to Clerk’s Trial Exhibit List (cont.)

145 | September 4, 2012 email chain between Vacco | Vol. 26, 43794418
and Bayuk RE: Second Deed of Trust documents

147 | September 4, 2012 email from P. Morabito to | Vol. 26, 44194422
Vacco RE: Wire

148 | September 4, 2012 email from Bayuk to Vacco | Vol. 26, 4423-4426
RE: Wire

149 | December 6, 2012 email from Vacco to P.| Vol. 26,4427-4428
Morabito RE: BOA and the path of money

150 | September 18, 2012 email chain between P. | Vol. 26, 44294432
Morabito and Bayuk

151 October 3, 2012 email chain between Vacco and | Vol. 26, 44334434
P. Morabito RE: Snowshoe Properties, LLC

152 | September 3, 2012 email from P. Morabito to | Vol. 26, 4435
Vacco RE: Wire

153 | March 14, 2013 email chain between P. Morabito | Vol. 26, 4436
and Vacco RE: BHI Hinckley

154 | Paul Morabito 2009 Tax Return Vol. 26, 4437-4463

155 | Superpumper Form 8879-S tax year ended | Vol. 26, 44644484
December 31, 2010

156 | 2010 U.S. S Corporation Tax Return for | Vol.27,4485-4556
Consolidated Western Corporation

157 | Snowshoe form 8879-S for year ended December | Vol. 27, 4557-4577
31,2010

158 | Snowshoe Form 1120S 2011 Amended Tax | Vol. 27, 4578-4655
Return

159 | September 14, 2012 email from Vacco to P.| Vol. 27, 46564657

Morabito
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LOCATION

Exhibits to Clerk’s Trial Exhibit List (cont.)

160 | October 1, 2012 email from P. Morabito to Vacco | Vol. 27, 4658
RE: Monday work for Dennis and Christian
161 | December 18, 2012 email from Vacco to P.| Vol. 27,4659
Morabito RE: Attorney Client Privileged
Communication
162 | April 24, 2013 email from P. Morabito to Vacco | Vol. 27, 4660
RE: BHI Trust
163 | Membership Interest Purchases, Agreement — | Vol. 27, 4661-4665
Watch My Block (dated 10/06/2010)
164 | Watch My Block organizational documents Vol. 27, 4666—4669
174 | October 15, 2015 Certificate of Service of copy of | Vol. 27, 4670
Lippes Mathias Wexler Friedman’s Response to
Subpoena
175 | Order Granting Motion to Compel Responses to | Vol. 27, 4671-4675
Deposition Questions ECF No. 502; Case No. 13-
51237-gwz (filed 02/03/2016)
179 | Gursey Schneider LLP Subpoena Vol. 28, 4676-4697
180 | Summary Appraisal of 570 Glenneyre Vol. 28, 4698-4728
181 | Appraisal of 1461 Glenneyre Street Vol. 28, 4729-4777
182 | Appraisal of 370 Los Olivos Vol. 28, 4778-4804
183 | Appraisal of 371 El Camino Del Mar Vol. 28, 4805-4830
184 | Appraisal of 1254 Mary Fleming Circle Vol. 28, 4831-4859
185 | Mortgage — Panorama Vol. 28, 4860-4860
186 | Mortgage — El Camino Vol. 28, 4861
187 | Mortgage — Los Olivos Vol. 28, 4862
188 | Mortgage — Glenneyre Vol. 28, 4863
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Exhibits to Clerk’s Trial Exhibit List (cont.)
189 | Mortgage — Mary Fleming Vol. 28, 4864
190 | Settlement Statement — 371 El Camino Del Mar | Vol. 28, 4865
191 Settlement Statement — 370 Los Olivos Vol. 28, 4866
192 | 2010 Declaration of Value of 8355 Panorama Dr | Vol. 28, 4867—4868
193 | Mortgage — 8355 Panorama Drive Vol. 28, 4869-4870
194 | Compass — Certificate of Custodian of Records | Vol. 28, 4871-4871
(dated 12/21/2016)
196 |June 6, 2014 Declaration of Sam Morabito — | Vol. 28, 4872-4874
Exhibit 1 to Snowshoe Reply in Support of
Motion to Dismiss Complaint for Lack of
Personal Jurisdiction — filed in Case No. CV13-
02663
197 | June 19, 2014 Declaration of Sam Morabito — | Vol. 28, 4875-4877
Exhibit 1 to Superpumper Motion to Dismiss
Complaint for Lack of Personal Jurisdiction —
filed in Case No. CV13-02663
198 | September 22, 2017 Declaration of Sam Morabito | Vol. 28, 48784879
— Exhibit 22 to Defendants’ SSOF in Support of
Opposition to Plaintiff's MSJ — filed in Case No.
CV13-02663
222 | Kimmel — January 21, 2016, Comment on Alves | Vol. 28, 48804883
Appraisal
223 September 20, 2010 email from Yalamanchili to | Vol. 28, 4884
Morabito
224 | March 24, 2011 email from Naz Afshar RE: | Vol. 28, 48854886
telephone call regarding CWC
225 | Bank of America Records for Edward Bayuk | Vol. 28, 4887-4897

(dated 09/05/2012)
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LOCATION

Exhibits to Clerk’s Trial Exhibit List (cont.)

226

June 11, 2007 Wholesale Marketer Agreement

Vol.

29, 48984921

227

May 25, 2006 Wholesale Marketer Facility
Development Incentive Program Agreement

Vol.

29, 4922-4928

228

June 2007 Master Lease Agreement — Spirit SPE
Portfolio and Superpumper, Inc.

Vol.

29, 49294983

229

Superpumper Inc 2008 Financial Statement
(dated 12/31/2008)

Vol.

29, 4984-4996

230

November 9, 2009 email from P. Morabito to
Bernstein, Yalaman RE: Jan Friederich — entered
into Consulting Agreement

Vol.

29, 4997

231

September 30, 2010, Letter from Compass to
Superpumper, Morabito, CWC RE: reducing face
amount of the revolving note

Vol.

29, 4998-5001

232

October 15, 2010, letter from Quarles & Brady to
Vacco RE: Revolving Loan Documents and Term
Loan Documents between Superpumper and
Compass Bank

Vol.

29, 5002-5006

233

BMO Account Tracker Banking Report October
1 to October 31, 2010

Vol.

29, 5007-5013

235

August 31, 2010 Superpumper Inc., Valuation of
100 percent of the common equity in
Superpumper, Inc on a controlling marketable
basis

Vol.

29, 5014-5059

236

June 18, 2014 email from S. Morabito to Vanek
(WF) RE: Analysis of Superpumper Acquisition
in 2010

Vol.

29, 5060-5061

241

Superpumper March 2010 YTD Income
Statement

Vol.

29, 5062-5076
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LOCATION

Exhibits to Clerk’s Trial Exhibit List (cont.)

244 | Assignment Agreement for $939,000 Morabito | Vol. 29, 5077-5079
Note

247 | July 1, 2011 Third Amendment to Forbearance | Vol. 29, 5080-5088
Agreement Superpumper and Compass Bank

248 | Superpumper Cash Contributions January 2010 | Vol. 29, 5089-5096
thru September 2015 — Bayuk and S. Morabito

252 | October 15, 2010 Letter from Quarles & Brady to | Vol. 29, 5097-5099
Vacco RE: Revolving Loan documents and Term
Loan documents between Superpumper Prop. and
Compass Bank

254 | Bank of America — S. Morabito SP Properties | Vol. 29, 5100
Sale, SP Purchase Balance

255 | Superpumper Prop. Final Closing Statement for | Vol. 29, 5101
920 Mountain City Hwy, Elko, NV

256 | September 30, 2010 Raffles Insurance Limited | Vol. 29, 5102
Member Summary

257 | Equalization Spreadsheet Vol. 30, 5103

258 | November 9, 2005 Grant, Bargain and Sale Deed; | Vol. 30, 5104-5105
Doc #3306300 for Property Washoe County

260 | January 7, 2016 Budget Summary — Panorama | Vol. 30, 5106-5107
Drive

261 | Mary 22, 2006 Compilation of Quotes and | Vol. 30, 5108-5116
Invoices Quote of Valley Drapery

262 | Photos of 8355 Panorama Home Vol. 30, 5117-5151

263 | Water Rights Deed (Document #4190152) | Vol. 30,5152-5155

between P. Morabito, E. Bayuk, Grantors, RCA
Trust One Grantee (recorded 12/31/2012)
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Exhibits to Clerk’s Trial Exhibit List (cont.)

265 | October 1, 2010 Bank of America Wire Transfer | Vol. 30, 5156
—Bayuk — Morabito $60,117

266 | October 1, 2010 Check #2354 from Bayuk to P. | Vol. 30, 5157-5158
Morabito for $29,383 for 8355 Panorama funding

268 | October 1, 2010 Check #2356 from Bayuk to P. | Vol. 30, 5159-5160
Morabito for $12,763 for 370 Los Olivos Funding

269 | October 1, 2010 Check #2357 from Bayuk to P. | Vol. 30, 5161-5162
Morabito for $31,284 for 371 E1 Camino Del Mar
Funding

270 | Bayuk Payment Ledger Support Documents | Vol. 31, 5163-5352
Checks and Bank Statements

271 | Bayuk Superpumper Contributions Vol. 31, 5353-5358

272 | May 14, 2012 email string between P. Morabito, | Vol. 31, 5359-5363
Vacco, Bayuk, and S. Bernstein RE: Info for
Laguna purchase

276 | September 21, 2010 Appraisal of 8355 Panorama | Vol. 32, 53645400
Drive Reno, NV by Alves Appraisal

277 | Assessor’s Map/Home Caparisons for 8355 | Vol. 32, 5401-5437
Panorama Drive, Reno, NV

278 | December 3, 2007 Case Docket for CV07-02764 | Vol. 32, 5438-5564

280 |May 25, 2011 Stipulation Regarding the | Vol. 33, 5565-5570
Imposition of Punitive Damages; Case No. CV07-
02764 (filed 05/25/2011)

281 | Work File for September 24, 2010 Appraisal of | Vol. 33, 5571-5628
8355 Panorama Drive, Reno, NV

283 | January 25, 2016 Expert Witness Report Leonard | Vol. 33, 5629-5652

v. Superpumper Snowshoe
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Exhibits to Clerk’s Trial Exhibit List (cont.)

284 | February 29, 2016 Defendants’ Rebuttal Expert | Vol. 33, 5653-5666
Witness Disclosure

294 | October 5, 2010 Lippes, Mathias Wexler | Vol. 33, 5667-5680
Friedman, LLP, Invoices to P. Morabito

295 | P. Morabito 2010 Tax Return (dated 10/16/2011) | Vol. 33, 5681-5739

296 | December 31, 2010 Superpumper Inc. Note to | Vol. 33, 5740-5743
Financial Statements

297 | December 31, 2010 Superpumper Consultations | Vol. 33, 5744

300 | September 20, 2010 email chain between | Vol. 33, 5745-5748
Yalmanchili and Graber RE: Attorney Client
Privileged Communication

301 | September 15, 2010 email from Vacco to P.| Vol. 33, 5749-5752
Morabito RE: Tomorrow

303 | Bankruptcy Court District of Nevada Claims | Vol. 33, 5753-5755
Register Case No. 13-51237

304 | April 14, 2018 email from Allen to Krausz RE: | Vol. 33, 57565757
Superpumper

305 | Subpoena in a Case Under the Bankruptcy Code | Vol. 33, 57585768
to Robison, Sharp, Sullivan & Brust issued in
Case No. BK-N-13-51237-GWZ

306 | August 30, 2018 letter to Mark Weisenmiller, | Vol. 34, 5769
Esq., from Frank Gilmore, Esq.,

307 | Order Granting Motion to Compel Compliance | Vol. 34, 5770-5772
with the Subpoena to Robison, Sharp, Sullivan &
Brust filed in Case No. BK-N-13-51237-GWZ

308 | Response of Robison, Sharp, Sullivan & Brust’s | Vol. 34, 5773-5797

to Subpoena filed in Case No. BK-N-13-51237-
GWZ
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Exhibits to Clerk’s Trial Exhibit List (cont.)
309 | Declaration of Frank C. Gilmore in support of | Vol. 34, 5798-5801

Robison, Sharp, Sullivan & Brust’s Opposition to
Motion for Order Holding Robison in Contempt
filed in Case No. BK-N-13-51237-GWZ

Minutes of October 29, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 1 (filed
11/08/2018)

Vol. 35, 58026041

Transcript of October 29, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 1

Vol. 35, 6042—-6045

Minutes of October 30, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 2 (filed
11/08/2018)

Vol. 36, 6046—6283

Transcript of October 30, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 2

Vol. 36, 6284—6286

Minutes of October 31, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 3 (filed
11/08/2018)

Vol. 37, 6287-6548

Transcript of October 31, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 3

Vol. 37, 6549—-6552

Minutes of November 1, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 4 (filed
11/08/2018)

Vol. 38, 6553-6814

Transcript of November 1, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 4

Vol. 38, 6815-6817

Minutes of November 2, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 5 (filed
11/08/2018)

Vol. 39, 6818-7007

Transcript of November 2, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 5

Vol. 39, 70087011

Minutes of November 5, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 6 (filed
11/08/2018)

Vol. 40, 70127167

Transcript of November 5, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 6

Vol. 40, 7168-7169
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Minutes of November 6, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 7 (filed | Vol. 41, 7170-7269
11/08/2018)
Transcript of November 6, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 7 Vol. 41, 7270-7272
Vol. 42, 7273-7474

Minutes of November 7, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 8 (filed
11/08/2018)

Vol.

43,7475-7476

Transcript of November 7, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 8

Vol.

43,7477-7615

Minutes of November 26, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 9
(filed 11/26/2018)

Vol.

44,7616

Transcript of November 26, 2018, Non-Jury Trial — Closing
Arguments, Day 9

Vol.
Vol.

44,7617-7666
45,7667-7893

Plaintiff’s Motion to Reopen Evidence (filed 01/30/2019)

Vol.

46, 7894-7908

Exhibits to Plaintiff’s Motion to Reopen Evidence

Exhibit Document Description

1 Declaration of Gabrielle A. Hamm, Esq. in
Support of Plaintiff’s Motion to Reopen

Vol.

46, 7909-7913

I-A | September 21, 2017 Declaration of Salvatore | Vol. 46, 7914-7916
Morabito

1-B | Defendants’ Proposed Findings of Fact, | Vol. 46, 7917-7957
Conclusions of Law, and Judgment (Nov. 26,
2018)

1-C | Judgment on the First and Second Causes of | Vol. 46, 7958—7962

Action; Case No. 15-05019-GWZ (Bankr. D.
Nev.), ECF No. 123 (April 30, 2018)
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Exhibits to Plaintiff’s Motion to Reopen Evidence
(cont.)
I-D | Amended Findings of Fact and Conclusions of | Vol. 46, 7963—7994
Law in Support of Judgment Regarding Plaintiffs’
First and Second Causes of Action; Case No. 15-
05019-GWZ (Bankr. D. Nev.), ECF No. 126
(April 30, 2018)
1-E | Motion to Compel Compliance with the | Vol. 46, 7995-8035
Subpoena to Robison Sharp Sullivan Brust; Case
No. 15-05019-GWZ (Bankr. D. Nev.), ECF No.
191 (Sept. 10, 2018)
I-F | Order Granting Motion to Compel Compliance | Vol. 46, 80368039
with the Subpoena to Robison Sharp Sullivan
Brust; Case No. 15-05019-GWZ (Bankr. D.
Nev.), ECF No. 229 (Jan. 3, 2019)
1-G | Response of Robison, Sharp, Sullivan & Brust[] | Vol. 46, 8040-8067
To Subpoena (including RSSB 000001 -
RSSB 000031) (Jan. 18, 2019)
1-H | Excerpts of Deposition Transcript of Sam | Vol. 46, 8068—8076
Morabito as PMK of Snowshoe Petroleum, Inc.
(Oct. 1, 2015)
Errata to: Plaintiff’s Motion to Reopen Evidence (filed | Vol. 47, 8077-8080
01/30/2019)
Exhibit to Errata to: Plaintiff’s Motion to Reopen
Evidence
Exhibit Document Description

1

Plaintiff’s Motion to Reopen Evidence

Vol. 47, 8081-8096
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Ex Parte Motion for Order Shortening Time on Plaintiff’s

Motion to Reopen Evidence and for Expedited Hearing
(filed 01/31/2019)

Vol. 47, 8097-8102

Order Shortening Time on Plaintiff’s Motion to Reopen
Evidence and for Expedited Hearing (filed 02/04/2019)

Vol. 47, 8103—8105

Supplement to Plaintiff’s Motion to Reopen Evidence (filed
02/04/2019)

Vol. 47, 8106-8110

Exhibits to Supplement to Plaintiff’s Motion to Reopen
Evidence

Exhibit Document Description

1 Supplemental Declaration of Gabrielle A. Hamm,
Esq. in Support of Plaintiff’s Motion to Reopen
Evidence (filed 02/04/2019)

Vol. 47, 8111-8113

I-1 | Declaration of Frank C. Gilmore in Support of
Robison, Sharp Sullivan & Brust’s Opposition to
Motion for Order Holding Robison in Contempt;
Case No. 15-05019-GWZ (Bankr. D. Nev.), ECF
No. 259 (Jan. 30, 2019)

Vol. 47, 8114-8128

Defendants” Response to Motion to Reopen Evidence
(02/06/2019)

Vol. 47, 8129-8135

Plaintiff’s Reply to Defendants’ Response to Motion to
Reopen Evidence (filed 02/07/2019)

Vol. 47, 81368143

Minutes of February 7, 2019 hearing on Motion to Reopen
Evidence (filed 02/28/2019)

Vol. 47, 8144

Rough Draft Transcript of February 8, 2019 hearing on
Motion to Reopen Evidence

Vol. 47, 8145-8158
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[Plaintiff’s Proposed] Findings of Fact, Conclusions of
Law, and Judgment (filed 03/06/2019)

Vol.

47, 8159-8224

[Defendants’ Proposed Amended] Findings of Fact,
Conclusions of Law, and Judgment (filed 03/08/2019)

Vol.

47, 8225-8268

Minutes of February 26, 2019 hearing on Motion to
Continue ongoing Non-Jury Trial (Telephonic) (filed
03/11/2019)

Vol.

47, 8269

Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Judgment (filed
03/29/2019)

Vol.

48, 8270-8333

Notice of Entry of Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law,
and Judgment (filed 03/29/2019)

Vol.

48, 8334-8340

Memorandum of Costs and Disbursements (filed
04/11/2019)

Vol.

48, 8341-8347

Exhibit to Memorandum of Costs and Disbursements

Exhibit Document Description

1 Ledger of Costs

Vol.

48, 8348-8370

Application for Attorneys’ Fees and Costs Pursuant to
NRCP 68 (filed 04/12/2019)

Vol.

48, 8371-8384

Exhibits to Application for Attorneys’ Fees and Costs
Pursuant to NRCP 68

Exhibit Document Description

1 Declaration of Teresa M. Pilatowicz In Support of
Plaintiff’s Application for Attorney’s Fees and
Costs Pursuant to NRCP 68 (filed 04/12/2019)

Vol.

48, 8385-8390

2 Plaintiff’s Offer of Judgment to Defendants
(dated 05/31/2016)

Vol.

48, 8391-8397
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

3 Defendant’s Rejection of Offer of Judgment by
Plaintiff (dated 06/15/2016)

Vol.

48, 8398-8399

4 Log of time entries from June 1, 2016 to March | Vol. 48, 8400-8456
28,2019
5 Plaintiff’s Memorandum of Costs and | Vol. 48, 8457-8487

Disbursements (filed 04/11/2019)

Motion to Retax Costs (filed 04/15/2019)

Vol.

49, 8488—-8495

Plaintiff’s Opposition to Motion to Retax Costs (filed
04/17/2019)

Vol.

49, 84968507

Exhibits to Plaintiff’s Opposition to Motion to Retax
Costs

Exhibit Document Description
1 Declaration of Teresa M. Pilatowicz In Support of | Vol. 49, 85088510
Opposition to Motion to Retax Costs (filed
04/17/2019)
2 Summary of Photocopy Charges Vol. 49, 8511-8523
3 James L. McGovern Curriculum Vitae Vol. 49, 8524-8530
4 McGovern & Greene LLP Invoices Vol. 49, 8531-8552
5 Buss-Shelger Associates Invoices Vol. 49, 8553—-8555

Reply in Support of Motion to Retax Costs (filed
04/22/2019)

Vol.

49, 85568562

Opposition to Application for Attorneys’ Fees and Costs
Pursuant to NRCP 68 (filed 04/25/2019)

Vol.

49, 85638578

Exhibit to Opposition to Application for Attorneys’ Fees
and Costs Pursuant to NRCP 68
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibit Document Description

1 Plaintiff’s Bill Dispute Ledger

Vol. 49, 8579-8637

Defendants, Salvatore Morabito, Snowshoe Petroleum,
Inc., and Superpumper, Inc.’s Motion for New Trial and/or
to Alter or Amend Judgment Pursuant to NRCP 52, 59, and
60 (filed 04/25/2019)

Vol. 49, 8638-8657

Defendant, Edward Bayuk’s Motion for New Trial and/or
to Alter or Amend Judgment Pursuant to NRCP 52, 59, and
60 (filed 04/26/2019)

Vol. 50, 8658-8676

Exhibits to Edward Bayuk’s Motion for New Trial
and/or to Alter or Amend Judgment Pursuant to NRCP
52,59, and 60

Exhibit Document Description

1 February 27, 2019 email with attachments

Vol. 50, 8677-8768

2 Declaration of Frank C. Gilmore in Support of
Edward Bayuk’s Motion for New Trial (filed
04/26/2019)

Vol. 50, 8769-8771

February 27, 2019 email from Marcy Trabert

Vol. 50, 87728775

4 February 27, 2019 email from Frank Gilmore to
eturner@Gtg.legal RE: Friday Trial

Vol. 50, 87768777

Plaintiff’s Reply in Support of Application of Attorneys’
Fees and Costs Pursuant to NRCP 68 (filed 04/30/2019)

Vol. 50, 8778-8790

Exhibit to Plaintiff’s Reply in Support of Application of
Attorneys’ Fees and Costs Pursuant to NRCP 68

Exhibit Document Description

1 Case No. BK-13-51237-GWZ, ECF Nos. 280,
282, and 321

Vol. 50, 8791-8835
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Plaintiff’s Opposition to Defendants’ Motions for New
Trial and/or to Alter or Amend Judgment (filed 05/07/2019)

Vol. 51, 8836—8858

Defendants, Salvatore Morabito, Snowshoe Petroleum,
Inc., and Superpumper, Inc.’s Reply in Support of Motion
for New Trial and/or to Alter or Amend Judgment Pursuant
to NRCP 52, 59, and 60 (filed 05/14/2019)

Vol. 51, 88598864

Declaration of Edward Bayuk Claiming Exemption from
Execution (filed 06/28/2019)

Vol. 51, 8865—-8870

Exhibits to Declaration of Edward Bayuk Claiming
Exemption from Execution

Exhibit Document Description

1 Copy of June 22, 2019 Notice of Execution and
two Write of Executions

Vol. 51, 8871-8896

2 Declaration of James Arthur Gibbons Regarding
his Attestation, Witness and Certification on
November 12, 2005 of the Spendthrift Trust
Amendment to the Edward William Bayuk Living
Trust (dated 06/25/2019)

Vol. 51, 8897-8942

Notice of Claim of Exemption from Execution (filed
06/28/2019)

Vol. 51, 8943-8949

Edward Bayuk’s Declaration of Salvatore Morabito
Claiming Exemption from Execution (filed 07/02/2019)

Vol. 51, 8950-8954

Exhibits to Declaration of Salvatore Morabito Claiming
Exemption from Execution

Exhibit Document Description
1 Las Vegas June 22, 2019 letter Vol. 51, 8955-8956
2 Writs of execution and the notice of execution Vol. 51, 8957-8970
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Minutes of June 24, 2019 telephonic hearing on Decision on
Submitted Motions (filed 07/02/2019)

Vol.

51, 8971-8972

Salvatore Morabito’s Notice of Claim of Exemption from
Execution (filed 07/02/2019)

Vol.

51, 8973-8976

Edward Bayuk’s Third Party Claim to Property Levied
Upon NRS 31.070 (filed 07/03/2019)

Vol.

51, 8977-8982

Order Granting Plaintiff’s Application for an Award of
Attorneys’ Fees and Costs Pursuant to NRCP 68 (filed
07/10/2019)

Vol.

51, 8983-8985

Order Granting in part and Denying in part Motion to Retax
Costs (filed 07/10/2019)

Vol.

51, 8986—8988

Plaintiff’s Objection to (1) Claim of Exemption from
Execution and (2) Third Party Claim to Property Levied
Upon, and Request for Hearing Pursuant to NRS 21.112 and
31.070(5) (filed 07/11/2019)

Vol.

52, 8989-9003

Exhibits to Plaintiff’s Objection to (1) Claim of
Exemption from Execution and (2) Third Party Claim
to Property Levied Upon, and Request for Hearing
Pursuant to NRS 21.112 and 31.070(5)

Exhibit Document Description

1 Declaration of Gabrielle A. Hamm, Esq.

Vol.

52, 9004-9007

2 11/30/2011 Tolling Agreement — Edward Bayuk

Vol.

52, 9008-9023

11/30/2011 Tolling Agreement — Edward William
Bayuk Living Trust

Vol.

52, 9024-9035

4 Excerpts of 9/28/2015 Deposition of Edward
Bayuk

Vol.

52, 90369041
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION LOCATION
Exhibits to Plaintiff’s Objection (cont.)
5 Edward Bayuk, as Trustee of the Edward William | Vol. 52, 9042-9051
Bayuk Living Trust’s Responses to Plaintiff’s
First Set of Requests for Production, served
9/24/2015
6 8/26/2009 Grant Deed (Los Olivos) Vol. 52, 9052-9056
7 8/17/2018 Grant Deed (El Camino) Vol. 52, 9057-9062
8 Trial Ex. 4 (Confession of Judgment) Vol. 52, 9063-9088
9 Trial Ex. 45 (Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated | Vol. 52, 9089-9097
9/28/2010)
10 Trial Ex. 46 (First Amendment to Purchase and | Vol. 52, 9098-9100
Sale Agreement, dated 9/29/2010)
11 Trial Ex. 51 (Los Olivos Grant Deed recorded | Vol. 52,9101-9103
10/8/2010)
12 Trial Ex. 52 (El Camino Grant Deed recorded | Vol. 52, 9104-9106
10/8/2010)
13 Trial Ex. 61 (Membership Interest Transfer | Vol. 52,9107-9114
Agreement, dated 10/1/2010)
14 Trial Ex. 62 ($1,617,050.00 Promissory Note) Vol. 52,9115-9118
15 Trial Ex. 65 (Mary Fleming Grant Deed recorded | Vol. 52, 9119-9121

11/4/2010)

Notice of Entry of Order Denying Defendants’ Motions for
New Trial and/or to Alter or Amend Judgment (filed
07/16/2019)

Vol.

52,9122-9124
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibit to Notice of Entry of Order Denying
Defendants’ Motions for New Trial and/or to Alter or
Amend Judgment

Exhibit Document Description

1 Order Denying Defendants’ Motions for New
Trial and/or to Alter or Amend Judgment (filed
07/10/2019)

Vol. 52, 9125-9127

Notice of Entry of Order Granting Plaintiff’s Application
for an Award of Attorneys’ Fees and Costs Pursuant to
NRCP 68 (filed 07/16/2019)

Vol. 52,9128-9130

Exhibit to Notice of Entry of Order Granting Plaintiff’s
Application for an Award of Attorneys’ Fees and Costs
Pursuant to NRCP 68

Exhibit Document Description

1 Order Granting Plaintiff’s Application for an
Award of Attorneys’ Fees and Costs Pursuant to
NRCP 68 (filed 07/10/2019)

Vol. 52,9131-9134

Notice of Entry of Order Granting in Part and Denying in
Part Motion to Retax Costs (filed 07/16/2019)

Vol. 52,9135-9137

Exhibit to Notice of Entry of Order Granting in Part and
Denying in Part Motion to Retax Costs

Exhibit Document Description

1 Order Granting in Part and Denying in Part
Motion to Retax Costs (filed 07/10/2019)

Vol. 52, 91389141

Plaintiff’s Objection to Notice of Claim of Exemption from
Execution Filed by Salvatore Morabito and Request for
Hearing (filed 07/16/2019)

Vol. 52,9142-9146

Reply to Objection to Claim of Exemption and Third Party
Claim to Property Levied Upon (filed 07/17/2019)

Vol. 52, 9147-9162
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION LOCATION
Exhibits to Reply to Objection to Claim of Exemption
and Third Party Claim to Property Levied Upon
Exhibit Document Description
1 March 3, 2011 Deposition Transcript of P. | Vol.52,9163-9174

Morabito

2 Mr. Bayuk’s September 23, 2014 responses to
Plaintiff’s first set of requests for production

Vol.

52,9175-9180

3 September 28, 2015 Deposition Transcript of
Edward Bayuk

Vol.

52,9181-9190

Reply to Plaintiff’s Objection to Notice of Claim of
Exemption from Execution (filed 07/18/2019)

Vol.

52,9191-9194

Declaration of Service of Till Tap, Notice of Attachment
and Levy Upon Property (filed 07/29/2019)

Vol.

52,9195

Notice of Submission of Disputed Order Denying Claim of
Exemption and Third Party Claim (filed 08/01/2019)

Vol.

52,9196-9199

Exhibits to Notice of Submission of Disputed Order
Denying Claim of Exemption and Third Party Claim

Exhibit Document Description

1 Plaintiff’s Proposed Order Denying Claim of
Exemption and Third-Party Claim

Vol.

52, 9200-9204

2 Bayuk and the Bayuk Trust’s proposed Order
Denying Claim of Exemption and Third-Party
Claim

Vol.

52,9205-9210

3 July 30, 2019 email evidencing Bayuk, through
counsel Jeffrey Hartman, Esq., requesting until
noon on July 31, 2019 to provide comments.

Vol.

52,9211-9212
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibits
(cont.)

to Notice of Submission of Disputed Order

4

July 31, 2019 email from Teresa M. Pilatowicz,
Esq. Bayuk failed to provide comments at noon
on July 31, 2019, instead waiting until 1:43 p.m.
to send a redline version with proposed changes
after multiple follow ups from Plaintiff’s counsel
on July 31, 2019

Vol.

52,9213-9219

A true and correct copy of the original Order and
Bayuk Changes

Vol.

52,9220-9224

A true and correct copy of the redline run by
Plaintiff accurately reflecting Bayuk’s proposed
changes

Vol.

52, 92259229

Email evidencing that after review of the
proposed revisions, Plaintiff advised Bayuk,
through counsel, that Plaintiff agree to certain
proposed revisions, but the majority of the
changes were unacceptable as they did not reflect
the Court’s findings or evidence before the Court.

Vol.

52,9230-9236

Objection to Plaintiff’s Proposed Order Denying Claim of
Exemption and Third Party Claim (filed 08/01/2019)

Vol.

53, 9237-9240

Exhibits

to Objection to Plaintiff’s Proposed Order

Denying Claim of Exemption and Third-Party Claim

Exhibit Document Description
1 Plaintiff’s Proposed Order Denying Claim of | Vol. 53, 9241-9245
Exemption and Third-Party Claim
2 Defendant’s comments on Findings of Fact Vol. 53, 9246-9247
3 Defendant’s Proposed Order Denying Claim of | Vol. 53, 9248-9252

Exemption and Third-Party Claim
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Minutes of July 22, 2019 hearing on Objection to Claim for
Exemption (filed 08/02/2019)

Vol. 53, 9253

Order Denying Claim of Exemption (filed 08/02/2019)

Vol. 53, 9254-9255

Bayuk’s Case Appeal Statement (filed 08/05/2019)

Vol. 53, 9256-9260

Bayuk’s Notice of Appeal (filed 08/05/2019)

Vol. 53, 9261-9263

Defendants, Superpumper, Inc., Edward Bayuk, Salvatore
Morabito; and Snowshoe Petroleum, Inc.’s, Case Appeal
Statement (filed 08/05/2019)

Vol. 53, 9264-9269

Defendants, Superpumper, Inc., Edward Bayuk, Salvatore
Morabito; and Snowshoe Petroleum, Inc.’s, Notice of
Appeal (filed 08/05/2019)

Vol. 53, 9270-9273

Exhibits to Defendants, Superpumper, Inc., Edward
Bayuk, Salvatore Morabito; and Snowshoe Petroleum,
Inc.’s, Notice of Appeal

Exhibit Document Description

1 Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and
Judgment (filed 03/29/2019)

Vol. 53, 92749338

2 Order Denying Defendants’ Motions for New
Trial and/or to Alter or Amend Judgment (filed
07/10/2019)

Vol. 53, 9339-9341

3 Order Granting in Part and Denying in Part
Motion to Retax Costs (filed 07/10/2019)

Vol. 53, 93429345

4 Order Granting Plaintiff’s Application for an
Award of Attorneys’ Fees and Costs Pursuant to
NRCP 68 (filed 07/10/2019)

Vol. 53, 93469349

Page 61 of 67




DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Plaintiff’s Reply to Defendants’ Objection to Plaintiff’s
Proposed Order Denying Claim of Exemption and Third-
Party Claim

Vol. 53, 9350-9356

Order Denying Claim of Exemption and Third-Party Claim
(08/09/2019)

Vol. 53, 9357-9360

Notice of Entry of Order Denying Claim of Exemption and
Third-Party Claim (filed 08/09/2019)

Vol. 53,9361-9364

Exhibit to Notice of Entry of Order Denying Claim of
Exemption and Third-Party Claim

Exhibit Document Description

1 Order Denying Claim of Exemption and Third-
Party Claim (08/09/2019)

Vol. 53, 9365-9369

Notice of Entry of Order Denying Claim of Exemption
(filed 08/12/2019)

Vol. 53, 93709373

Exhibit to Notice of Entry of Order Denying Claim of
Exemption

Exhibit Document Description

1 Order Denying Claim of Exemption (08/02/2019)

Vol. 53, 9374-9376

Motion to Make Amended or Additional Findings Under
NRCP 52(b), or, in the Alternative, Motion for
Reconsideration (filed 08/19/2019)

Vol. 54, 9377-9401

Exhibits to Motion to Make Amended or Additional
Findings Under NRCP 52(b), or, in the Alternative,
Motion for Reconsideration

Exhibit Document Description

1 Order Denying Claim of Exemption and Third
Party Claim (filed 08/09/19)

Vol. 54, 9402-9406
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION LOCATION
Exhibits to Motion to Make Amended (cont.)

2 Spendthrift Trust Amendment to the Edward | Vol. 54, 9407-9447
William Bayuk Living Trust (dated 11/12/05)

3 Spendthrift Trust Agreement for the Arcadia | Vol. 54, 9448-9484
Living Trust (dated 10/14/05)

4 Fifth Amendment and Restatement of the Trust | Vol. 54, 9485-9524
Agreement for the Arcadia Living Trust (dated
09/30/10)

5 P. Morabito's Supplement to NRCP 16.1 | Vol. 54, 9525-9529
Disclosures (dated 03/01/11)

6 Transcript of March 3, 2011 Deposition of P. | Vol. 55, 9530-9765
Morabito

7 Documents Conveying Real Property Vol. 56, 97669774

8 Transcript of July 22, 2019 Hearing Vol. 56, 9775-9835

9 Tolling Agreement JH and P. Morabito (partially | Vol. 56, 9836-9840
executed 11/30/11)

10 Tolling Agreement JH and Arcadia Living Trust | Vol. 56, 9841-9845
(partially executed 11/30/11)

11 Excerpted Pages 8-9 of Superpumper Judgment | Vol. 56, 98469848
(filed 03/29/19)

12 Petitioners' First Set of Interrogatories to Debtor | Vol. 56, 98499853
(dated 08/13/13)

13 Tolling Agreement JH and Edward Bayuk | Vol. 56, 9854-9858
(partially executed 11/30/11)

14 Tolling Agreement JH and Bayuk Trust (partially | Vol. 56, 9859-9863
executed 11/30/11)

15 Declaration of Mark E. Lehman, Esq. (dated | Vol. 56, 9864-9867

03/21/11)
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibits to Motion to Make Amended (cont.)

16 Excerpted Transcript of October 20, 2015
Deposition of Dennis C. Vacco

Vol. 56, 98689871

17 Assignment and Assumption Agreement (dated
07/03/07)

Vol. 56, 98729887

18 Order Denying Morabito’s Claim of Exemption
(filed 08/02/19)

Vol. 56, 9888-9890

Errata to Motion to Make Amended or Additional Findings
Under NRCP 52(b), or, in the Alternative, Motion for
Reconsideration (filed 08/20/2019)

Vol. 57, 9891-9893

Plaintiff’s Opposition to Motion to Make Amended or
Additional Findings Under NRCP 52(b), or, In the
Alternative, = Motion  for  Reconsideration, and
Countermotion for Fees and Costs Pursuant to NRS 7.085
(filed 08/30/2019)

Vol. 57, 9894-9910

Errata to Plaintiff’s Opposition to Motion to Make
Amended or Additional Findings Under NRCP 52(b), or, In
the Alternative, Motion for Reconsideration, and

Countermotion for Fees and Costs Pursuant to NRS 7.085
(filed 08/30/2019)

Vol. 57,9911-9914

Exhibits to Errata to Plaintiff’s Opposition to Motion to
Make Amended or Additional Findings Under NRCP
52(b), or, In the Alternative, Motion for
Reconsideration, and Countermotion for Fees and Costs
Pursuant to NRS 7.085

Exhibit Document Description

1 Declaration of Gabrielle A. Hamm, Esq.

Vol. 57, 9915-9918

2 Plaintiff’s Amended NRCP 16.1 Disclosures
(February 19, 2016)

Vol. 57,9919-9926
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibits to Errata (cont.)

3 Plaintiff’s Fourth Supplemental NRCP 16.1
Disclosures (November 15, 2016)

Vol. 57, 9927-9930

4 Plaintiff’s Fifth Supplemental NRCP 16.1
Disclosures (December 21, 2016)

Vol. 57,9931-9934

5 Plaintiff’s Sixth Supplemental NRCP 16.1
Disclosures (March 20, 2017)

Vol. 57, 9935-9938

Reply in Support of Motion to Make Amended or
Additional Findings Under NRCP 52(b), or, In the
Alternative, Motion  for  Reconsideration, and
Countermotion for Fees and Costs (filed 09/04/2019)

Vol. 57, 99399951

Exhibits to Reply in Support of Motion to Make
Amended or Additional Findings Under NRCP 52(b),
or, In the Alternative, Motion for Reconsideration, and
Countermotion for Fees and Costs

Exhibit Document Description

19 Notice of Submission of Disputed Order Denying
Claim of Exemption and Third Party Claim (filed
08/01/19)

Vol. 57, 9952-9993

20 Notice of Submission of Disputed Order Denying | Vol. 57,
Claim of Exemption and Third Party Claim (filed | 9994-10010
08/01/19)

Order Denying Defendants’ Motion to Make Amended or | Vol. 57,

Additional Findings Under NRCP 52(b), or, in the
Alternative, Motion for Reconsideration and Denying

Plaintiff's Countermotion for Fees and Costs Pursuant to
NRS 7.085 (filed 11/08/2019)

10011-10019

Bayuk’s Case Appeal Statement (filed 12/06/2019)

Vol. 57,
10020-10026
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Bayuk’s Notice of Appeal (filed 12/06/2019)

Vol. 57,
10027-10030

Exhibits to Bayuk’s Notice of Appeal

Exhibit Document Description
1 Order Denying [Morabito’s] Claim of Exemption | Vol. 57,
(filed 08/02/19) 10031-10033
2 Order Denying [Bayuk’s] Claim of Exemption | Vol. 57,
and Third Party Claim (filed 08/09/19) 10034-10038
3 Order Denying Defendants’ Motion to Make | Vol. 57,

Amended or Additional Findings Under NRCP
52(b), or, in the Alternative, Motion for
Reconsideration and Denying  Plaintiff’s

Countermotion for Fees and Costs Pursuant to
NRS 7.085 (filed 11/08/19)

10039-10048

Notice of Entry of Order Denying Defendants' Motion to
Make Amended or Additional Findings Under NRCP 52(b),
or, in the Alternative, Motion for Reconsideration and
Denying Plaintiff's Countermotion for Fees and Costs
Pursuant to NRS 7.085 (filed 12/23/2019)

Vol. 57,
10049-10052

Exhibit to Notice of Entry of Order

Exhibit

Document Description

A

Order Denying Defendants’ Motion to Make
Amended or Additional Findings Under NRCP
52(b), or, in the Alternative, Motion for
Reconsideration and Denying  Plaintiff’s

Countermotion for Fees and Costs Pursuant to
NRS 7.085 (filed 11/08/19)

Vol. 57,
10053-10062
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

District Court Docket Case No. CV13-02663

Vol. 57,
10063—-10111

Notice of Claim of Exemption and Third-Party Claim to
Property Levied Upon, Case No. CV13-02663 (filed
08/25/2020)

Vol. 58,
10112-10121

Exhibits to Notice of Claim of Exemption and Third-
Party Claim to Property Levied Upon

Exhibit Document Description
1 Writ of Execution, Case No. CV13-02663 (filed | Vol. 58,
07/21/2020) 10123-10130
2 Superior Court of California, Orange County | Vol. 58,
Docket, Case No. 30-2019-01068591-CU-EN- | 10131-10139
CIC
3 Spendthrift Trust Amendment to the Edward | Vol. 58,

William Bayuk Living Trust (dated 11/12/2005)

10140-10190
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FILED
Electronically

CV13-02663
con: e
JEFFREY L HARTMAN Clerk of the Court
Hartman & Hartman Transaction # 7407464 : yvilg
S510W. Plumb Ln,,
Suite B

Reno, Nevada 89500
Tel: (775) 324-2800
Fax: {7751 324-1818

MICHAEL LEHNERS, ESQ.
429 Marsh Ave.

Reno, Nevada 89500

Nevada Bar Number (03331
(7735) T86-1695

Attorneys for Edward Bayuk

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE
oo

Case No, CV13-02663
WILLIAM A, LEONARD, Trustee for the
Bankmuptcy Estate of Paul Anthony Depl. No. 4
Morabito,

Plaintiff, QRIECTION TO PLAINTIEF &
PROPOSED ORDER DENYING CLAIM
OF EXEMPTION AND THIRD PARTY
CLAIM

¥,

SUPERPUMPER, INC., an Arizona
Corporation; EDWARD BAYUK,
individually and as Trustee of the
EDWARD WILLIAM BAYUK LIVING
TRUST; SALVATORE MORABITQ, an
individual and SNOWSHOE
PETROLEUM, INC. a Necw Yerk
COrporation,

Defendant.
f

Edward Bayuk, in his capacity as an individual and in his capacity as the Trustee of the
Edward William Bayuk Living Trust files the following Objection to Plaintiff's order denying

claim of exemption and third party claim

9237
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Attached as Exhibit "1" is a copy of the Plaintiff's propesed order. In order for the
record 1o be complele, the Defendant is requesting certain findings of fact also appear in the
order. A list of the comments that reflect these proposed findings of fact have been atlached as
Exhibit "2".

Finally, the Defendant's preposed order denying claim of exemption and thicd party
claim has been attached as Exhibit "3".

Wherefore, the Defendant respectfully requests that this Court adopt the Defendant’s
version of the proposed order.

Affirmation
Pursuant to NRS 239B.030

The Undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding document filed in the case herein
does not contain the social security number of any person.

Dated: This / day of 4@ L4t . 2019

By: Mb '

Mich4&| Lehners, Esq.

42% Marsh Ave.

Reno, Nevada 89509
Nevada Bar Number (03331
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE BY MAIL

Pursuant to Nevada Rule of Civil Procedure 5ib), I certify that on the {
day of August, 2019 I deposited for mailing in the United States Post Qffice in
Reno, Nevada, with postage thereon fully prepaid, a true copy of the within

OBJECTICN TC PLAINTIFF'S PROPGSED ORDER DENYING CLAIM OF

EXEMPTION AND THIRD PARTY CLAIM addressed as follows:

Frank C. Gilmore, Esq.
Fobison, Sharp et. al.
71 Washington Street
Reno, NV 89503

Jelfrey L Hartman, Esqg.
Hartman & Hartman

510 West Plumb Lane, Ste B
Reno, NV 84509

Teresa M. Pilatowicz, Esq.
Gabrielle &. Hamm, Esq.
Garman Turner Gordon
650 White Drive, Suite 100
Las Vegas, NV 89119

A copy of the Objection was also served to all parties in interest through

the court’s EFLEX Systemn.

%&D

Dolores Stigall

9239




Exhibit List

Exhibit 1} Plaintitf's Proposed Order
Exhibit 2 Defendant's Comments on Findings of Fact
Exhibit 3 Defendant’'s Proposed Order
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FILED
Electronically
CV13-02663

2019-08-01 03:48:01 PM

* * Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Court
Transaction # 7407464 : yviloria

Exhibit 1
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OARMAN TURNER GORDONLLE
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Las Vepas, Nevada 89119 ,
Telephone 725-777-3000 !
Counsel to Plaindff i

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF :
THE STATE OF NEVADA, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASIIOE

WILLIAM A, LEONARD, Trustee for the CASE NO.: CV]13-02663

Bankruptcy Listate of Paul Anthony N |
Morubito, DEPT, NO.: 4 !

P laintiff,
L

SUPEREPUMPER. INC., an Arizona
corportion, EDWARD BAYUK,
individually and as Trustes of the EDWARD
WILLIAM BAYUK LIVING TRUST,
SALVATORE MOGRARITO, and individual,
and SNOWSHOE PETROLEUM, TNC.. a
New York corporation,

Defendants.
———— 1

ORDER DENYING CLAIM OF EXEMPTTON AND THIRD PARTY CLAIM

Before the Count is the Norice of Claim of Exemption from Execution (the “Claim of |
Exemption™) filed on June 28, 2019 by Fdward Bayuk ("Bayuk™), individually and as trustee of
the Edward William Bayuk Living Trust (the “Bayuk Trust™), and the Third Parry Claim 1o
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Property Levied Upon [NRS 31.070] (the “Third Party Claim™) filed on July 3, 2019 by the

Bayuk Trust. The Claim of Exemption and Third Party Claim are supported by the Declaration

of Edward Bayuk Claiming Exemption from Execution (the “Bayuk Declaration”), filed on July
2, 2019. Plaintiff’s Objection to (1) Declaration of Edward Bayuk Claiming Exemption From
Execution and (2) Third Party Claim to Property Levied Upon, and Request for Hearing
Pursuant to NRS 21.112 and 31.070(5) (the “Objection”) was filed on July 11, 2019, and Bayuk
and the Bayuk Trust’s Reply to Objection to Claim of Exemption and Third Party Claim to
Property Levied Upon (the “Reply”) was filed on July 17, 2019.

The Court held a hearing on the Claim of Exemption and Third Party Claim on July 22,
2019. Bayuk and the Bayuk Trust appeared by and through counsel, Michael Lehners and
Jeffrey L. Hartman. Plaintiff appeared by and through counsel, Erika Pike Turner, Gerald M.
Gordon, and Teresa Pilatowicz of the law firm of Garman Turner Gordon LLP.

The Court has reviewed and considered the arguments made in the Claim of Exemption
and the Third Party Claim, the Objection, and the Reply, the Bayuk Declaration, the exhibits to
all of the foregoing, the papers and pleadings on file with the Court in this action, the testimony
and exhibits admitted during the trial, the Court’s Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and
Judgment, entered on March 29, 2019 (the “Judgment”), and the arguments of counsel made at
the hearing. The Court, persuaded by the argument and authorities in Plaintiff’s Objection and
the arguments of Plaintiff’s counsel at the hearing, along with the pleadings and papers on file,
the trial record, and the findings and conclusions set forth in the Judgment, finds as follows:

1. The court has subject matter jurisdiction over the claims asserted against Bayuk,
as trustee of the Bayuk Trust.

2. Bayuk has transferred all of his personal assets to the Bayuk Trust since the
Bayuk Trust was established in 1998. Inclusive, the Bayuk Trust received fraudulently
transferred property which, as further set forth in the Judgment, was established by clear and
convincing evidence. |

3. The purported nature of the Bayuk Trust as a Nevada spendthrift trust was not |

disclosed prior to the Claim of Exemption. In response to discovery requests, in deposition, in
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subject deeds, and at trial prior to the Judgment, Bayuk and the Bayuk Trust produced
contradictory evidence regarding the date and the purpose of the Bayuk Trust. With the Claim of
Exemption, the Bayuk Trust clarifies that that there is, and has been, only one trust with the
name “the Edward William Bayuk Living Trust” and that is the Bayuk Trust.

4. The Bayuk Trust does not meet the requirements for enforcement as a Nevada
spendthrift trust under NRS 166.015 because Bayuk is the settler and beneficiary during his
lifetime of the Bayuk Trust, and neither Bayuk nor his co-trustee Paul Morabito are domiciles of
Nevada. NRS 166.015(2). As established in the Judgment, Bayuk and Paul Morabito moved to
California in September 2010.

5. Contrary to assertions by Bayuk, there was no credible evidence presented that
the Bayuk Trust owns a burial plot in Nevada; but, even if such fact were established, the
ownership of a burial plot in Nevada is insufficient to invoke the protections of NRS 166.015.

6. Even if the claims asserted against the Bayuk Trust were subject to the time
periods under NRS 166.170, they were timely because the fraudulent transfer claim was brought
(1) within two years of the fraudulent transfers and (2) also within six months of discovery of the
existence of the purported spendthrift trust. The subject fraudulent transfers occurred in
September 2010 and thereafter. The Bayuk Trust executed a tolling agreement on November 30,
2011 to toll any statute of limitations applicable to the fraudulent transfer of property to the
Bayuk Trust, which tolling agreement tolled the time period to file until June 18, 2013 and the
Complaint was filed in December 2013. The purported nature of the Bayuk Trust as a
spendthrift trust subject to NRS 166.170 was not disclosed until the Claim of Exemption.
Moreover, any defenses based on NRS 166.170 have been waived as a result of the failure of

Bayuk or the Bayuk Trust to raise such defenses prior to the Claim of Exemption.
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Based upon review of the eantire file, the foregoing, and good canse appearing:

I'T 18 HERLBY ORDERED that the Claim of Exemption is denied.
I'T IS FURTHER ORDERID that the ‘Third Party Claim is denicd,
Dated this Lodayel i 2

DISTRICT JUBGE

9245



FILED
Electronically
CV13-02663

2019-08-01 03:48:01 PM

. . Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Court
Transaction # 7407464 : yviloria

Exhibit 2

9246



Comments on Changes to the Garman Turner Gordon LLP
Order Denying Claim of Exemption and Third Party Claim
Case No. CV13-02663

92: Barry L. Breslow, Esq., in a supplement to NRCP 16.1 disclosures dated March 1,
2011 provided Plaintiffs with copies of the Fifth Amendment and Restatement of the
Trust Agreement for the Arcadia Living Trust (RBSL 001868-001906) which stated that
this revecable trust was established on February 14, 2006; and of the Spendthrift Trust
Agreement for the Arcadia Living Trust established on October 14, 2005 (RBSL 001907-
001942) revoking the August 25, 1998 Arcadia Living Trust revocable trust established
in Miami Beach, Florida (CG000043-CG000099) on August 25, 1998. Separately
Plaintiffs were as well as the revocable California Arcadia Living Trust of January 6,
2005 which was supplied to Plaintiffs in July, 2019.

§3: Plaintiff’s deposed Paul Morabito on Thursday, March 3, 2011 with John P.
Desmond, Esq., and Brian R. Irvine, Esq., present with Mr. Breslow wherein Mr.
Morabito detailed all of the exchanges by exempt assets in Mr. Morabito’s self-settled
spendthrift trusts (“SSST”) of which he was a Trustee but not a beneficiary to Edward
Bayuk’s SSST Edward William Bayuk Living Trust of which Mr. Bayuk was the Trustee
but not a beneficiary. Mr. Morabito went into detail the existence of the SSST Arcadia
Living Trust as well as the revocable Arcadia Living Trust that was in California (2005),
Florida (1998) and Nevada (2006) each spending trusts used for administrative
convenience.

94: Mr. Bayuk was the Settlor (not Settler) and Trustee of the SSST Edward William
Bayuk Living Trust and mot a beneficiary. Both Mr. Bayuk and Mr. Morabito were
Nevada residents on the execution dates of their respective Nevada irrevocable SSST.

95: Michael Lehners, Esq. on July 22, 2019 stated (pg. 55, lines 23-24) that “/ can
swear Mr. Bayuk and ask him the question and there is the evidence” regarding the
Edward William Bayuk Living Trust SSST burial plot. Mr. Bayuk had evidence in his
possession during the hearing of the ownership of a gravesite burial plot in Reno owned
by his SSST Edward William Bayuk Living Trust. When offered Mr. Bayuk’s personal
knowledge as Trustee for live testimony, Judge Steinheimer commented: “He would be
qualified if he told the truth.” Present in the courtroom was former Nevada Governor
Jim Gibbons, who was prepared to testify regarding the Bayuk Trust.

§6: Gabrielle A. Hamm, Esq., counsel for Plaintiffs, had sworn in Plaintiff’s
objections to exhibits of public records of property conveyances made from the SSST
Arcadia Living Trust to the Edward William Bayuk Living Trust SSST, either directly or
through administrative revocable trusts, most dated on October 1, 2010.
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JEFFREY L. HARTMAN
Hartman & Hariman

510 W. Plumb Ln.,

Suite B

Reno, Nevada 89509

Tel: (775) 324-2800}

Fax: (775) 324-1813

MICHAEL LEHNERS, ES().
429 Marsh Ave.

Reno, Nevada 89509

Nevada Bar Number (03331
(775) 786-1695

Attorneys for Edward Bayuk
IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF
THE STATE OF NEVADA, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

WILLIAM A, LEONARLY, Trustee for the CASE NO.: CV13-02663
Bankruptey Estate of Paul Anthony Morabite,
DEPT, NO.: 4

PlaintifT,
V.

SUPERPUMPER, INC., an Arizona
corpotation; EDWARD BAYUK, individually
and as Trustee of the EDWARD WILLIAM
BAYUK LIVING TRUST; SALVATORE
MORABITO, and individual; and
SNOWSHOE PETROLEUM, INC., a New
York corporation,

Delendants.

RDE ENYIN A XE THIRD PARTY
CLAIM
Befare the Court is the Natice of Claim of Exemption from Execution {the “Claim of
Exemption™) filed on June 28, 20119 by Edward Bayuk (“Bayuk™. individually and as trustee of
the Edward William Bayuk Living Trust (the “Bayuk Trust™, and the Third Parsy Claim to
Property Levied Upon {NRS 31.070] (the “Third Parly Claim”™) filed on Tuly 3, 2019 by the
Bayuk Trust. The Claim of Exemption and Third Party Claim are supported by the Declaration

af Edward Bayuk Claiming Exemption from Executivn (the “Bayuk Declaration™), filed on July
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2, 2019. Plaintiff’s Objection to (1) Declaration of Edward Bayuk Claiming Exemption From
Execution and (2) Third Party Claim to Property Levied Upon, and Request for Hearing
Pursuant to NRS 21.112 and 31.070(5) (the “Objection”) was filed on July 11, 2019, and
Bayuk and the Bayuk Trust’s Reply to Objection to Claim of Exemption and Third Party Claim
to Property Levied Upon (the “Reply”) was filed on July 17, 2019.

The Court held a hearing on the Claim of Exemption and Third Party Claim on July 22,
2019. Bayuk and the Bayuk Trust appeared by and through counsel, Michael Lehners and
Jeffrey L. Hartman. Plaintiff appeared by and through counsel, Erika Pike Turner, Gerald M.
Gordon, and Teresa Pilatowicz of the law firm of Garman Turner Gordon LLP.

The Court has reviewed and considered the arguments made in the Claim of Exemption
and the Third Party Claim, the Objection, and the Reply, the Bayuk Declaration, the exhibits to
all of the foregoing, the papers and pleadings on file with the Court in this action, the testimony
and exhibits admitted during the trial, the Court’s Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and
Judgment, entered on March 29, 2019 (the “Judgment”), and the arguments of counsel made at
the hearing. The Court, persuaded by the argument and authorities in Plaintiff’s Objection and
the arguments of Plaintiff’s counsel at the hearing, along with the pleadings and papers on file,
the trial record, and the findings and conclusions set forth in the Judgment, finds as follows:

1. The court has subject matter jurisdiction over the claims asserted against Bayuk,
as trustee of the Bayuk Trust.

2. The Bayuk Trust was established in 1998, and through amendment on
November 12, 2005 became a Nevada irrevocable self-settled spendthrift trust. As set forth in
the Judgment, the Bayuk Trust received fraudulently transferred property which was established
by clear and convincing evidence.

3. On March 3, 2011 the Plaintiff deposed Paul Morabito. In that deposition, Mr.
Morabito disclosed the existence of the Edward Bayuk Living Trust and the fact that real
property had been transferred to it. In response to discovery requests propounded after the

instant lawsuit was commenced on December 17, 2013, Bayuk and the Bayuk Trust produced
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evidence regarding the date and the purpose of the Bayuk Trust as well as revocable spending
trusts. With the Claim of Exemption, the Bayuk Trust confirmed that that there is, and has been,
only one self-settled spendthrift trust with the name “the Edward William Bayuk Living Trust”
and that is the Bayuk Trust.

4. The Bayuk Trust does not meet the requirements for enforcement as a Nevada
spendthrift trust under NRS 166.015 because Bayuk is the settlor, and neither Bayuk as Trustee
nor Paul Morabito, who was a co-trustee in 2005 are presently domiciled in Nevada. NRS
166.015(2). As established in the Judgment, Bayuk and Paul Morabito moved their residency
to California in September 2010.

5. Contrary to the evidence contained within the Claim of Exemption from
Execution, and without allowing Bayuk to introduce additional evidence in the form of
documents and testimony at the hearing, the Court finds that there was no evidence presented
that the Bayuk Trust owns a burial plot in Nevada; but, even if such fact were established, the
ownership of a burial plot in Nevada is insufficient to invoke the protections of NRS Chapter
166.

6. Even if the claims asserted against the Bayuk Trust were subject to the time
periods under NRS 166.170, they were timely because the fraudulent transfer claim was
brought (1) within two years after the transfers were made and (2) also within six months of
Plaintiff’s discovery of the existence of the 2005 spendthrift trust. The subject fraudulent
transfers occurred in September 2010 and thereafter as evidenced by Plaintiff’s exhibits of 2010
public record of the transfers. The Bayuk Trust executed a tolling agreement on November 30,
2011 to thereafter toll any statute of limitations applicable to the fraudulent transfer of property
to the Bayuk Trust, which tolling agreement tolled the time period to file until June 18, 2013
and the Complaint was filed in December 2013. The purported nature of the Bayuk Trust as a
spendthrift trust subject to NRS 166.170 was not disclosed until the Claim of Exemption.
Moreover, any defenses based on NRS 166.170 have been waived as a result of the failure of

Bayuk or the Bayuk Trust to raise such defenses prior to the Claim of Exemption.
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Based upon review of the entire [ile, the foregoing, and good cause appearing:

IT 15 HEREBY ORDERED that the Claim of Exemption is denied.
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Third Party Claim is denied.

Dared this day of . 2019,

DISTRICT JUDGE
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CASE NO. CV13-02663 TITLE: WILLIAM A. LEONARD, Trustee for the Bankruptgy-erk of the Cout
Estate of Paul Anthony Morabito VS. SUPERPUMPER, INC.,
EDWARD BAYUK, EDWARD WILLIAM BAYUK LIVING TRUST,

SALVATORE MORABITO and SNOWSHOE PETROLEUM, INC.

DATE, JUDGE

OFFICERS OF

COURT PRESENT APPEARANCES-HEARING CONT'D TO
7/22/19 HEARING ON OBJECTION TO CLAIM FOR EXEMPTION

HONORABLE Erika Turner, Esq., and Teresa Pilatowicz, Esqg., represented Plaintiff William

CONNIE A. Leonard, Trustee for the Bankruptcy Estate of Paul Anthony Morabito.

STEINHEIMER Defendant Edward Bayuk present individually and as trustee for the Edward

DEPT. NO.4  William Bayuk Living Trust, with counsel, Jeffrey Hartman, Esq., and

M. Stone/T. Michael Lehners Esq., who also represented Salvatore Morabito.
Adrian Objection to Claim for Exemption by counsel Turner; presented argument;
(Clerk) objection and argument by counsel Lehners.
J. Schonlau 3:12 p.m. Court recessed for counsel Lehners to consult with co-counsel
(Reporter) and his client.
3:25 p.m. Court reconvened with respective counsel and Defendant Bayuk
present.

Reply argument by counsel Turner.

The Court found that there are not sufficient factors in this case to create
trust protections based on fact that neither a trustee or beneficiary of the
Edward William Bayuk Living Trust live in the State of Nevada, that this
Court does have the necessary jurisdiction to rule in this case, and that the
objection was waived by the Defendants as it was not raised during the
course of the trial. Therefore, COURT ENTERED ORDER denying the
claim for exemption.

Counsel for the Plaintiff to prepare order in accordance with the above
ruling.

Motion for Stay of Proceedings Pending Appeal by counsel Lehners;
presented argument; objection and argument by counsel Turner.

Motion for Leave to Supplement Record as to the burial plot by counsel
Lehners; presented argument; objection and argument by counsel Turner.
COURT ENTERED ORDER denying the request to supplement the record
with testimony by Edward Bayuk regarding the burial plot; and denying the
Motion for Stay of Proceedings with leave to renew once written decision is
entered regarding the request for exemption.

COURT ENTERED ORDER denying the Edward William Bayuk Living
Trust’s third-party claim.

Court recessed.
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IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF
THE STATE OF NE¥ADA, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE
WIL.LIAM A, LEONARD, Trustee for the CASE NO.: CVI3-02663

HBankruptcy Estate of Paul Anthony
Morabito, DEPT. NO: 4

Plaintift,
Vs,

SUPERPUMPER, INC., an Arizona
corporation; FDWARD BAYUK,
individually and as Frusice of the EDWARD
WILLTAM BAYUK LIVING TRUST:
SALVATORE MORABITO, and individual;
and SNOWSTIOE PETROLEUM, INC_a
New York corporation.

Delendants.

ORDER NENYING CLAIM OF EXEMPTION

Before the Court is the Nevice of Claim of Exemption from Fxecution (the *“Claim of

Exemption™) filed on July 2, 20019 by Defendant Salvatore Morabito (*Marabito™). The Claim of i
Fxemption is supported by the Declaration of Sabvatare Morabito Claiming Exemption from
Fxecution { the “Morabito Deglaration™), also filed on July 2, 2019, Plaintiff s Objection o Notice
wf Cloim of Exemption from Execution Field by Salvatore Morabito and Request for Hearing (Lhe
“Objection™) was filed on July 16, 2019, and Morahito s Reply to Plaintiff's Obfection to Notice
of Claim of Exemption from Execation (the “Reply™} was filed on July 18, 2019

The Court held a hearing on the Claim of Exemption on July 22, 2019, Morabito appeared
by and through counsel, Michael [.ehners, Plaintiff appeared by and through counsel, Erika Pike

Tumer, Gerald M. Gordon and Teresa Pilatowicz of the law firm of Garman Tamer Gordon TILP.
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The Court has reviewed and considered the arguments made in the Claim of Cxemption,
the Objection, and the Reply, the papers and pleadings on file with the Court in (s action, the
testimony and exhibits admitted during the Irial, the Court's Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law,
and fudpment, entered on March 29, 2019 (the “Judgnient™), and the arguments of counse]l made
at the hearing. The Court is persuaded by the argument and authorities in Plaintiff™s Objection and
the arguments of Plaintifl"s counsel at the hearing, along with the pleadings and papers on file, the
trial reeord, and the findings and conclusions sct forth in the Judpment. As such, the Court finds
that Sam Morabilo failed to meet his burden to show that there are assets in Nevada subject to
gxemption from execution.

Based on the forepoing, and good cause appearing:

Il [S HEREBY ORDERED that the Claim of Exemption filed by Salvatore Morabito is
denied.

Dated this =0, day of August. 2019,

|Ir“ M _(\—:I"' - lll

. : 5
HSTRICT JJDGE
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. , . . Jacqueline Bryant
Hartman & Hartman Clerk of the Court
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Suite B

Reno, Nevada 89509
Tel: (773) 324-2800

Fax: (7751 324-1818

MICHAEL LEHNERS, E5(}.
429 Marsh Ave.

Reno, Nevada £9309

Nevada Bar Number 003331
(775) 7Ra-1695

Auntomeys for Edward Bayuk individually
and as the Trustee of the Edward William
Bayuk Living Trust

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT FOR THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

WILLTAM A. LEONARD, Trustee for the CASE NO.: CV13-02663
Bankruptcy Estate of Paul Anthony Marabite
DEPT. NO.: 4
Flaintiffs,

L

SUPERPUMPER, INC., an Arizona corporation;
EDWARD BAYUIK, individually and as Trusies
of the EDWARD WILLIAM BAYUK LIVING
TRUST: SALVATORE MORABITO, an

individual; and SNOWSHOE PETROLEUM,
INC., a New York corporation,

Defendants !

APPEAL STATEMENT

1. Mame of appellants filing this case appeal statement:

A, Edward Bayuk individually and as the Trustee of the Edward Whlliam
Bayuk Living TrusL
2. Identify the judge issuing the decision, judgment, or order appealed from:

A, Hon. Connie J. Steinbeimer.
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3. Identify each appellant and the name and address of counsel for each appellant:

A. Edward Bayuk individually: Jeffrey L. Hartman, Esq., 510 W. Plumb
Ln., Suite B Reno, Nevada 89509, Tel: (775) 324-2800. Michael Lehners,
Esq. 429 Marsh Ave., Reno, Nevada 89509, Tel (775) 786-1695;

B.  Edward Bayuk in his capacity as the Trustee of the Edward William Bayuk
Living Trust: Jeffrey L. Hartman, Esq., 510 W. Plumb Ln., Suite B Reno,
Nevada 89509, Tel: (775) 324-2800. Michael Lehners, Esq. 429 Marsh
Ave., Reno, Nevada 89509, Tel (775) 786-1695;

C.  Salvatore Morabito, Frank C. Gilmore, Esq., Robison, Sharp, Sullivan &
Brust, 71 Washington Street, Reno, Nevada 89503; Tel (775) 329-3151;

D.  Snowshoe Petroleum, Inc., Frank C. Gilmore, Esq., Robison, Sharp,
Sullivan & Brust, 71 Washington Street, Reno, Nevada 89503; Tel (775)
329-3151;

E. Superpumper, Inc., Frank C. Gilmore, Esq., Robison, Sharp, Sullivan &
Brust, 71 Washington Street, Reno, Nevada 89503; Tel (775) 329-3151;

4. Identify each respondent and the name and address of appellate counsel, if known,
for each respondent:

A.  William A. Leonard, Trustee for the Bankruptcy Estate of Paul Anthony

Morabito, Garman Turner Gordon, LLP., Gerald M. Gordon, Esq., Erika
Pike Turner, Esq., Teresa M. Pilatowicz, Esq., Gabrielle A. Hamm, Esq.,
650 White Drive, Suite 100, Las Vegas, Nevada 89119.

5. Indicate whether any attorney identified above in response to question 3 or 4 is not
licensed to practice law in Nevada and, if so, whether the district court granted that attorney
permission to appear under SCR 42.

A.  Allcounsel are licensed to practice law in the State of Nevada.

6. Indicate whether appellant was represented by appointed or retained counsel in the

district court:
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A.  The appellant was represented by retained counsel in the district court.

7. Indicate whether appellant is represented by appointed or retained counsel on appeal:

A.  The appellant is represented by retained counsel on appeal.

8. Indicate whether appellant was granted leave to proceed in forma pauperis, and the
date of entry of the district court order granting such leave:

A.  The appellant did not seek leave to proceed in forma pauperis.

9. Indicate the date the proceedings commenced in the district court:

A.  The complaint was filed on December 17, 2013.

10. Provide a brief description of the nature of the action and result in the district court,
including the type of judgment or order being appealed and the relief granted by the district
court:

A. This was an action to recover alleged fraudulent conveyances. The action was
commenced by JH, Inc.; Jerry Herbst and Berry-Hinckley Industries, Inc. on December 17,
2013. On June 20, 2013, JH, Inc.; Jerry Herbst and Berry-Hinckley Industries, Inc. filed a
petition for an involuntary bankruptcy against Paul Morabito in the United States Bankruptcy
Court for the District of Nevada, Case No. BK-N 13-51237.

B. On December 22, 2014 the Bankruptcy Court entered an order for relief under
Chapter Seven, ECF 168). The Order for relief signifies that the requirements of 11 U.S.C.
§303 have been met and that the bankruptcy may proceed under Chapter Seven.

C. William A. Leonard was appointed as the Chapter Seven Trustee in the
involuntary bankruptcy.

D. On June 16, 2015 the District Court entered an order substituting William A.
Leonard as the Plaintiff in the place of JH, Inc.; Jerry Herbst and Berry-Hinckley Industries,
Inc. pursuant to NRCP 17(a).

E. On March 29, 2019 the District Court entered judgment against each of the
Defendants as follows:

I. Against Ed Bayuk and the Bayuk Trust, as follows: 1. Avoiding the
transfer of the El Camino Property and the Los Olivos Property, and

3
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awarding Plaintiff damages in the amount of $884,999.95, with offset for
amounts collected on account of the El Camino Property and the Los
Olivos Property; 2. Avoiding the transfer of Baruk LLC and awarding
Plaintiff damages in the amount of $1,654,550 with offset for amounts
collected on account of Baruk LLC; Avoiding the transfer of $420,250 and
awarding Plaintiff damages in the amount of $420,250 with offset for
amounts collected on account of the $420,250; and Avoiding the
Superpumper Transfer and awarding Plaintiff damages in the amount of
$4,949,000 with offset for amounts collected on account of the
Superpumper Transfer.

II.  Against Sam Morabito as follows: 1. Avoiding the transfer of $355,000
and awarding Plaintiff damages in the amount of $355,000 with offset for
amounts collected on account on account of the $355,000; and 2. Avoiding
the Superpumper Transfer and awarding Plaintiff damages in the amount of

$4,949,000 with offset for amounts collected on account of the
Superpumper Transfer.

III.  Against Snowshoe, avoiding the Superpumper Transfer and awarding
Plaintiff damages in the amount of $9,898,000 with offset for amounts
collected on account of the Superpumper Transfer.

11. Indicate whether the case has previously been the subject of an appeal to or original
writ proceeding in the Supreme Court and, if so, the caption and Supreme Court docket number
of the prior proceeding:

A.  There have been no prior appeals in this matter.

12. Indicate whether this appeal involves child custody or visitation:

A.  This appeal does not involve child custody or visitation.

13. If this is a civil case, indicate whether this appeal involves the possibility of
settlement:

A.  The Appellant is willing to attend mediation and attempt to resolve the

issues with Mr. Leonard.
Affirmation
Pursuant to NRS 239B.030

The Undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding document filed in the case herein
does not contain the social security number of any person.

Dated: This __S _ day of /asiat 2019

By Michae%/wv

hners, Esq.
429 Marsh Ave.
Reno, Nevada 89509
Nevada Bar Number 003331

4
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
Pursuant to NRCP 5(b}, I certity that I am an employee of Michael C. Lehners, Esq.,
and that on this date I caused to be served a true copy of the CASE APPEAL STATEMENT

all parties to this action by the method(s) indicated below:

by placing an original or true copy thereof in a sealed envelope,
with sufficient postage affixed thereto, in the United States mail

10

11

12

13

14

15

15

17

1E

at Reno, Nevada, addressed to:

Gerald Gerdoen, Esq.

Email:

gzordon @ Gig. legat

Mark M. Weizenmiller, Esq.

Ermail:

mweisenmiller &Gty de sl

Teresa M. Pilatowice, Esy.

Email;

Wicz @Gtz b

Erika Pike Turner, Esq.

Email:

crurner & gz, legal

Gabrielle Hamm, Esg.

Email:

ghamm @ota legal

Frank C. Gilmore, Esq.

Email:

DATED: This_9

fgilmore @ rbsllaw com

by email addressed to;

day of August, 2019,

NS WP, %\"

EMPLCYEE

by using the Court's CM/ECF Electronic Notification System addressed to:
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FILED
Electronically

CV13-02663
2019-08-05 01:36:14 PM
CODE: %2515 Jacqueline Bryant
JEFFREY L. HARTMAN Clerk of the Court

Hartrman & Hartman Transaction # 7411690 : yvilg

510 W. Plumb La.,
Suite B

Reno, Nevada 89509
Tel: (7753} 324-25K)
Fax: (773) 324-1818

MICHAEL LEHNERS, ESQ.
429 Marsh Ave.

Reno, Nevada 89509

Nevada Bar Number 003331
(775)78hR-1695

Attomeys for Edward Bayuk individually

and as the Tmstee of the Edward William
Bayuk Living Trust

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT FOR THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

WILLIAM A, LEONARD, Trustze for (he
Bankmiptcy Estate of Faul Aathony Morabito

CASE NO.; CV13-02663

DEPT. NO.: 4
Plaintiffs,

Vi

SUPERFUMPER, INC., an Arizona corporation;
EDWARD BAYUK, individually and as Trustee
of the EDWARD WILLIAM BAYUK LIVING
TRUST, SALVATORE MORABITO, an
individual; and SNOWSHOE PETROLEUM,
INC., a New York vorporation,

Defendants.  /

NOTICE OF APPEAL
Notice is herchy given that Defendants Edward Bayuk individually and as the Trustes of

the Edward William Bayuk Living Trust, by and through their attorneys of record, hereby
appeal to the Supreme Court of the State of Nevada the following:

1. Order denying Defendants motion to Dismiss entered on July 17, 2014
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2. Order Regarding Discovery Commissioner’s Eecommendation for Order Dated
August 17, 2017 entered on December 17, 2017;

3. Oral Order made on Ociober 22, 2018 on first day of wrial, denying Defendants’
Motion in Limine; Mipotes filed with the Court on November 11, 2018;

4, Oral Order made on October 29, 2018 on first day of (rial, holding Plaintiff's
Mation in Liming in abeyance; Minuwtes filed with the Court on November 11, 201 8;

5. Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Judgment entered by this Court on
March 29, 2019;

6. Order Penying Defendants” Motions for New Trial andfor Alter or Amend
Judgment entered by this Court on July 10, 2019;

7. Order Granting in Part and Denying in Part Motion to Retax Cosis entered by
this Count on July 10, 2019%; and

8. Order Granting Plaimiff's Application for an Award of Attorney’s Fees and
Costs Pursuant to NECP 68 entcred by this Court on July 20, 2019

Affirmation
Pursuant to NRS 239B.030

The Undersigned does hereby affiom that the preceding document filed in the case herein
does not contain the sovial security number of any persen.

Dated: This > day of /1!% Lyt .29

Mic hners, Exsq.

428 Marsh Ave.

Reno, Nevada 89504
Nevada Bar Number 003331
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
Pursuant to NRCP 5(b), I certify that I am an employee of Michael C. Lehners, Esq.,
and that on this date I caused to be served a true copy of the NOTICE QF APPEAL ali

parties to this action by the method(s) indicated below:

by placing 4n original or true copy thereof in a sealed envelope,
with sufficient postage affixed thersto, in the United States mail
at Reno, Nevada, addressed to:

by using the Court’s CM/ECF Electronic Notification Systern addressed Lo
Gerald Gordon, Esq.

Email: ggordon@Gig legal
Mark M. Weisenmiller, Esq.

Email; mweiseomiller@Gig legal
Teresa M. Pilatowicz, Esg.
Email: Ipd i

Erika Pike Turnet, Esq.

Email: elumer® gty legal
Gabrielle Hamm, Esq.
Email: gharmm

Frank C. Gilmere, Esq.
Emuail. [fgilmore @ rhsllaw.com

by email addressed to:

DATED: This g day of August, 2019,

e S

EMPLOYEE
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1310
Marquis Aurbach Coffing
Micah S. Echols, Esqg.
Nevada Bar No. 8437
Kathleen A. Wilde, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 12522
10001 Park Run Drive
Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
Telephone: (702) 382-0711
Facsimile: (702) 382-5816
mechols@maclaw.com
kwilde@maclaw.com
Attorneys for Defendants

FILED
Electronically
CV13-02663

2019-08-05 02:13:58 P\
Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Court

Transaction # 7411859

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT FOR THE STATE OF NEVADA

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

WILLIAM A. LEONARD, Trustee for the
Bankruptcy Estate of Paul Anthony Morabito,

Plaintiff,

VS.

SUPERPUMPER, INC., an Arizona corporation;
EDWARD BAYUK, individually and as Trustee
of the EDWARD BAYUK LIVING TRUST;
SALVATORE MORABITO, an individual; and
SNOWSHOE PETROLEUM, INC., a New York
corporation,

Defendants.

Case No.: CV13-02663
Dept. No.: 4

CASE APPEAL STATEMENT

Defendants, Superpumper, Inc.; Edward Bayuk, individually and as Trustee of the

Edward Bayuk Living Trust; Salvatore Morabito; and Snowshoe Petroleum, Inc., by and through

their attorneys of record, Marquis Aurbach Coffing, hereby file this Case Appeal Statement.

1. Name of appellant filing this Case Appeal Statement:

Defendants, Superpumper, Inc.; Edward Bayuk, individually and as Trustee of the
Edward Bayuk Living Trust; Salvatore Morabito; and Snowshoe Petroleum, Inc.

Page 1 of 6
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Identify the Judge issuing the decision, judgment, or order appealed from:
Honorable Connie J. Steinheimer, District Court Judge

Identify each appellant and the name and address of counsel for each appellant:
Superpumper, Inc. and Snowshoe Petroleum, Inc.

Frank Gilmore, Esq.

Robison, Sharp, Sullivan & Brust
71 Washington Street

Reno, Nevada 89503

Micah S. Echols, Esq.
Kathleen A. Wilde, Esq.
Marquis Aurbach Coffing
10001 Park Run Drive
Las Vegas, Nevada 89145

Salvatore Morabito

Frank Gilmore, Esq.

Robison, Sharp, Sullivan & Brust
71 Washington Street

Reno, Nevada 89503

Micah S. Echols, Esq.
Kathleen A. Wilde, Esq.
Marquis Aurbach Coffing
10001 Park Run Drive
Las Vegas, Nevada 89145

Edward Bayuk, individually and as Trustee of the Edward Bayuk Living
Trust

Jeffrey Hartman, Esq.
Hartman & Hartman

510 W. Plumb Lane, Ste. B
Reno, Nevada 89509

Micah S. Echols, Esq.
Kathleen A. Wilde, Esq.
Marquis Aurbach Coffing
10001 Park Run Drive
Las Vegas, Nevada 89145

Page 2 of 6
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4, Identify each respondent and the name and address of appellate counsel, if known,
for each respondent (if the name of a respondent’s appellate counsel is unknown, indicated as
much and provide the name and address of that respondent’s trial counsel):

William A. Leonard, Trustee for the Bankruptcy Estate of Paul Anthony
Morabito

Gerald M. Gordon, Esq.
Erica Pike Turner, Esq.
Teresa M. Pilatowicz, Esqg.
Gabrielle A. Hamm, Esq.
Mark M. Weisenmiller, Esq.
Garman Turner Gordon LLP
650 White Drive, Ste. 100
Las Vegas, Nevada 89119
5. Indicate whether any attorney identified above in response to question 3 or 4 is
not licensed to practice law in Nevada and, if so, whether the district court granted that attorney
permission to appear under SCR 42 (attach a copy of any district court order granting such
permission):
N/A
6. Indicated whether appellant was represented by appointed or retained counsel in

the district court:

Retained.
7. Indicate whether appellant is represented by appointed or retained counsel on
appeal:
Retained.
8. Indicate whether appellant was granted leave to proceed in forma pauperis, and

the date of entry of the district court order granting such leave:
N/A
9. Indicate the date the proceedings commenced in the district court (e.g., date
complaint indictment, information, or petition was filed):

The complaint was filed on December 17, 2013.

Page 3 of 6
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10. Provide a brief description of the nature of the action and result in the district
court, including the type of judgment or order being appealed and the relief granted by the
district court:

This is an action to recover alleged fraudulent conveyances. The action was commenced
by JH, Inc.; Jerry Herbst; and Berry-Hinckley Industries, Inc. on December 17, 2013. On
June 20, 2013, JH, Inc.; Jerry Herbst; and Berry-Hinckley Industries, Inc. filed a petition for an
involuntary bankruptcy against Paul Morabito in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the
District of Nevada, Case No. BK-N 13-51237. On December 22, 2014, the Bankruptcy Court
entered an order for relief under Chapter 7. The order for relief signifies that the requirements of
11 U.S.C. § 303 have been met and that the bankruptcy may proceed under Chapter 7. William
A. Leonard was appointed as the Chapter 7 Trustee in the involuntary bankruptcy. On June 16,
2015, the District Court entered an order substituting William A. Leonard as the Plaintiff in the
place of JH, Inc.; Jerry Herbst; and Berry-Hinckley Industries, Inc. pursuant to NRCP 17(a).

On March 29, 2019 the District Court entered judgment against each of the Defendants as
follows:

Against Ed Bayuk and the Bayuk Trust, as follows: 1. Avoiding the transfer of the El
Camino Property and the Los Olivos Property, and awarding Plaintiff damages in the amount of
$884,999.95, with offset for amounts collected on account of the EI Camino Property and the
Los Olivos Property; 2. Avoiding the transfer of Baruk LLC and awarding Plaintiff damages in
the amount of $1,654,550 with offset for amounts collected on account of Baruk LLC;
3. Avoiding the transfer of $420,250 and awarding Plaintiff damages in the amount of $420,250
with offset for amounts collected on account of the $420,250; and 4. Avoiding the Superpumper
Transfer and awarding Plaintiff damages in the amount of $4,949,000 with offset for amounts
collected on account of the Superpumper Transfer.

Against Sam Morabito as follows: 1. Avoiding the transfer of $355,000 and awarding
Plaintiff damages in the amount of $355,000 with offset for amounts collected on account on

account of the $355,000; and 2. Avoiding the Superpumper Transfer and awarding Plaintiff
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damages in the amount of $4,949,000 with offset for amounts collected on account of the
Superpumper Transfer.

Against Snowshoe, avoiding the Superpumper Transfer and awarding Plaintiff damages
in the amount of $9,898,000 with offset for amounts collected on account of the Superpumper
Transfer. In post-trial proceedings, the District Court denied a motion for new trial, and awarded
Plaintiff attorney fees and costs.

11. Indicate whether the case has previously been the subject of an appeal to or
original writ proceeding in the Supreme Court and, if so, the caption and Supreme Court docket
number of the prior proceeding:

This case has not been the subject of appeal or writ proceeding before the Nevada
Supreme Court.

12. Indicate whether this appeal involves child custody or visitation:
N/A
13. If this is a civil case, indicate whether this appeal involves the possibility of
settlement:

Defendants/Appellants believe that settlement is a possibility in this case.

AFFIRMATION PURSUANT TO NRS 239B.030

The undersigned affirms that the pleading or document now being present to the Court in
the above-entitled action does not contain any Personal Information (as defined in
NRS 603A.040).

Dated this 5th day of August, 2019.

MARQUIS AURBACH COFFING

By /s/ Micah S. Echols
Micah S. Echols, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 8437
Kathleen A. Wilde, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 12522
10001 Park Run Drive
Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
Attorneys for Defendants
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that the foregoing CASE APPEAL STATEMENT was submitted
electronically for filing and/or service with the Second Judicial District Court on the 5th day of
August, 2019. Electronic service of the foregoing document shall be made in accordance with
the E-Service List as follows:

ERIKA TURNER, ESQ.
for WILLIAM A. LEONARD, JR, TRUSTEE OF ESTATE OF PAUL A. MORABITO

FRANK GILMORE, ESQ.
for SALVATORE R. MORABITO, SNOWSHOE PETROLEUM, INC,,
and SUPERPUMPER, INC.

MARK WEISENMILLER, ESQ.
for WILLIAM A. LEONARD, JR, TRUSTEE OF ESTATE OF PAUL A. MORABITO

JEFFREY HARTMAN, ESQ.
for EDWARD WILLIAM BAYUK LIVING TRUST, and EDWARD BAYUK

TERESA PILATOWICZ, ESQ.
for WILLIAM A. LEONARD, JR, TRUSTEE OF ESTATE OF PAUL A. MORABITO

GABRIELLE HAMM, ESQ.
for WILLIAM A. LEONARD, JR, TRUSTEE OF ESTATE OF PAUL A. MORABITO

MICHAEL LEHNERS, ESQ.
for EDWARD WILLIAM BAYUK LIVING TRUST, and EDWARD BAYUK and
SALVATORE R. MORABITO

| further certify that | served a copy of this document by mailing a true and correct copy
thereof, postage prepaid, addressed to:

GERALD M. GORDON, ESQ.
Garman Turner Gordon LLP
650 White Drive, Ste. 100
Las Vegas, Nevada 89119
SPECIAL COUNSEL TO TRUSTEE

/s/ Leah Dell
Leah Dell, an employee of
Marquis Aurbach Coffing
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$2515
Marquis Aurbach Coffing
Micah S. Echols, Esqg.
Nevada Bar No. 8437
Kathleen A. Wilde, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 12522
10001 Park Run Drive
Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
Telephone: (702) 382-0711
Facsimile: (702) 382-5816
mechols@maclaw.com
kwilde@maclaw.com
Attorneys for Defendants

FILED
Electronically
CV13-02663

2019-08-05 02:11:21 PM
Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Court
Transaction # 7411848 : yvilori

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT FOR THE STATE OF NEVADA

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

WILLIAM A. LEONARD, Trustee for the
Bankruptcy Estate of Paul Anthony Morabito,

Plaintiff,

VS.

SUPERPUMPER, INC., an Arizona corporation;
EDWARD BAYUK, individually and as Trustee
of the EDWARD BAYUK LIVING TRUST;
SALVATORE MORABITO, an individual; and
SNOWSHOE PETROLEUM, INC., a New York
corporation,

Defendants.

Case No.: CV13-02663
Dept. No.: 4

NOTICE OF APPEAL

Defendants, Superpumper, Inc.; Edward Bayuk, individually and as Trustee of the

Edward Bayuk Living Trust; Salvatore Morabito; and Snowshoe Petroleum, Inc., by and through

their attorneys of record, Marquis Aurbach Coffing, hereby appeal to the Supreme Court of

Nevada from: (1) the Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Judgment, which was filed on

March 29, 2019 and is attached as Exhibit 1; (2) the Order Denying Defendants’ Motions for

New Trial and/or to Alter or Amend Judgment, which was filed on July 10, 2019 and is attached

as Exhibit 2; (3) the Order Granting in Part and Denying in Part Motion to Retax Costs, which
Page 1 of 4
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was filed on July 10, 2019 and is attached as Exhibit 3; and (4) the Order Granting Plaintiff’s
Application for an Award of Attorneys’ Fees and Costs Pursuant to NRCP 68, which was filed
on July 10, 2019 and is attached as Exhibit 4.

AFFIRMATION PURSUANT TO NRS 239B.030

The undersigned affirms that the pleading or document now being present to the Court in
the above-entitled action does not contain any Personal Information (as defined in
NRS 603A.040).

Dated this 5th day of August, 2019.

MARQUIS AURBACH COFFING

By _/s/ Micah S. Echols
Micah S. Echols, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 8437
Kathleen A. Wilde, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 12522
10001 Park Run Drive
Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
Attorneys for Defendants Defendants
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that the foregoing NOTICE OF APPEAL was submitted electronically
for filing and/or service with the Second Judicial District Court on the 5th day of August, 2019.
Electronic service of the foregoing document shall be made in accordance with the E-Service
List as follows:

ERIKA TURNER, ESQ.
for WILLIAM A. LEONARD, JR, TRUSTEE OF ESTATE OF PAUL A. MORABITO

FRANK GILMORE, ESQ.
for SALVATORE R. MORABITO, SNOWSHOE PETROLEUM, INC,,
and SUPERPUMPER, INC.

MARK WEISENMILLER, ESQ.
for WILLIAM A. LEONARD, JR, TRUSTEE OF ESTATE OF PAUL A. MORABITO

JEFFREY HARTMAN, ESQ.
for EDWARD WILLIAM BAYUK LIVING TRUST, and EDWARD BAYUK

TERESA PILATOWICZ, ESQ.
for WILLIAM A. LEONARD, JR, TRUSTEE OF ESTATE OF PAUL A. MORABITO

GABRIELLE HAMM, ESQ.
for WILLIAM A. LEONARD, JR, TRUSTEE OF ESTATE OF PAUL A. MORABITO

MICHAEL LEHNERS, ESQ.
for EDWARD WILLIAM BAYUK LIVING TRUST, and EDWARD BAYUK and
SALVATORE R. MORABITO

| further certify that | served a copy of this document by mailing a true and correct copy
thereof, postage prepaid, addressed to:

GERALD M. GORDON, ESQ.
Garman Turner Gordon LLP
650 White Drive, Ste. 100
Las Vegas, Nevada 89119
SPECIAL COUNSEL TO TRUSTEE

/sl Leah Dell
Leah Dell, an employee of
Marquis Aurbach Coffing
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INDEX OF EXHIBITS
Exhibit Document Description No. of
No. Pages
1 Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Judgment (filed 03/29/19) 65
2 Order Denying Defendants’ Motions for New Trial and/or to Alter or 3
Amend Judgment (filed 07/10/19)
3 Order Granting in Part and Denying in Part Motion to Retax Costs (filed 4
07/10/19)
4 Order Granting Plaintiff’s Application for an Award of Attorneys’ Fees 4

and Costs Pursuant to NRCP 68 (filed 07/10/19)
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IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

WILLIAM A. LEONARD, Trustee for the CASE NO.: CV13-02663
Bankruptcy Estate of Paul Anthony
Morabito, DEPT.NO. 4

PlaintifT,
VS.

SUPERPUMPER, INC.. an Arizona
corporation; EDWARD BAYUK,
individually and as Trustee of the EDWARD
WILLIAM BAYUK LIVING TRUST;
SALVATORE MORABITO, and individual ;
and SNOWSHOE PETROLEUM, INC., a
New York corporation,

Defendants.

FINDINGS OF FACT S OF LAW, AND JUDGMENT

Trial on this matter commenced on October 29, 201 8. Plaintiff William A, Leonard, Trustee

for the Bankruptey Estate of Paul Anthony Morabito (*Plaintiff”). appeared by and through counsel,

Erika Pike Turmner, Teresa Pilatowicz. and Gabrielle Hamm of the law firm of Garman Turner
Gordon LLP. Defendants, Superpumper. Inc., an Arizona corporation (“Superpumper”): Edward
Bayuk (*Bavuk™). individually and as Trustee of the Edward William Bayuk Living Trust (the
“Bayuk Trust™): Salvatore Morabito, an individual (“Sam Morabito™); and Snowshoe Petroleum,
Inc., a New York corporation (“Snowshoe,” and together with Superpumper, Bayuk, the Bayuk
Trust, and Sam Morabito, the “Defendants,” and together with Plaintiff, the “Parties”), appeared

by and through counsel, Frank Gilmore of the law firm of Robison, Sharp, Sullivan & Brust

(“Robison™). On February 7, 2019, after notice and arguments heard by the parties. the Court
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granted Plaintiff's motion to reopened evidence under NRCP 59(a) and admitted additional trial
exhibits 303, 306, 307, 308, and 309 on February 8, 2019, to which Defendants waived rebuttal.
After hearing the evidence and arguments of the parties, based thereon, the Court hereby finds,
concludes. and enters the following Findings of Faet, Conclusions of Law. and Judgment.

Insofar as any conclusion of law is deemed to have been or include a finding of fact, such
a finding of fact is hereby included as a factual finding. Insofar as any [inding of fact is deemed
to have been or to include a conclusion of law such is included as a conclusion of law herein.

L
FINDINGS OF FACT

Al The Judgment Against Paul Morabito.

1. On December 3, 2007, Paul Morabito and Consolidated Nevada Corporation
(“CNC™) filed a lawsuit against JH, Inc., Jerry Herbst, and Berry-Hinckley Industries (together,
the “Herbst Parties™) captioned Consolidated Nevada Corp., et al. v. JH, et al. in the Second
Judicial District Court (the “State Court™), Case No. CV07-02764, Department 6 (presiding, the

Hon. Brent Adams) (the “Herbst Litigation™).! The Herbst Partics filed counterclaims against Paul

Morabito and CNC as well as a claim against Bayuk and Sam Morabito.?

2. On September 13, 2010, the State Court entered its aral ruling on the liability and
damages portion of the trial, finding the Herbst Parties were fraudulently induced by Paul
Morabito, justifying an award of $85,871,364.75 in actual damages in favor of the Herbst Parties
against Paul Morabito and CNC, and dismissing Bayuk and Sam Morabito from liability (the
“Oral Ruling™).? Bayuk and Sam Morabito were present at the Oral Ruling.*

| Stipulated Facts (“SF™), | 1.

? Id.; Trial Transcript (“Trans™).

*SF, | 2: Trial Exhibil (*Exl.™ 1, p. 22,1.22 - p. 23, 1. 24.
“8F, | Z.
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3. On October 12, 2010, the State Court entered its written findings of fact.
conclusions of law and judgment reflecting the Oral Ruling (the “FF&CL™).> On August 23,2011,
following the punitive damages phase of the trial, the State Court entered final judgment, awarding
the Herbst Parties total damages against Paul Morabito and CNC in the amount of
§149.444,777.80, including both compensatory and punitive damages for Paul Morabito®s fraud
(the “Final Judgment™).® Afier eniry of the Final Judgment, Paul Morabito and CNC filed
numerous appeals with the Nevada Supreme Court (logether with cross-appeals, the “Appeals™).”

4, The Herbst Parties, Paul Morabito, and CNC agreed to settle the Herbst Litigation
and the Appeals and, on November 30, 2011, executed a Settlement Agreement and Mutual

Release (the “Settlement Agreement™).® Pursuant to the terms of the Settlement Agreement, the

Appeals were withdrawn and vacated, as were the FF&CL and Final Judgment, and Paul Morabito
executed a Confession of Judgment for a compromised $85 million based upon the same findings
of fucts and conclusions of law, inclusive of those grounded in fraud, as sct forth in the F F&CL.?

5. Paul Morabito and CNC defaulted under the terms of the Settiement Agreement.'”
By the time of the Settlement Agreement, the Herbst Parties had already experienced difficulty in
collecting on the Final Judgment, as assets had been moved out of Paul Morabito’s name.""
Wanting to try to resolve the matter as opposed to engage in more collection actions, the Herbst
Parties agreed to give Paul Morabito more time, and the Herbst Parties, Paul Morabito and CNC

entered into a Forbearance Agreement dated March 1, 2013.'* However. Paul Morabito and CNC

YSF, 0 3; Exh. 2,

" 8F,  4: Exh. 6.

F8F, [ 5,

¥8F | 6; Exh. 5.

" SF 6-7; Exh. 4, p. 10, § 2(k), and pp. 13-15, and Exh. 5.
WSE, (18

" Exh. 5, p. 2, Sect. I-1; Trans. 10/29/18, p. 65, 11, 16-24.
28F,  9:Exh. 6; Trans. 10/29/18. p. 12,11 12-17.
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also defaulted under the terms of the Forbearance Agreement, making none of the due payment
obligations."
6. On June 18, 2013, the Herbst Parties filed the Confession of Judgment and the

Stipulation of Nondischargeability (the “Confessed Judgment™) and the Confessed Judgment was

thereafter entered on the judgment roll of the Clerk of the State Court."
B. The Bankruptey.

T On June 20, 2013. following Paul Morabito’s defaults of the Settlement Agreement
and Forbearance Agreement.'” the Herbst Parties commenced an involuntary bankruptey against
Paul Morabito and CNC in the U.S. Bankruptey Court for the District of Nevada (the “Bankrupicy
Court")."

8. On December 17, 2014, the Bankruptey Court entered an order adjudicating Paul
Marabito a chapter 7 debtor.'”

9. Multiple parties have filed claims in the Bankruptey Court, ' inclusive of the Herbst
Parties’ $77 million claim based on the unsatisfied Confessed Judgment.'” There is currently no
bar date for Paul Morabito’s creditors to file their claims with the Bankruptey Court.”

10.  On April 30, 2018, the Bankruptcy Court entered judgment in favor of the Herbst
Parties, determining that their claim evidenced by the Settlement Agreement and Confessed
Judgment was nondischargeable under 11 U.S.C. § 523(a)(2), as the factual basis for the Confessed

Judgment met each of the elements of fraudulent inducement under Nevada law and

2 8F, 10; Exh. &, p. WL003105; Trans. 10/29/18, p. 69, 1. 2-9.

MSF, 1L Exh. 4.

¥ Trans. 10/29/18, p. 73, IL 3-4,

W SF, |12

WSF, 13-14.

8 Exh. 303 (identifying five claims, including a $4,232,980.52 claim from the Franchise Tax Board).
W See Exh. 303; Trans. 10/29/18, p. 74, I1. 7-13, and p. 78. . 19—p. 79, L. 9.

O Trans. 1 1/2/18.p. 114, 11, 15-18.
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nondischargecability under bankruptcy law.?' Paul Morabito appealed the nondischargeability
judgment, which appeal is pending.**
C. The Parties.

11.  The Herbst Parties have spent nearly $10 million in fees and costs in their attempt
to collect from Paul Morabito.”® Still, approximately $80 million of the Confessed Judgment
remains unsatisfied 2

12.  As part of their collection effort, on December 17, 2013, the Herbst Parties
commenced this action under NRS Chapter 112 (the "UFTA™) for fraudulent transfer against
transteror Paul Morabito, individually and as Trustee of his Arcadia Living Trust (“Arcadia
Trust™), as well as transferees Superpumper, Bayuk. individually and as trustee of his Bayuk Trust,
Sam Morabito, and Snowshoe.”

13.  Sam Morabito is Paul Morabito’s brother.”® Sam Morabito resides in Canada, and
is a former resident of Reno .

14.  Superpumper is an Arizona corporation that owns and operates gas stations and
convenience stores in Arizona.®® Consolidated Western Corporation, Inc., a Nevada corporation
(*CWC™) was the sole shareholder of Superpumper through September 28, 2010 when Sam
Morabito executed a Plan of Merger and Articles of Merger upon Bayuk™s consent on behalf of
CWC, and filed Articles of Merger of CWC into Superpumper with the States of Arizona and

*' SF, | 14: Exhs. 22 and 23, p. 11, 11, 14-18.

2 Id

B Trans, 102918, p. 78 1L 16-17: p. 78, 1. 22— p. 79, L. |3 p. 102, 11 11-231; p. 103, 11, 2-3.
¥ Trans. 10/29/18, p. 79, I1. 2-9.

BSF, M15
¥ SF, 1 18.
7 Trans. 10/31/18, p. 142, 1. 5; 145,11 305; p. 164, 11 16-19.
*8F, 1 36.
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Nevada on September 29, 2010, thereby effectuating CWC’s merger into Superpumper (the
“Merger”).”

15.  Prior to the Merger, CWC’s ownership was Paul Morabito -80%, Sam Morabito -
10% and Bayuk -10%.,”" and Paul Morabito, Bayuk and Sam Morabito cach had a role as director
and officer of Superpumper and CWC.*" After the Merger of CWC into Superpumper, both Bayuk
and Sam Morabito were directors and officers of Superpumper.*

16.  On September 29, 2010, Denniz Vacco. (“Vaeco™). joint counsel to Paul Morabito

and the Defendants,” formed Snowshoe, a New York corporation.®* for the purpose of acquiring
Paul Morabito's interest in CWC.3¥ Upon formation. Bayuk and Sam Morabito each owned 50%
of the equity in Snowshoe and were designated as directors.’® Snowshoe never had any other
business operations or investments other than as a holding company for Superpumper's equity.”’
17.  From 1997 through at least the Oral Ruling date, Bayuk could be characterized as
Paul Morabito’s long-time boyfriend or companion.*® The Bayuk Trust is Bayuk's self-settled
trust formed and existing for estate-planning purposes.” While Bayuk and Paul Morabito were
not registered as “domestic partners,” Bayuk intimated that was only the case because they could

not be married under Nevada or California law at that time.* Although Bayuk indicated that he |

#SF.  17: Exhs. 81-86.

WS 1138

H Trans. 10/29/18, p. 123, 11.20-22; p. 125, L 19— p. 126, | 6.
2GF, [11) 16-19, 37.

* Trans. 10/31/18, p. 90, 1. 19— p, 91, 1. 18.

“SF, I 40; Exh. 87

 Trans. 10/29/18, p. 148, 1. 21-24, p. 149, 1l. 1-7; Trans. 11/6/18, p. 159, IL. 1-3.
% 8F, [ 1 120,40; Exh. 87, p. 1.

7 Trans. 10/29/18, p. 185, 1. 14—p. 186, 1. 1.

#®SF, ' 19; Trans. 10/29/18, p. 110, 11. 5-9.

* Trans. 10/29/18, p. 143, 11. 13-18.

* Trans. 10/29/18, p. 120, 1. 18-24.
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and Paul Morabito separated in 2010," substantial evidence supports that there was a special close
personal relationship between Bayuk and Paul Morabito at the time of the Oral Ruling and
continuing thereafter even through the time of trial.

a Vacco testified that as far as he knew, Bayuk and Paul Morabito had an
ongoing relationship even afier the subject transfers.*

b. On September 18, 2010, Paul Morabito emailed Vacco regarding judgment
enforcement statutes and stated, 1 should declare my residence with [Bayuk] in Laguna Beach
asap..."" Consistent therewith, Paul Morabito and Bayuk moved from Reno to California.*

c. On September 23, 2010, Bayuk was added as a co-tenant on a West
Hollywood, California residence leased in the name of Paul Morabito, rendering Bayuk and Paul
Morabito jointly and severally liable for the lease obligations.*

d. On September 30, 2010, Paul Morabito executed an amendment and
restatement of the Trust Agreement for his self-settled Arcadia Trust, which described Bayuk as
Paul Morabito’s “boyfriend and longtime companion,” which Bayuk testified was true as of that
date.*® Bayuk was named the 70% beneficiary of the Arcadia Trust."

e. On April 13, 2012, Paul Morabito represented that “[Bayuk] is my former
long-time companion but we have a very strong personal relationship and he is my family and will
be the central person in my life for the rest of my life.™*®

f. Paul Morabito currently resides in a home located at 370 Los Olivos,

Laguna Beach, California (the “Los Qlivos Property”) along with his new boyfriend. The Los

" Trans. 10/29/18, p. 109, 11, 15-17.

* Trans. 11/6/18, p. 212, 1,23 - p. 213, L. 15,

3 Exh. 26; see alyo Exh. 29 (same, September 20, 2010); Exh. 32 (same, September 23, 2010).
B Trans. 10/29/18, p. 106, 11. 14-21,

% Exh. 35, p. 1, Sect. I.

16 Trans. 10/29/18, p. 147, 11 14 -23.

¥ Exh. 39, pp. RBSLO01877-1878, 1903, 1906.

% Exh. 134, p. LMWF SUPP 068536,
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Olivos Property is located adjacent to Bayuk’s current residence at 371 El Camino del Mar, Laguna

Beach, California (the “El Camino Property")." The Bayuk Trust owns both the Los Olivos

Property and the El Camino Property as Paul Morabito transferred his interests in both the Los
Olivos Property and the El Camino Property (along with all of the personal property in the Los
Olivos and El Camino Properties) {0 the Bayuk Trust following the Oral Ruling.

g Paul Morabito has been, and continues to be, financially supported by his
brother, Sam Morabito, as well as by Bayuk.”® Paul Morabito has possessed and used Bayuk’s
credit card with Bayuk paying the bills,” In addition, Bayuk pays Paul Morabito’s attorneys’ fees,
and other amounts as directed by Paul Morabito.*

h. During the Herbst Litigation and through the time of trial in this case, Paul
Morabito, Sam Morabito and Bayuk have had concurrent representation by the same counsel.”
18.  In addition to their close personal relationship hallmarked by Bayuk’s scemingly
unwavering support of Paul Morabito,™ Bayuk and Paul Morabito are also long-time business
partners.”” They co-owned multiple businesses before the Oral Ruling. Moreover, despite the
alleged purpose of the subject transfers being to “separate™ their financial interests, they co-owned
a husiness after the Oral Ruling 3
T9. On January 22, 2015, the Bankruptcy Court appointed Plaintiff as the trustee for

the bankruptcy estates of Morabito and CNC.7 On May 15, 2015, Plaintiff was substituted in

" Trans. 10/29/18, p. 107, 1. 10 —p. 108, L. 10.

% See Testimony of Paul Morabito, Deposition Trans, p. 27, 1L 10-16; p. 28, 1. 1-2; p. 31, 1L 7- p. 33,1, 24,
M Id. at p. 34, 1. 14-20.

52 Trans. 10/29/18, p. 188, 11. 19-23; p. 189, 1. 7-9; 10/30/18, p. 98,1.19—~p 99 1. 7.

* Trans. 10/30/18, p. 5. . 16— p.6. 1. 8.

 Trans., 10/30/18, p. 98, 1.4 - p. 99, 1. 7.

= 8E; 1 1

% See, ez, Testimony of Paul Morabito, Deposition Trans. p. 48, . 16-p. 49, |. 24; Exh. 134, p. LMWF
SUPP, p. 068536 (discussing Bayuk’s co-ownership of Virsenet, a company formed in 2011 or 2012).

1 8F, [ 21; Exh.19.
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place of the Herbst Parties in this case, and Paul Morabito and his revocable Arcadia Trust were
dismissed from the action with only transferees of Paul Morabito’s assets remaining in the case,’®
D. Immediately After the State Court’s Oral Ruling, Paul Morabito Implemented a

Plan to Delay, Hinder and Prevent Collection by the Herbst Parties.

20,  Within two days after the Oral Ruling, Paul Morabito had engaged at leasi two out-
oftstate law firms. Hodgson Russ LLP (attormeys-Garry Graber (“Graber™) and Sujata
Yalamanchili) and Lippes Mathias Wexler & Friedman (“LMWEF™) (attorneys-Vacco and
Christian Lovelace), for advice on how to evade the Herbst Parties’ judgment and to protect his
assets.™ In his email communications with lawyers from these firms,” Paul Morabito made clear
his intent to thwart the Herbst Parties” enforcement of the judgment by cutting his (and Bayuk’s)
ties with Nevada and moving to California, while also converting and moving the majority of his
assets that could be used to satisfy the Herbst Parties’ judgment outside of Nevada. !

21.  Graber of Hodgson Russ testified that he was engaged by Morabito to “protect his
assets and/or escape lability on account of the judgment.”™® When asked which assets, Graber
indicated “well, T think he was seeking to protect them all” and further specified that I believe
one of his principal assets which he expressed conecern was his stock and his equity interest in an

entity that was in the auto service business, | believe, and | believe that was this Superpumper

entity.”® When questioned regarding Paul Morabito’s intent, Graber testified “1 think he had an

38 SF, ' 22; Exh. 20.

# See Exh. 25 (Hodgson Ross indicating they had a number of ideas, “including a possible marital split
berween Paul [Morabito] and [Bayuk] pursuant to which [Bayuk] could retain some of Paul [Morabito’s]
assets” and Vaceo of LMWF following with diseussion of Paul Morabito selling his interest in CWC to
Bayuk and Sam Morabito).

0 Any attorney-client privilege was waived by Plaintiff. In addition, the privilege was deemed waived by
the crime/fraud exception. See this Court's order of 7/6/16 (approving a Report & Recommendations of the
Discovery Commissioner of 6/13/16).

! See Exhs. 26 (discussing moving to California) and 32 (*[Bayuk] and | plan on changing our primary
residence from Reno to Laguna Beach.™).

& Trans. [1/1/18, p. 29, 1. 13-18 and p. 30, 1]. 21-22.
 Trans. 11/1/18, p. 33, 1. 1-6.
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intent to avoid paying the judgment, whether that’s by winning on appeal or divesting himself of
his assets.”® Ultimately, afier Hodgson Russ attorneys advised Paul Morabito that he could not
simply transfer his assets for value, Paul Morabito terminated them, as he did not like the advice
that he was being provided.”

72, Paul Morabito utilized LMWF to complete the subject transfers. The same [irm also
concurrently represented Defendants. %

23, There is no evidence indicating that the subject transfers were contemplated before
the Oral Ruling. The subject transfers were substantially completed in 4 short window of
September 14, 2010 (the day after the Oral Ruling) to October 1, 2010, before any written order
on the Oral Ruling was entered.”

24. At no time prior to, or at the time of, the subject transfers did Paul Morabito or any
of the Defendants advise the Herbst Parties that Paul Morabito’s assets were being converted or
transferred, or any of the details of the subject transfers.**

75.  Paul Morabito’s email communications to his counsel contemporaneous with the
subject transfers were inconsistent with the proffered explanation for the subject transfers that his
goal was solely to separate out his interests from Sam Morabito and Bayuk once they were relieved
from liability in the Herbst Litigation.*® For example, in an email ta counsel dated September 20,
2010, Paul Morabito recognized that the transfers would be challenged in court at the same time

he described his intention to deprive the Herbst Parties of what he perceived to be the Herbst

Parties’ “home court, good old boy advantage.”™  In an email dated September 21, 2010, Paul

% Trans. 1 1/1/18, p. 46. 11 13-15.

% Trans, 1 1/1/18, p. 35. 11 6-14-

® Trans. 10/29/18, p. 140, 1. 8—p. 141, 1. 9.

7 Exhs. 45, 46, 61, 80.

6 Trans. 10/29/18, p. 62, 11 15-20 (on line 20, first sentence only); p. 63, 1l 4-12.
9 Deposition Testimony of Paul Morabito, Trans, p. 69, 1. 8-16.

W Exh. 29.
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Morabito discussed his intention to continue to be active in the business of Superpumper, save and
excepl 4 only an “advisor™ with ownership to be in the name of Sam Morabito and Bayuk."'
1 The S6.000.00 Cash er.

26. Immediately after the Oral Ruling, on September 14. 2010, Paul Morabito
transferred $6 million out of his bank account.”™ While this transfer is not the subject of Plaintiff’s
claims here, the pattern of Paul Morabito’s conduct in the same timeframe as the subject transfers
is still relevant as evidence of Paul Morabito’s intent. The story that Paul Morabito was merely
separating his assets from Bayuk and Sam Morahito in September 2010 15 belied by the transfer
of Paul Morabito's $6 million from his account immediately following the Oral Ruling.

2. The CWC/Superpumper Transfers.

70 Prior to the Oral Ruling, Paul Morabito communicated his opinion of the value of
Superpumper to the company”s auditors,™ as well as third-party potential business partners.”

28.  Subsequentto the Oral Ruling, at the same time that the subject transfers were being
contemplated, significant value was intentionally stripped out of CWC by Paul Morabito in
conjunction with Sam Morabito and Bayuk.

a. On August 13, 2010, which was just prior to the Oral Ruling but while the

Herbst Litigation was pending, CWC had $3 million in loan proceeds from a term loan obtained

Tl Exh. 30
2 Exh. 37, p. 4. MORABITO (341).005352.

7 Exh. 42 (May 5, 2000- $20 million value for 100% of equity in CWC): Exh. 43 (Mach 10, 2010- “nothing
has materially changed” with respect 1o Paul Morabito’s identified assets, including value).

" Exhs. 76. 77, 79. It is notable that in addition to both the State Court and the Bankrupicy Court finding
that Paul Morabiio had intentionally defrauded the Herbst Parties as the basis for their respective judgments
against Paul Morabito, Bayuk, Paul Morabito’s closest ally, admitted that Paul Morabito is not honest in
his dealings with third parties and is not trustworthy. (Trans. 10/31/18, p. 28, .24 =p. 31, 1. 2). Sam
Morabito also confirmed that Paul Morabito is not honest in his communications with third partics (Trans.
1031718, p. 236, |. 6 — p. 237, 1. 34). The Court is in the untenable position of being asked by Defendants
to believe Paul Morabito (and his agent, Yacco) with regard to his intentions with respect to the subject
transfers at the same time Defendants are asking the Court to disregard Paul Morabito’s representations that
there was significant value of the equity in Superpumper.

11
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from Compass Bank (the “Compass Loan™).”” On September 14, 2010, Paul Morabito, Sam
Morabito and Bayuk each took a $939,000 distribution from CWC,™ which together totaled almost
all of the $3 million in loan proceeds. On September 30, 2010, Sam Morabito and Bayuk cach
contributed $659,000 of their distribution monies back into Superpumper; however, Paul Morabito
did not contribute any portion of his $939,000 distribution.” Instead, Paul Morabito executed a
Term Note dated September 1, 2010, documenting a loan obligation from Paul Morabito to CWC
for $939.000 (the “$939.000 Note™).™

b. Prior to the Oral Ruling, Raffles, an insurance captive, was certificated in
CWC’s name (the “Raffles Asset™. The Raffles Asset was valued on September 30, 2010 at
$2.234,175."% On September 21, 2010, Paul Morabito paid Sam Morabito $355,000.00 and paid
Bayuk $420,250.*" Sam Morabilo and Bayuk testified that the purpose of these payments was for
Paul Morabilo to purchase Sam Morabito and Bayuk's interests in the Raffles Asset, There is no
documentation whatsoever reflecting the purpose of these September 2010 payments to Sam
Morabito and Bayuk. Further, it is undisputed that the title of the Raffles Asset was never
transferred out of the CWC name to Paul Morabito.®! and no one advised the Herbsts that any
distributions of the Raffles procceds they received would be payable to Paul Morabito,*

c. Then, CWC was merged into Superpumper.®® The effect of the Merger was

that amounts due to Superpumper from Paul Morabito and his affiliates were cancelled.* |

=8E, 1532,

WSE, 1138,

" Trans. 10/31/18,p. 126,122 -p. 127, 1. 2.

"8 Exh. 110.

™ Exh. 256; see alsa Exh. 44, WL004539 (identifying Raflles Asset value of $2,352.017)
80 Exh. 37, p. 4, MORABITO (341).005352.

8 Trans. 10/31/18, p. 96, 1, 6-21,

% Trans. 10/31/18, p. 101, 1. 3-10.

8 SF, 139,

M Exh, 144, p. 1. SPINO PAM 00000018
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Tnclusive, the $939,000 Note was cancelled. Paul Morabito had taken distributions over the years |
from Superpumper and those distributions were booked as loan receivables on the audited books
of Superpumper.®*

29.  The ability to quickly manipulate Superpumper’s financials in order to make it
appear as if the company had little value is consistent with Bayuk’s representation that Paul
Morabito is a “financial genius when it comes to understanding financing ™™

30.  On September 30, 2010, afier the distribution of the Compass Loan proceeds.
transfer of CWC’s right to distributions from the Rafiles Asset, and the cancellation of Paul
Morabito’s loan receivables due to Superpumper, Paul Morabito sold his 80% equity interest in
the merged CWC/Superpumper to Snowshoe pursuant to a Sharcholder Interest Purchase
Agreement (the “Superpumper Agreement™)."” As a result of this transfer (the “Superpumper
Transfer™), Sam Morabito and Bayuk each received 50% of Paul Morabito’s 80% equity interest
in Superpumper. On January 1, 2011, Bayuk and Sam Morabito transferred their respective 10%
interests in Superpumper to Snowshoe *

31. While Sam Morabito and Bayuk contend that the purpose of the Superpumper
Transfer, and related transactions, was for their exclusive benefit in order to separate their assets
from Paul®? the billing records from LMWF show that the entirety of the transactions was billed
to, and for the benefit, of Paul Morabito.”” There was no bill to Sam Morabito or Bayuk. Further,
Sam Morabito and Bayuk’s contention on the purpose of the transactions provides no rational
explanation for the Merger and the creation of a new company, Snowshoe, a New York

corporation, to be the transferee of Paul Morabito’s interest.

8 Trans, 11/1/18, p. 249, 1. 8 —p. 250, 1. 7.

% Trans. 10/20/18, p 225, II. 6-17.

8TSF, 41

BSF, | 42

¥ Trans. 10/29/18, p. 130, 1. 9-24; 10/31/18, p. 31, IL 8-1 1.
9 Exh. 294; Trans. 11/1/18, p. 10, L. 3 =p. 11, 1. 22,
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32, The Court finds the testimony and report of James McGovern, CPA/CCF, CVA. a
CPA and forensic accountant for over 35 years (“McGovern™),” credible and accepts his valuation
of the 100% equity interest in Superpumper as of September 30, 2010 at $13,050.000. placing Paul
Morabito's 80% interest as of September 30, 2010 at $10,440,000.%

33.  Through their joint counsel, Vacco, Paul Morabito, together with Bayuk, Sam
Morabito, and Superpumper, ordered an appraisal to support the transfer of Paul Morabito’s 80%
interest—consistent with Paul Morabito’s plan® to obtain appraisals to justify transfers intended
to divest himsell of any interest the Herbst Parties could attach. On October 13, 2010 (two weeks
after the Superpumper Agreement), Spencer Cavalier of Matrix Capital Markels Group, Inc.
(“Matrix™) completed a valuation of Superpumper in which he opined that the value of 100% of
the equity interest in Superpumper as of August 31, 2010 (one month before the Superpumper
Transfer date) was $6,484.514, which equates to $5,187,611.20 for Paul Morabito’s 80% interest
(the “Matrix Valuation™).

34.  The Matrix Valuation is nearly identical to McGovern's valuation,™ save and
expect that Matrix inexplicably adjusted accounts receivables due to Superpumper from Paul
Morabito and his affiliates (the “Insider Receivables™) lo zero™ while McGovern included the
Insider Receivables in his valuation.

35.  The decision on whether to include the Insider Receivables in the valuation of
Superpumper’s equity requires inquiry into whether the Insider Receivables can be repaid.’®

MecGovern relied on Superpumper’s audited financial siatements for 2009 to confirm his opinion

* Trans. 11/1/18. p. 111,11, 17-20,
" Exh. 91; Trans. 11/1/18, p. 123, 11.2 3.

% Exh. 20 (Paul Marabito’s September 20, 2010 email to Vacco and Yalamanchili: “selling for value™ will
be allowed™).

" Excluding the Insider Receivables (i.e., non-operating assets) from his valuation, McGovern’s valuation
of the Superpumper equity was $6,550.000. See Exh. 91, pp. 8, 11 and 19 of the McGovern report.,
MCGOVERN 00009, 12, and 20; see also Trans. 1 1/1/18, p. 137, 1I. 3-10.

" Exh. 2335, at Exhibit 7 of 14.
% Trans. 11/1/18, p. 125, 1I. 5-24.

14
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that the Insider Receivables should be included in the valuation of Superpumper’s equity, wherein
the auditors concluded the Insider Receivables were valid and collectible.”’ Defendants take issue
with the recognition of the Insider Receivables in determining the value of the Superpumper equity
in light of the fact that there were no notes introduced relative to a majority of the Insider
Receivables and the Merger wiped out the Insider Receivables in any event; however, the Court
finds that McGovern’s determination that the debt underlying the Insider Receivables was valid
and collectible is corroborated by the fact that before the end of 2010, new wrilten notes were
executed by Sam Morabito and Bayuk., without any new consideration, and placed on the
Superpumper books, and Sam Morabito and Bayuk certified that they had sufficient assets fo pay
the Insider Receivables obligations.”

36, To get to a lower value, LMWE, counsel (and therefore the agent) for Paul Morabito
and Defendants, reduced the Matrix Valuation™ by (1) $1,682,000 for the “Compass Term Loan™

(the “Compass Reduction™), despite the fact that the outstanding amounts of the Compass Term

Loan loaned to Superpumper’s members were supposed (o be repaid and indeed $1,318,000 had
been returned by Sam Morabito and Bayuk by September 30, 2010'™ and Paul Morabito executed
the $939,000 Note with a promise to repay his distributed $939,000,'" and (2) $1,680.880 for a
35% “risk reduction™ (the “Risk Reduction,” and together with the Compass Reduction, the

“Additional LMWF Reductions™). This resulted in an ultimate “acquisition value” for the

Superpumper Transfer of $2,497,307. There was no attempt to show how anyone at LMWF, a law

firm, was in any way qualified to determine or quantify the LMWF Reductions. The Risk

7 Id.; see also Exh. 42 (auditor’s notes verifying Paul Morabito had sufficient net assets to satisfy Compass
liquidity obligation and to support $7.2 million of receivables on Superpumper’s books): Exh. 118, at
GURSEY004850 (verifying the Inside Receivables were fully collectible): Trans. 11/1/18. p. 168, 1. 9—p.
169, 1. 3 (the lnsider Receivables were on curtent (due on demand) on the books and had not been written
off or otherwise indicated as uncollectible).

% Exhs. 105, 122-123, 126.

% Exh. 236

00 Trans. 10/31/18, p. 75, 1. 1-5; Trans. 11/1/18. p. 120, 1I. 15-22.
L] E-xh- 244.

15

9289




SR U T

w og =1 om0 n

10
11
12
13
14
5
16
17
18

20
21
2
23
24
25
26
27
28

Reduction was based, at least in part, on (1) the defaults under the Compass Term Loan and under
Superpumper’s real estate leases that are the result of the voluntary distributions of the Compass
Term Loan proceeds to Paul Morabito, Bayuk, and Sam Morabito on September 14, 2010 and the
Merger'" and (2) the risk that Bayuk and Sam Morabito would be sued for the fraudulent
transfers.'” Defendants fail 1o explain how defaults and fraudulent transfers they engineered
support a 35% “risk reduction,” particularly where purported defaults would not exist in an arms-
length sale to a third party. Furthermore, both McGovern and Mr. Cavalier testificd that they had
already considered risk when valuing the equity in Superpumper, which is reflected in their
discount rate.'™ Finally, whether or not there were actual defaults of Superpumper obligations as
a result of the Compass Loan distributions, the Oral Ruling. the Merger or otherwise, they did not
prove o be so material that they were not ultimately resolved.'”  Superpumper’s auditors
confirmed that Compass was even prepared to refinance the existing obligation upon receipt of the
2010 audited financials.'™

37.  The Court reviewed the testimony of Michele Salazar (“Salazar™). Salazar did not
perform a valuation of Superpumper,'” but rather she criticized the Matrix Valuation and
McGavern’s report as purportedly incorrect. Ultimately, Salazar has two primary criticisms of the
reports. neither of which is supported. First, Salazar disagreed with Mr. Cavalier's capitalization
rate in the Matrix Valuation and McGovern's discount rate because. according the Salazar, they

failed to take into account company specific risks,'® However, both Cavalier'™ and McGovem'"

02 Trans, | 1/6/18, p. 253, 1. 21 —p. 255, 1. 21,
W Trans, 11/6/18, p. 173, 11 5-8.

9 Trans, | 1/1/18, p. 120, 12- p. 122, I. 23 (14.2% discount rate- McGovern); Trans. 11/6/18, p. 282, 11. 13
—p. 284, 1. 5 (13.25% to 13.4% capitalization rate- Matrix).

195 Exhs. 27 and 33; Trans. 10/31/18, p. 122, 11, 16-22.

1 Trans, 1171718, p. 253.1. 16— p. 254, 1. 9.

"W Trans. 11/5/18, p. 101, 1. 17 —p. 102, 1. 2.

W8 Trans. 11/5/18, p. 60, L 16—p.63,1. 18;p.93,1.24 —p. 94,1, 13.

" Trans. 11/6/18, p. 282, 1. 19— p. 286, | 17,

10 Trans, 11/1/18, p. 122, 11, 6-23; Exh. 91, McGovern 000018 and McGovern 000053-75.
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testified as to the company specific risks they applied and tellingly, both came up with similar
rates. Second, Salazar criticized McGovern for including the Insider Receivables in his valuation
because. according to Salazar. there were no written notes and, as a result, the Insider Receivables
could not be found to be valid and colleetible.'!! Salazar’s conclusion is directly contradicted by
the testimony of Gary Kraus. Superpumper’s auditor, who confirmed the Insider Receivables were
valid and collectible obligations.''?

38.  Immediately following the 2016 deposition of Jan Friederich, a witness designated
by Defendants as a rebuttal expert on the value of Superpumper’s equity, Snowshoe transferred its

equity to Supermesa Fuel & Merc, LLC (“Supermesa™), an entity affiliated with Mr. Friederich,'"

As Mr. Friederich stood to benefit from a lower valuation, his testimony is not helpful to the Court
in determining the value of Superpumper’s equity and his related testimony was accordingly given
no weight by the Court.

39.  The ultimate $2.5 million valuation for Paul Morabito’s 80% interest is further
belied by Sam Morabito’s and Bayuk's own financial statements that they provided to
Superpumper’s auditors on February 1, 2011, just four months after the transfer. that represent
their respective 50% equity interests as valued at $4,514.869, for a total combined value of
Superpumper as of February 1,2011 of $9,029,738."'" Bayuk testified that this was his good faith
statement of what the value of his 50% interest was as of February 1, 2011.'17

40.  As of the September 30, 2010 date of transfer of Paul Morabito’s 80% equity
interest in Superpumper to Snowshoe, pursuant to the Superpumper Agreement, Snowshoe was

required to pay Paul Morabito $1,035,094 in cash. While Paul Morabito received $1.035,068 wire

on October 1, 2018, there is no proof that such payment reflects the cash payment for the

" Trans. 11/5/18, p. 48,1.22—-p 49,118

2 Teans, 11/1/18, p. 222, 1. 23 —p. 225, 1. 18: see also Exh. 118, p. GURRSEY 004850 (auditor confirmation
that they were fully collectible).

" Trans. 11/5/18,p.37,1.9-p. 38, 1. 9.
"W Exh. 126.
S Trans. 10/29/18, p. 236, II. 8-11.
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Superpumper equity and such evidence would be inconsistent with Paul Morabito’s swomn
testimony to the Bankruptey Court that he only received $342,000 for his equity in
Superpumper.''® In any event, under any opinion of value, even if the $1,035,094 were received,
that is not reasonably equivalent value for Paul Morabito’s interest.

41. Subsequent to the execution of the Superpumper Agreement, Snowshoe became
obligated for an additional $1,462.213 to Paul Morabito, as set forth in a $1,462.213 term note
from Snowshoe to Paul Morabito (the “$1.462.213 Note™) dated November 1, 2010.'"7 The
51,462.213 Note required Snowshoe to make monthly payments commencing on December |,
2010 in the amount of $19,986.71 for 84 months, with interest accruing at 4.0% per annum.''®
There were no payments made on the $1,462.213 Note. and on February |, 20! 1. the Snowshoe
obligation to Paul Morabito under the $1.462,213 Note was cancelled and a successor note from

Snowshoe to Paul Morabito in the amount of $492.937 was executed (the “$492.937 Successor

Note™)''? at the same time a successor note from Snowshoe to Superpumper (purportedly reflecting
the amount of the $939,000 Note that had been cancelled at the time of the Merger) in the amount
of $939,000 was executed (the 939,000 Successor Note™),'*"

42, Thereisno record of payment from Snowshoe to Paul Morabito due under the terms
of the Superpumper Agreement, the $1,462.213 Note or the $492,937 Successor Note. Likewise,
there is no record of payment of the $939,000 Successor Note from Snowslioe to Superpumper.
Sam Morabito conceded that, post-merger, it would not matler if there were papered obligations
between Snowshoe and Superpumper because Snowshoe has no funds other than what

Superpumper generated.'”' Finally, other than $542,000 Paul Morabito reported to have received,

H8'Exh. 233.

N7SF, - 43,

NESF. 44

' Ex. 104; Trans. 10/31/18, p. 217, 1. 6-16.
120 Ex. 1035,

2 Trans. 10/31/18, p. 109, 11 7-11.
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the details of which are unknown, any remainder due to him on account of notes was unequivocally
“cancelled ™%

43, Contrary to Paul Morabito's representation to the Bankruptey Court, Sam Maorabito
testified that he paid the $492,937 Successor Note obligation when he transferred $560,000 to
LMWF on November 28, 2011 at the direction of Paul Morabito.'™ Not only does the amount
paid by Sam Morabito not correspond with the $492.937 Successor Note or any identifiable
obligation from Sam Morabito. there is no record of any satisfaction of the $492.937 Successor
Note obligation in the Snowshoe books and records. including on Snowshoe’s tax returns or
amended tax returns.'® There is no evidence of a capital contribution by Sam Morabito to
Snowshoe for the payment, nor is there a corresponding capital contribution by Bayuk.'
Furthermore, Sam Morabito’s testimony that Vacco contacted him and told him the amount was
due is contradicted by the communication from Paul Morabito instructing Sam Morabito to transfer
funds'?® and also Vaceo’s testimony that he had no knowledge as to whether the amounts due
under the $492,937 Successor Note were paid.'*’

44,  In light of the evidence presented, inclusive of no corresponding payments, the
Court finds that the $1.462,213 Note and the $492,937 and $939,000 Successor Note obligations
were contrived in order to give the appearance of an arms-length exchange of value.

i Paul Morabito’s Equity in the Real Properties.
45.  Immediately prior to the Oral Ruling, Paul Morabito and Bayuk, through their

respective trusts, owned three real properties improved with homes as tenants in common: 2

2 Ex 107, 910,
23 Trans. 10/31/18, p. 13, 1. 21 —p. 115, 1. 5.

M Trans, 10/31/18, p. 246, L. 18-p. 249, 1. |1,
135 Trans. 10/31/18, p. 131, 1. 18 —p. 132, 1. 19.
12 Exh, 140.

1 Trans. 11/6/18, p. 181,1.22—p. 182, 1. 8.
RESE. (1 75,
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a. Paul Morabito owned 75% of the El Camino Property and Bayuk owned 25%.'%

b. Paul Morabito and Bayuk each owned 50% of the Los Olivos Property.' 30

¢. 8355 Panorama Drive, Reno, Nevada (the “Panorama Property,” and together

with the El Camino Property and the Los Olivos Property (the “Laguna Properties™), the “Real
Properties”). aul Morabito owned 70% and Bayuk owned 30% of the Panorama Property.'!

46. On September 27, 2010, Paul Morabito and Bayuk executed a Purchase and Sale
Agreement, which was amended September 28, 2010 (as amended, the “Real Properties
Agreement™). for the transfer of their respective interests in the Real Properties, as well as all of
their personal property located at the Real Properties. which all went to Bayuk.'** The Real
Properties Agreement was prepared by one lawyer on behalf of both Bayuk and Paul Morabito.'*
Pursuant to the Real Properties Agreement, Paul Morabito sold his interests in the Laguna
Properties to Bayuk in exchange for Bayuk's 30% interest in the Panorama Propertly and a payment
of $60.117.00."*

47, According to Paul Motrabito and Bayuk, the equity in the Laguna Properties at the
time of the transfers on October 1, 2010 was $1,933,595; the equity in the Los Olivos Property
was valued at $854,954 and the equity in the El Camino Property was valued a1 $1,078,641.'*
Paul Morabito’s interests in the Laguna Properties therefore had an aggregale value of
approximately $1,236,457.75, and Bayuk’s interests in the Laguna Properties had an aggregate

value of approximately $697,137.25," Plaintiff did not dispute these values."’

9 pd,

13 fd.

(K] fﬂ'.

B2 gF, | 24; Exhs. 45-46.

53 Trans. 10/30/18, p. 89, (1. 21-23.
134 Exhs. 45, 26, 233 .

B QF, 1 25-26.

136 fef

137 f-t'i
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48.  Paul Morabito and Bayuk obtained an appraisal of the Panorama Property from
Darryl Noble, who is not an MAL'™® Mr. Noble opined that the Panorama Property had a purported
fair market value as of October 1, 2010 (the approximate date of the transfer) of $4.3 million. Mr.
Noble relied heavily on the cost approach, focusing on the cost of the home and its significant

improvements.'**

Mr, Noble's conclusion of value was within the range of values suggested lo
him by Paul Morabito.'""

40, As of the date of transfer, there had never been a sale of a home in excess of $4
million in Reno, and there was no sale for more than $3.35 million in the year preceding the
transfer.'"*! Whereas the transfer of the Panorama Property occurred on October 1, 2010, the $3.35
million sale which Mr. Noble used in his sales comparison approach eccurred in September 2009,
before the residential real estate market significantly worsened.'*? The sale prices of other
properties on which Mr. Noble relied as comparables were not adjusted to account for significant
differences, such as finished basements, or the significant deterioration in the residential real estate
market throughout late 2009 and 2010. The sale price of one comparable was incorrectly reporied
in the appraisal.'® Accordingly, the comparables on which Mr. Noble relied in his sales
comparison apptoach do not support the concluded value. These errors were the result, at least in

part, of the haste with which Mr. Noble was required to conduct the appraisal at the insistence of

Paul Morabito.™

¥ Exh, 276, Although another appraiser from Mr, Noble who is an MAI signed off on the appraisal report,
no evidence was presented of his involvement in the assignment beyond reviewing and signing the report.

9% Exh. 276, Trans. 11/6/18 , p. 32, Il 3-13; p. 83. 1. 23 —p. 84, . 2; see Trans. 1 1/2/18, p. 16, |. 14-p. 18,
I. 2 (Mr. Kimmel testifying that the cost approach is used to determine replacement cost by valuing the
property and deducting depreciation, including physical depreciation, functional depreciation, and
externalities such as economic factors.).

M Bxh. 276, Trans. 11/6/18, p. 65, 1.2 —p. 65, L. 14,

" Trans. 11/6/18, p. 79,1, 18—p. 80, L. 8.

" 1d.; Trans. 11/6/18, p. 79, 11 16-21.

"3 Trans. 11/6/18. p. 77, 1.3 = p. 78. 1. 14; Ex. 277 at Superpumper 001124,
¥4 Trans. 11/6/18, p. 83, .9—-p. 83, . 8.
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50.  Moreover. the Courl finds that Mr. Noble was focused on the undisputed significant
cost of improvements o the Panorama Property, without regard o the devastated real estate market
in October 2010, Indeed, in the cost approach, Mr. Noble's appraisal made no downward
adjustment at all for functional obsolescence resulting from overimprovement or for external
obsolescence, including the realities of the depressed real estate market at that time. Rather, Mr.
Noble increased his conclusion of value by at least 25% more than the amount suggested by a
calculation of replacement costs under the cost approach in order to arrive at a valuation of $4.3

million, an amount consistent with the value suggested to him by Paul Morabito. '

51.  Consistent with the opinion of long-time Reno appraiser William Kimmel, MAL'#
SREA," the Court finds that the devastated local real estate market'*® had a greater impact on the
valuation of real property in October 2010 than the cost of a home or its improvements.'™ The
Court therefore agrees with Mr. Kimmel’s appraisal of the Panorama Property. which relied
primarily on the sales comparison approach,'® determining a fair market value of $2,000,000 as
of September 30, 2010, before deducting $1,028.864 in secured debt. The Court’s finding is not
based on. but is supported by, the subsequent sale of the Panorama Property for £2,584.000 to a
third-party purchaser in December 2012.'"

52.  Aspart of the Real Property Agreement, Paul Morabito provided a credit to Bayuk

in the amount of $45.000 for certain water rights associated with the Panorama Property and

3 Trans. 11/6/18, p. 70, 1. 18=p. 71, 1. 2.

46 Trans. 11/2/18, p. 7, 1. 5-6 {since 1968).

"7 Trans. 11/2/18, p. 7, 11, 8-9, 18 (Senior Residential Real Estate Aunalyst/Appraiser).
%8 Trans, 1 1/2/18, p. 17, 0L 14-15, and p. 21, . 19-p. 22, L. 1.

% Trans, | 1/2/18, p. 18, Il, 11-15; see also Trans. 1 1/2/18, p. 20, I 1- p. 21, |. 6 (explaining that there were
reporled issues with the home in 2016; however, those did not change Mr. Kimmel's opinion of value
because the reported condition of the improvements was communicated years after the October 1, 2010
retrospective date of valuation).

10 Exh. 53; Trans. 11/2/18, p. 15,1 16— p. 19, 1. 13; p. 85, IL. 5-8.
B! Trans. 11/2/18, p. 22, 11. 8-15
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$150,000 for theatre equipment purportedly located in the Panorama Property,'™ though neither
Paul Morabito nor Bayuk obtained a valuation of the alleged water rights'™ or theatre
equipment, '™

53.  Thus. Paul Morabito transferred his interests in the Laguna Properties worth
$1.236,457.75 in exchange for Bayuk's imterests in the Panorama Property worth only
$291.340.80, plus $60,117.00."" resulting in a difference of $884,999.95.

4. Paul Morabite's 50% Equiiy Interest in Baruk Properties, LLC.

54,  Prior to the Oral Ruling, Paul Morabito and Bayuk each owned 50% of a real estate
holding company called Baruk Properties, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company (“Baruk
LLC™.""* Baruk LLC owned four real properties (the “Baruk Properties™):

a. 1461 Glenneyre, Laguna Beach, CA (*1461 Glenneyre”). a commercial
properly with a stipulated appraised value of $1.4 million as of September 30, 2010:'%7

b. 570 Glenneyre, Laguna Beach, CA (“570 Glenneyre™). 8 commercial
property with an appraised value of $2.5 million as of September 30, 2010, or §1,129.021 after
deduction for the mortgage on property; '™

g 1254 Mary Fleming, Palm Springs, CA (the “Palm Springs Property”™), a
home with an appraised value of approximately $1,050.000 as of September 30, 2010, or $705,079

after deduction for the mortgage;'*” and

152 Ex. 247,

' Trans, 1030/18, p. 138, 1l. 2-19.

'*4 Trans, 10/30/18, p. 158, 1. 20 —p. 159, . 7.
155 Exhs. 46, 233.

136.GF, 7,29,
\51.8F; 17-23.
158 1.
1% Id.
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d. 49 Clayton Place, Sparks, NV (the “Clayton Property™), a vacant property

with an appraised value of approximately $73,000 as of September 30, 2010.'%°

55, Accordingly, Paul Morabito’s 50% interest in the Baruk Properties had a value of
at least $1,654,550.

56. On October 1, 2010, Paul Morabito transferred his 50% membership interest in
Baruk LLC to Bayuk pursuant to a Membership Interest Transfer Apgreement (the “Baruk
Transfer™),'®!

57. Immediately afier the Baruk Transfer, on October 4, 2010, Baruk LLC, a Nevada
entity, was merged into a newly formed entity owned 100% by the Bayuk Trust called Snowshoe

Properties, LLC, a California limited liability company (“Snowshoe Properties™),'® thereby

transferring the assets owned by Baruk Properties to Snowshoe Properties.

58.  Snowshoe Properties is solely owned by the Bayuk Trust, Bayuk, through the
Bayuk Trust, converted Snowshoe Properties from a California limited liability company 1o a
Delaware limited liability company during the pendency of this litigation.'®

59.  On November 2, 2010, Bayuk transferred the Palm Springs Property from
Snowshoe Properties to the Bayuk Trust.'®

60, Following this series of transfers, the Bayuk Trust owned 100% of 1461 Glenneyre,
570 Glenneyre. and the Clayton Property indirectly through Snowshoe Properties. and directly
owned 100% of the Palm Springs Property.'%*

61.  The Membership Interest Transfer Agreement required that in exchange for Paul

Morabito’s 50% interest in Bayuk LLC, Bayuk deliver a promissory note in the principal amount

160 Id

BVEF, 1] 30

B2 SF, 11113132,

'3 Trans. 10/31/18, p. 26, Il. 1-14; p. 27, IL. 16-19.
2 R

165 SF, | © 34.
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of $1.617.050 to Paul Morabito (the “Baruk Note™).'™ The terms of the Baruk Note required
principal and interest payments in equal monthly installments of $7.720.04 over 360 months,
accruing interest at 4.0%.'%’

62, There was no evidence of any payments corresponding with the terms of the Baruk
Note. Bayuk's own records don't support alleged repayment. Specifically, Bayuk produced
“ledgers” purporting to show payments to Paul Morabito under the Baruk Note.'™ These ledgers
and supporting documents'® are not credible as showing repayment of the Baruk Note for several
reasons, including: (i) they include payments 1o Kim's Marble, Doheny Builder Supplier, Geo
Technical, American Vector, Mark Paul Designs, Bead Painting, and Atlas Sheet Metal that were
made for construction on Los Olivos after Paul Morabito’s interests in the Real Properties were
transferred,'™ (ii) $341.952.69 was credited for payment of the Chase mortgage on the Palm
Springs Property, which was already taken into account in the valuation of the Palm Springs
Property;'"" (iii) certain payments occurred or were applicable to expenses incurred prior lo the
date of the $1,617,050 Note;'” (iv) Bayuk had no knowledge as to the purpose of $105,084.09 of
payments for “Comerica” and believed it was on the ledger in error;'” and (v) they include a
$50,000 credit for the Clayton Property that was purportedly applied on October 4, 2010,'™ despite

Bayuk’s testimony that he did not recognize that the Clayton Property was owned by Baruk LLC

until years later when it was used to settle a lawsuit from Desi Moreno against Paul Morabito.!”

165 GF, I'} 35.

167 ‘fﬂl.

169 Exhs, 71 and 73,

199 Exh. 271.

™ Trans. 10/31/18, p. 50, 1. 20 — p. 52, 1. 20; p. 56, L. 19—p, 58, 1. 2.
"™ Trans. 10/31/18, p. 52,1.21 —=p. 55,1.19.

" Trans. 10/31/18, p. 56, . 22— p. 57, I. 15;

" Trans. 10/31/18, p.. 58,1. 10—p. 59,1, 7.

"M Exh. T3.

3 Trans, 10/31/18, p. 64, 1. 19—p. 65, . 1. p. 65, |. 14 —p, 66, |. 8.
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63.  On October 31, 2010, with an effective date of Oclober 1, 2010, Paul Morabito
assigned the Baruk Note to Woodland Heighis, Lid., a Canadian entity, and executed an allonge,
purportedly in exchange for a 20% ownership interest in Woodland Heights, Ltd. (the “Woodland
Assirnment™).'™ Bayuk purported (o not even know of the Woodland Assignment. and testified

T

he never paid payments pursuant to the Woodland Assignment.'” Thus, it appears that the
Woodland Assignment was a sham designed to further hinder the Herbst Parties from enforcing
their judgment against Paul Morabito’s interest in the $1,617.050 Note.

5. Watchmyblock.

64, On October 1, 2010, Paul Morabito alse transferred his 90% interest in
Watchmyblock LLC, a Nevada limited liahility company, to Bayuk, the other 10% owner.'”®

65. Watchmyblock, LLC was a Nevada limited liability company at the time of
transfer, but Bayuk changed it to a New York entity at the time of the transfer.'™

66, Paul Morabito valued his equity in Watchmyblock, LLC at $2.250,000,"*0 yet
transferred that same equity to Bayuk in exchange for $1.000. Although PlaintifT is not seeking to
avoid the Watchmyblock transfer in this case, the transfer 1s further evidence of Paul Morabito’s
motive and intent to move his assets out of the Herbst Parties” reach.
E. Paul Morabito Continued to Control the Transferred Interests After the Transfers.

67.  Contrary to Defendants” denial of Paul Morabito’s continuing interest and control
over Superpumper and Snowshoe following the Superpumper Transfer, substantial evidence
establishes that Paul Morahito retained control and continued to receive henefits. Beginning in
October of 2015—over five years after Defendants allege Paul Morabito ceased to have any

involvement or financial interest in Superpumper—and continuing through Mareh 2018,

1 Exh, 68; see alse Exh, 44, WL004540 (Salazar describes the assignment and purported value provided
o Paul Morabito by Woodland Heights, Ltd. in return).

" Trans. 10/30/18, p. 81, 11, 1-8; p. 82, 11. 11-14,

'™ Trans. 10/31/18, p. 64, |, 24 —p. 65, |. 2; Exh. 163.
" Exh, 164; Trans. 10/31/18, p. 65.1. 3 - 4.

¥ Exhs. 42, 43.
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Snowshoe paid more than $126.000 of Paul Morabito’s personal legal expenses to the law firm of
Robison, Sharp, Sullivan & Brust (“RSSB™). joint counsel to Paul Morabito and Defendants.'®!
Indeed, the majority of Paul Morabito’s legal fees in his personal bankruptcy case between May
of 2017 and March of 2018 were paid by Snowshoe.'®

68, Defendants attempted to conceal these payments. The centerpiece of Defendants’
case-in-chief was Defendants’ contention that the subjeet transfers were a “good faith™ atlempt to
maintain separateness of Sam Morabito’s and Bayuk's assets from those of Paul Morabito. As
part and parcel of this defense. Defendants sought to minimize Paul Morabito’s continued direction
of Superpumper’s business as mere “whiteboarding™'** or an altruistic aitempt io help Bayuk and
Sam Morabito in their new endeavor. To maintain this fiction, Defendants failed to disclose the
payments by Snowshoe during discovery or in trial, and Defendants™ counsel actively avoided
disclosing the payments until afier the close of evidence.'™ During trial, Defendanis testified that
Paul Morabito had no interest or economic stake in Snowshoe, and Bayuk expressly denied that

135 or that Snowshoe paid any of Paul Morabito's

Snowshoe gave any money to Paul Morabito
attorneys” fees, "0
69. Defendants Snowshoe, Superpumper, and Sam Morabito. along with their joint

counsel, knew Bayuk’s testimony was false both when it was offered'®” and when Defendants

'8l Exhis. 308 (Detail Payment Transaction File List at RSSB_000001-RSSE_000002) and 309 (Declaration
of Frank C. Gilmore).

& Exh. 308 at RSSB_000002.

181 Trans. 10/31/18, p. 236, 1. 21 —p. 237, 1. 1} Trans, 11/1/18, p. 21, Il. 4-14; Trans., 1 1/6/18, p. 199, 1. 3 —
p. 200, 1. 21,

181 RSSB’s billing records were the subject of a pending subpoena in Paul Morabito’s bankruptey case.
Exh. 305 (Aug. 27, 2018 Subpoena to RSSB). RSSB failed to comply with the subpoena until an order
compelling compliance was entered by the Bankruptey Court. Exhs. 306 (Aug. 30, 2018 letter from F.
Gilmaore to M. Weisenmiller), 307 (Bankruptey Court’s order compelling RSSB's compliance).

"% Trans. 10/29/18, p. 206, 1.3 —p. 207, 1. 1.
"% Trans. 10/29/18, p. 189, 11. 14-17;

87 Snowshoe made the payments to RSSB for Paul Morabito's attorneys” fees, and RSSB, joint counsel to
Defendants and Paul Morabito, accepted and applied the payments. Exh. 308, 309.
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relied upon it in closing argument and post-trial submissions'® in support of their contention that
Paul Morabito had no interest or involvement in Snowshoe. Defendants offered no explanation
for their false testimony after Plaintiff introduced evidence of the Snowshoe payments.

70.  In addition to receiving concrete financial benefits from Snowshoe in the years
following the Superpumper Transfer, substantial evidence established that prior to the subject
transfers. Paul Morabito developed a scheme to continue to control the transferred assets and use
them for his benefit while concealing his interest by having his brother and Bayuk hold title. and
that following the transfers, he in fact retained significant control of the transferred assets
(including Superpumper, the Baruk Properties, and Los Olivos) and used them for his benefit as if
he still owned them.

71.  Prior to the Superpumper Transfer, on September 21, 2010, Paul Morabito emailed
his counsel, Vacco, and a third party potential business partner, Kevin Cross of Cerberus
California, LLC. to advise that he “would no longer be actively seeking to accumulate assets in
companies that |he was] a shareholder in, and instead would be acting as an advisor to amongst
other entities, Snowshoe Petroleum LLC, a company to be owned and operated by [his] brother,
Sam: Edward Bayuk, and Dennis Vacco...”'®

72.  Consistent with Paul Morabito’s plan, following the Superpumper Transfer, Paul
Morabito continued to utilize the transferred assets as if he still owned them. Paul Morabito
remained active and involved with respect to the Superpumper business by, among other things,
(1) providing advice; (2) directing Superpumper and Snowshoe's auditors and accountants with
respect to handling questions related to Superpumper’s financials. and (3) remaining a guarantor

for the Spirit leases.'”™"

"% Trans, |11/26/18, p. 132, Il. 5-15 (arguing that Paul Morabito received no payments following the
Merger); [Defendants’ Proposed| Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Judgment (submitted Nov. 26,
2018), at para. 101 (*Afier the merger and acquisition, Paul had no control, management, or economic stake
in Snowshoe.™).

%9 Exh. 30.
190 Exh. 144; Trans. 10/29/18, p. 192, I 5-22; p. 202, . 2-10; p. 224, | 24 - p. 225, |, 17.
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73.  OnApril 11, 2011, Paul Morabito sought to negotiate a sale on behalf of Snowshoe.
Specifically. Snowshoe sought to acquire Mella Oil Company, LLC and Flyers LLC (the “Nella
Deal™).'”" Paul Morabito had commenced discussions with Nella prior to the Superpumper
Transfer.'”® The April 11. 2011 proposal included the contribution of Snowshoe's 100% interest
in Superpumper. “valued at $10,000,000.” Despite having no ownership interest in Snowshoe,
Paul Morabito negotiated on behalf of Snowshoe without the involvement of Bayuk or Sam
Morabito, and admitted that he had simply changed the name on a loan required for the deal from
CWC to Snowshoe.'"

74. In August 2011, Paul Morabito retained Tim Hayes, a real estate broker, on behalf

of Superpumper Properties, LLC (“Superpumper Properties™), a company apparently owned by
Paul Morabito which is distinet from Superpumper.'™ However, Vacco instructed Morabito,
without copying Bayuk or Salvatore, to simply use Superpumper to make payment o conceal the
payment from the Herbst Parties.'”

75.  In November 2011, despite previously transferring his interest in Baruk LLC to
Bayuk, Paul Morabito sought to use the assets of Snowshoe Properties (the successor to Baruk
LLC) to settle a lawsuit against him. '

6. When the sham of the sale to Bayuk became inconvenient, Paul Morabito advised
Vacco to just undo it—to cancel the Baruk Note. convert it back into a 50% share interest in
Snowshoe Properties, and to give Paul Morabito the right to trigger an option to split the assets so

that Morabito would own 1461 Glenneyre and Bayuk would own 570 Glenneyre.'”

" Exhs. 131-133, 135

12 See Exh. 30.

¥ Exh. 132.

™ Trans. 10/31/18, p. 239, 1. 17 —p. 240, 1. 17.
195 Exhs. 136, 137.

1% Exhs 143, 146,

17 Exh, 70

29

9303




g W3 R

T In February 2012, Paul Morabito, through Vacco and Timothy Haves, sought to
negotiate a third-party sale of 1461 Glenneyre'™ and to prepare a master lease with the new buyer

199 without any

for Snowshoe Capital, a company owned by Paul Morabito, for the property,
invalvement by Bayul.

78.  Later, in September 2012, in connection with a settlement of Paul Morabita's
lawsuit with Bank of America, which had nothing to do with Bayuk, Paul Morabilo caused a deed
of trust to be placed on 1461 Glenneyre. Vacco simply instructed Bayuk when and where to sign
for Paul Morabito, which Bayuk did.*®

79.  Similarly. in Septecmber of 2012, Bayuk instructed his and Paul Morabito’s counsel
that he would sign a second deed of trust Paul Morabito wanted to put on the Mary Fleming
House®' in connection with funding for Virsenet, an entity in which Bayuk and Paul Morabito
held joint interests.>*

80.  On October 3. 2012, Morabito instructed Vacco and Christian Lovelace, another
lawyer at LMWF, regarding negotiation of a $5 million loan to Snowshoe Properties—in which
Morabito supposedly held no interest—without including Bayuk.”%

81.  Ulimately, Paul Morabito and Bayuk finalized the $5 million loan and a first deed
of trust was placed on 1461 Glenneyre and a Second Deed of Trust was placed on 570

Glenneyre,*"

198 Exh. 142.

") Exh. 142; Trans. 10/30/18.p. 28, 1. 9—p. 29, L1.
M0 Exhs. |45-148, 225,

01 Exh. 150,

2 Trans. 10/31/18, p. 35, 11. 29,

% Exh. 151

‘M Exh. 151; Trans, 10/30/18, p. 35, 1. 5—p. 38, |. 16.
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82. The funds loaned, and secured by the Glenneyre Properties, were used, in part, to
pay for Paul Morahito’s obligations including over $700,000 to satisfy Paul Morabito’s obligation
to Bank of America.”"?

£3. In March 2013, nearly three years after the Superpumper Transfer. Paul Morabito
was still bargaining with Superpumper. For example. Paul Morabito proposed a settlement with
the Herbst Partics whereby he would transfer Superpumper to the Herbst Parties in partial
satisfaction of the judgment. Though Bayuk and Sam Morabito supposedly owned Superpumper
at that point through Snowshoe. neither was included in these discussions.?*®

84,  In March 2014, Paul Morabito caused Bayvuk to transfer the Clayton Property to

Desi Moreno without any value to Bayuk,*

85.  Paul Morabito’s continued control makes clear that the intent of the transfers was
not to separate Sam Morabito’s and Bayuk’'s interests from Paul Morabito’s interests, as Bayuk
and Sam Morabito now comtend. There was never any separation that one would expect in an |
arms-length transaction; rather, the Parties remained very much interiwined, and the only |
difference following the transfers was that the transferred assets were now out of the Herbst
Parties” reach.

F. Paul Morabito Rendered Himself Judgment-Proof.

86. By the transfers at issue in this action, along with other transfers, Paul Morabito
effectively transferred all or substantially all of his assets prior to any enforceable judgment even
being entered against him, which is confirmed by Michele Salazar®s net worth report submitted in
the punitive damages phase of the Herbst Litigation,”™ the subject iransfers rendered Paul

Morabito insolvent. unable 1o satisfy his obligation to the Herbst Parties.

20 Trans, 10/21/18, p. 68, 1L 13-15.
B Exh. 153,
™ Trans. 10/30/18, p. 66, 1I. 1-12.

205 Exh. 44. Notably. the report was from March 201 1, wel| afier the subject transfers had been finalized,
There is no evidence presented of any disclosure of Paul Morabito’s holdings or the detail of the transfer
prior to, or at the time of, the subject transfers.
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§7.  Although there was testimony presented from Bayuk®® and attorney Vacco®'? that
the transfers of Paul Morabito’s interests to Bayuk after the Oral Ruling were for the purpose of
separating Bayuk’s interests from Paul Morabito, that testimony is belied by the fact that Bayuk
and Paul Merabito co-owned new companies subsequent to the Oral Ruling. For instance, as of
April 2012, Bayuk was co-owner of a company with Paul Morabito called Virsenet.?'!

1L
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

Al Plaintiff has standing to assert a claim for fraudulent transfer under NRS Ch. 112.

l. Paul Morabito became a “debtor” no later than December 3, 2007*'% and remains a
debtor under NRS 112.150(6).24

2 The Herhst Parties were “creditors™ under NRS 112.150(4) no later than December
3, 2007, and they were entitled to assert claims under NRS Chapter 112, the Uniform Fraudulent
Transfer Act (“LIFTA™), pursuant to NRS 112.210 when this action was commenced.

3 11 U.S.C. § 544(a)(1) provides that a trusiee has “the rights and powers of ... a
creditor” as of the commencement of the bankruptcy case. Thus, Plaintiff has standing to sue (o
avoid and recover transfers under NRS 112,210 and is the proper party in interest under NRCP 17.
Plaintiff stands in the shoes of the bankrupt debtor, Paul Morabito, under the Bankruptey Code,
including under 11 U.8.C. § 541, and at the same time stands in the shoes of Paul Morabito’s

creditors, inclusive of the Herbst Parties. in the pursuit of fraudulently transferred assets under 11

*¥ Trans. 10/29/18, p. 130, 1.9-24,
M Trans. 11/6/18, p. 105, 1. 17—p. 106, 1. 23,
HEExh, 134, p. LMWE SUPP, p. 068536,

12 A “debror” under NRS 112.130(6) is “a person who is liable on a claim,” and a “elaim™ means “a right
to payment, whether or not the right is reduced to judgment, liquidated, unliguidated, fixed, contingent,
matured. unmatured. disputed, undisputed, legal, equitable, secured or unsecured” under NRS 112, 150(3),
which is derived from § 101(5) of the Bankruptey Code. See UFTA, § 1, cmtb 3. A creditor has a “claim”
if the injury giving rise to the right to payment manilests itself fo the party holding the potential claim, even
il both liability and damages are contested and unresolved. In re Flynn, 238 B.R. 742, 746 (Bankr. N.D.
Ohio 1999 (citing Grady v. A.H. Robins Co., 839 F.2d 198, 20203 (4th Cir, 1988), cert. dism'd 487 U.S.
260, 109 S.Ct. 201, 101 L.Ed.2d 972 (1988). Thus, the Herbst Parties’ claim against Paul Morabito and
CNC arose prior to the date they commenced the State Court Action, or December 3. 2007.

1 Exhs. 4, 21-23, 303,
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L.S.C. § 544(Db). See In re MorteaseAmerica Corp.. 714 F.2d 1266, 1275 (5th Cir. 1983) (section
544(b) “allows the bankruptey trustee to step into the shoes of a creditor for the purpose of
asserting causes of action under state fraudulent conveyance acts for the benefit of all creditors,
not just those who win a race to Judgment™).

4, This court retains concurrent jurisdiction over claims by a frustee pursuant to 11

U.S.C. § 544(b) under 28 U.S.C. § 1334(b). See In re Rosenblum, 545 B.R. 846, 855-56 (Bankr. |

E.D. Pa. 2016); Hopkins v. Plant Insulation Co., 349 B.R. 805, 812 (N.D. Cal. 2006); In re
Kaufman & Roberts, Inc., 188 B.R. 309, 314 (Bankr. S.D, Fla. 1995) (“[b]ecause of this Court’s
concurrent jurisdiction with the state court, the Trustee may intervene in the state court action™),
In re CitX Corp., 302 B.R. 144, 161 n. 10 (Bankr. E.D. Pa. 2003) (citing Quality Tooling. Inc. v.
United States. 47 F.3d 1569, 1573 (Fed. Cir. 1995)) (observing that, under 28 U.S.C, § 1334(b).

“bankruptcy courts do not have exclusive jurisdiction over adversary proceedings, and such
matters may be heard in a non-bankruptey forum™).
B. The Court Has Jurisdietion Over the Defendants.

5. Jurisdiction over a nonresident defendant is proper when the plaintifl shows that
the existence of jurisdiction satisfies Nevada’s long-arm statute and does not offend the principles
of due process. Viega GmbH v. Eighth Jud. Dist. Ct.. 130 Nev. 368, 374-75 (2014); Trump v.
Eighth Judicial Dist. Court, 109 Nev. 687, 698 (1993); see also NRS 14.065(1).

6. “Due process requires that “minimum contacts™ exist “between the defendant and
the forum state *such that the maintenance of the suit does not offend traditional notions of fair

play and substantial justice™. Consipio Holding. BV v. Carlberg, 128 Nev. 454, 438 (2012)

(quoting Trump, 109 Nev. at 698). The defendant should “reasonably anticipate being haled into

court” in the forum state due to its conduct and connection there. Id. at 458 (gquoting World-Wide

Volkswagen Corp. v. Woodson, 444 U8, 286, 297 (1980)). Ullimately, the Court applies a three

part-inquiry to determine whether specific personal jurisdiction exists, which consists of: (1)
whether the defendant purposely availed itself to the privilege of conducting business in the state,

or purposefully directed its actions towards the state, (2) whether the cause ol action arises out of
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the defendant’s forum-related activities, and (3) whether the exercise of jurisdiction over the
defendant is reasonable. See Consipio, 128 Nev. at 458-459,

1. *A defendant’s contacts with a state are sufficient to meet the due process
requirement if either general personal jurisdiction or specifie personal jurisdiction exists.™ Arbella

122 Nev. 509, 512 (2006)

The Court has specific personal jurisdiction over any defendant when that defendant
“purposefully enters the forum's market or establishes contacts in the forum and affirmatively
directs conduct there, and the claims arise from that purposeful contact or conduct.” Viega GmbH,
130 Nev. at 375,

8 In Nevada, a defendant who assists with fraudulent transfers or other efforts to

impede satisfaction of a judgment is subject to personal jurisdiction. See Casentini v. Ninth

Judicial Dist. Court of State In & For County of Douglas, 110 Nev. 721, 727 (1994). Further,

intentional conduct oceurring outside the forum state, but designed to cause harm in the forum
state, may be a basis for finding minimum contacts. Calder v. Jones, 465 U8, 783, 787-90 (1984)
(holding that defendants must “reasonably anticipate[] being haled into court [in the forum state]”
because “their intentional, and allegedly tortious, actions were expressly aimed at" the forum
state, even though they occurred outside the forum state, and “they knew that the brunt of th[e]
injury would be felt “in the forum state.”).

9. The Court finds ihat based on Defendants’ connections to Nevada. including that
Bayuk and Sam Morabito are [ormer residents of Reno, each Defendants’ acceptance of
fraudulent transfers of Nevada assets following a Nevada judgment, and Superpumper’s merger
with CWC, articles for which were filed in Nevada, it has jurisdiction over all Defendants.

10.  With specific reference to Snowshoe, Paul Morabito held shares of CWC, a
Nevada entity, which he frandulently transferred to Snowshoe. Snowshoe is operated by Bayuk
and Sam Morabito who are former Nevada residents. Snowshoe was formed with the specific
purpose to accept a fraudulent transfer of the CWC shares. Defendants conceded that the Oral
Judgment, announced in a Nevada court while Bayuk and Sam Morabito were present, was the

impetus for the transfer to Snowshoe. Snowshoe, Bayuk, and Sam Morabito engaged in a business
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transactions for the purpose of defrauding Nevada residents of a judgment won in a Nevada state
court. Therefore, Snowshoe purposefully availed itselt of Nevada jurisdiction and it could, along
with the other Defendants, expect to be haled into court in Nevada. Snowshoe's contacts with
Nevada were not the result of a unilateral act of a third party, nor were they random er fortuitous;
they are the direct and intended consequence of the transfers in September 2010
C. Nevada Has Adopted and Codified the UFTA in NIRS Chapter 112,

11.  The UFTA is designed to prevent a debtor from defrauding creditors by placing the

subject property beyond the creditors® reach. Herup v. First Boston Fin.. LLC, 123 Nev. 228

(2007): NRS Ch. 112, The underlying policy of both the fraudulent transfer provisions of the
Bankruptcy Code and the UFTA are the same — “to preserve a debtor’s assets for the benefif of
creditors” 1d. at 235 (emphasis added)."!*

12, NRS 112.250 directs Nevada courts to apply and construe the UFTA “to effectuate
its general purposes to make uniform the law with respect to the subject of this chapter among
states enacting it.” Herup, 123 Nev. at 237 (quoting NRS 112.250).*"" Fundamentally, the
application of the UFTA should be consistent with its purpose of preventing and suppressing frand.
¢e Donell v. Kowell, 533 F.3d 762, 774 (9th Cir. 2008) (finding the terms of the UFTA are

'l"J

¥ The Nevada Supreme Court noted that it is appropriate to rely on cases interpreting 11 U.S.C. § 548 in
light of the similarity of the underlying policy of both UFTA and the Bankruptcy Code of preserving the
debtor’s assets for the benefit of creditors and the similarity of the language of § 348 and the UFTA. 1d.,

123 Nev. at 235, 162 P. 3d at 8?4 n. 15 (eiting M@L&mlwm Co.. 319 B.R., 225, 232 (Bankr. N.D.
Okla. 2004) (citing ount . 252 F3d 1146, 1152 (10th Cir. 2001); In
re United Enerey Corp.., 94—4 F_Ed 589, 594 {glh Cir. 1991); In re First Commercial Management Group,
Inc., 279 B.R. 230, 240 (Bankr. N.D. 111. 2002) (“Except for different statutes of limitations, the [1llinois]
and federal statutes are functional equivalents, and the analysis applicable [under federal law] is also
applicable [under [llinois law].”); In re Spatz, 222 B.R. 157, |64 (N.D, [1l. 1998) (“Because the provisions
of the UFTA parallel § 548 of the Bankruptey Code, findings made under the Bankruptey Code are
applicable to actions under the UFTA.”)); see also Warfield v, Byvron, 436 F.3d 551, 358 (5th Cir. 2006)
{appropriate to rely on cases interpreting | 1 U5.C. § 548 where provision of UFTA at issue {which mirrored
NRS 112.180(1)(a)) was “virtually identical” to 11 U.S.C. § 548 actual intent fraudulent transfer provision)
(citing Ramirez Rodriguez v. Dunson (In re Ramirez Rodriguez). 209 B.R. 424 (Bankr. S.D. Tex. 1997);

Cuthill v. Greenmark, LLC (In re World Vision Entm’t. Inc.}), 275 B.R. 641, 638 (Bankr. M.D. Fla. 2002);
In re Carrozzella & Richardson. 286 B.R. 480, 485-86 (D. Conn. 2002)).

"5 Accordingly, it is appropriate for the Court to look to the application and construction of the UFTA by
other courts. See. e, Sportsco Enters.. 112 Nev. 625. 917 P.2d at 938 (clting to eases [rom other

Jurisdictions 1o support interpretation of Nevada®s UFTA),
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abstract in order to protect defrauded creditors, no matter what form a financial fraud might take)
(citations omitted).

13, Further, the UFTA “is remedial and as such should be liberally construed.” Cortez
v. Vogt, 52 Cal. App.4th 917, 937, 60 Cal Rptr.2d 841, 853 (Cal. App. 1997) (citing Lind v. O.N.

Johnson Co.. 204 Minn. 30, 40 (1938)); see also Landmark Community Bank. N.A. v. Klingelhutz,
874 N.W 2d 446 (Minn. Ct. App. 2016), review denied, (Apr. 27, 2016) (stating that the UFTA is
remedial and meant Lo be construed broadly, applying Minnesota’s enactment of the UFTA);
Sigman v. Goldman Sachs Morlpg. Co., 539 B.R. 221 (3.D. N.Y. 2015) (same, applying Utah’s
enactment of the UFTA). The objective of UFTA *is to enhance and not to impair the remedies
of the creditor.” 1d. at 937.

14, The UFTA provides that three types of transfers may be set aside: (1) transters
made with actual intent to hinder, delay, or defraud; (2) constructive fraudulent transfers; and (3)
certain transfers by insolvent debtors. NRS 112.180(1)(a) (actual intent): NRS 112.180(1)(h)
(constructive fraud); NRS 112.190 (transfers by an insolvent); Herup, 123 Nev. at 233. At issuc
here are NRS 112.180(1)(a) and NRS 112.180(1)(b).

15.  Defendants contend that the subject transfers are not fraudulent under the UFTA
because Bayuk and Sam Morabito had been “exonerated™ by Judge Adams in the Herbst Litigation.
But even if Judge Adam’s ruling that Defendants were not liable to the Herbst Parties on the claims
at issue in the Herbst Litigation was pertinent to Defendants’ intent with respect to their receipt of
transfers after the Oral Ruling, Defendants® intent is not relevant 1o the analysis of whether the
transfers were made with actual imtent to hinder, delay, or defraud, or were constructively
fraudulent. Both the actual and constructive fraud provisions of the statute address the nature of
i
i
i
i
1

il
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the transfer and the intent of the debror, rather than the transferee. Specifically, NRS 112 180(1)(a)

provides:

A transfer made or obligation incurred by a debtor is fraudulent as to a
creditor . . . if the debtor made the transfer or incurred the obligation . .
. [w]ith actual intent to hinder, delay or defraud any creditor of the
debtor;

(Emphasis added.) NRS 112.180(1)(b) provides:

A transfer made or obligation incurred by a debtor is frandulent as to a

creditor . . . if the debtor made the transfer or incurred the obligation . .

. [w]ithout receiving a reasonably equivalent value . . . and the debtor:

(1) [w]as engaged or was about to ¢ngage in a business or a transaction

for which the remaining assets of the debtor were unreasonably small in

relation to the business or transaction; or (2) [ijntended to incur. or

believed or reasonably should have believed that the debtor would incur,

debts beyond his or her ability to pay as they became due.
(Emphasis added.) Thus, it is the debtor’s intent, rather than the transferee’s intent, which is
relevant to whether a transfer is actually or constructively fraudulent under the UFTA. See Herup,
123 Nev. at 234 (NRS 112.180({1)(a) plainly provides that, for the district court to enter judgment
in favor of a creditor under that statute, it must first determine whether the debtor “actual T/
intenfded] 1o hinder, delay or defraud any creditor of the debtor.”) (emphasis in Herup); see also

In re Nat'l Audit Def. Network. 367 B.R. 207, 221 (Bankr. D. Nev. 2007) (1t is key in this analysis

that the required intent to hinder, delay or defraud is the debtor’s; no collusion with the transferee
is necessary.”).

16. The transferee’s knowledge becomes relevant under the good faith defense, which
the transferee must prove. Herup, 123 Nev. at 236-37. Under Nevada law, determination of
whether a transfer is fraudulent under NRS 112.180 is a prerequisite, but is separate and distinet,
from remedies available to the creditor and whether the transferee is entitled 10 a good [faith
defense. Id. at 232, 237 (concluding thai determination of whether a fraudulent transfer occurred
under NRS 112.180(1)(a) is a prerequisite to setting aside the transfer or imposing damages and
analysis of good faith defense, and instructing district court on remand to determine 1) whether
the debtor made a fraudulent transfer under the UFTA, 2) whether the transferee acted in objective

good laith in purchasing the business from the transferor, and 3) whether the transferee paid
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reasonably equivalent value for the business for purposes of the good faith defense under NRS
112220010,
. The Transfers Were Made with Intent to Hinder, Delay. or Defraud the Herbst

Parties,

17.  The UFTA provides that a transfer made or obligation incurred by a debtor may be
set aside il it is made or incurred by a debior “with actual intent 1o hinder, delay or defraud any
creditor of the delnor,” WRS 112.180(1)a); Herup, 123 Nev. at 231, “Traditionally, the intent
required for actual fraudulent transfers is established by circumstantal evidence, since it will be
the rare case in which the debtor testifies under vath that he or she intended to defraud creditors.™

See In re Nat'l Audit Def. Network, 367 B.R. at 219-20 (applying NUFTA) (citing Dahar v.

Jackson (In re Jackson), 318 B.R. 5, 13 (Bankr. D. N.H. 2004). Intent may be established by
circumstantial evidence or inferences drawn from the debtor’s course of conduct. Id., 367 B.R. at
219 (citing Mazer v. Jones (In re Jones), 184 B.R. 377, 385 (Bankr. D. N.M. 1995}).

18.  Moreover, the debtor’s intent does not necessarily have to be to defraud a creditor.
Rather, the “intent” element is satisfied if the debtor intends to hinder or delay or defraud a creditor.
In re Nat'l Audit Def. Network, 367 B.R. at 221-22 (*Given the alternative phrasing of the requisite
intent—a frandulent transfer exists if there is an intent to hinder, delay or defraud—such transfers
are also made with the requisite intent under Section 548(a)(1) and [NRS] 112.180.1(a)) (citations
omitted). The debtor’s knowledge that a transaction will operate to the detriment of creditors is
sufficient to establish actual intent to defraud a creditor. Haves v, Palm Seedlings Partners—A (In

re Agric. Research & Tech. Group, Inc.). 916 F.2d 528, 535 (9th Cir. 1990} (quoting Coleman Am.
. Servs., Ine. v. Fi vat’ : ), 14 B.R. 637, 643

(Bankr. . Kan. 1981)). If the debtor has a motive of effecting the transaction to hinder a creditor,
then the transaction is intentionally fraudulent even if the debtor also has non-fraudulent motives.

Sece Bertram v. WF1 Stadium. Ine., 41 A.3d 1239, 1247, 2012 WL 1427788 (D.C. 2012) (even il

a debtor has at least one non-fraudulent motive for a transaction, the additional motive of effecting
the transaction to hinder a creditor is a sufficient ground for an unassailable conclusion of

fraudulent intent). Further. where the moving party proves fraudulent intent, the transfer is deemed
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fraudulent, even if it is in exchange for valuable or full consideration. See [n re Zeigler, 320 B.R.

362, 373 (Bankr. N.1. [1l. 2005) (applying [llinois enactment af UFTA).

19, NRS 112.180(2) sets forth the following non-exclusive list of factors (generally

known as the “*badges of fraud”}*'% to be considered in determining actual intent:

a,

b.

the transfer or obligation was to an insider;

the debtor retained possession or control of the property transferred after the
transfer:

the transfer or obligation was disclosed or concealed;

before the transfer was made or obligation was incurred. the debtor had been
sued or threatened with suit;

the transfer was of substantially all the debtor’s assets;
the debtor absconded:
the debtor removed or concealed assets:

the value of the consideration received by the debtor was reasonably equivalent
to the value of the asset transferred or the amount of the obligation incurred:

the debtor was insolvent or became insolvent shortly after the transfer was
made or the obligation was incurred;

the transfer occurred shorily before or shortly after a substantial debt was
incurred: and

the debtor transferred the ‘e-ss_f:nlisi assets of the business to a lienor who
transferred the assets to an insider of the debior.

‘This list is illustrative, not exhaustive, and none of the badges standing alone are necessary or

sulficient as “the range of activities that fraudsters may use to commit fraud cannot and should not

be definitively cataloged.” In re Nat'l Audit Dell Network, 367 B.R. at 220.

i
M

216 See Nat'l Audit Def. Network, 367 B.R. at 220 (noting that the “badges of fraud™ developed by the

courts are recurring actions that historically have been associated with the actual intent to hinder, delay or
defraud creditors) (giting Twyne’s Case, 3 Coke 80b, 76 Eng. Rep. 809 (Star Chamber 1601) (developing
early list of badges of fraud); Cuthill v. Greenmark. LLC (In re World Vision Entm’t. Inc ), 275 B.R. 641,

656 (Bankr. M.D. Fla. 2002); Indianapolis Indiana Aamco Dealers Adverdising Pool v. Anderson, 746
N.E.2d 383, 390 (Ind. App. Ct. 2001)).
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20.  The Nevada Supreme Court has also recognized the following indicia of fraud that
will support a determination of actual fraudulent intent:
lack of consideration for the conveyance, the transfer of the debtor’s
entire estate, relationship between transferor and transferee, the
pendency or threat of litigation, secrecy or hurried transaction,
insolvency or indebtedness of the transferor, departure from the usual
method of business, the retention by the debtor of possession of the
property. and the reservation of benefit to the transferor.
Sportsco Enters. v, Morris, 112 Nev. 625, 632 (1996) (citations omitted).
21.  The UFTA list of “badges of fraud” provides neither a counting rule, nor a
mathematical formula, and no minimum number of factors tips the scales toward actual intent. In

re Beverly, 374 B.R. 221, 236 (B.A.P. 9th Cir. 2007), aff'd in part, dismissed in part, 551 F.3d

1092 (9th Cir. 2008) (applying the California enacted UFTA). The Ninth Circuit has explained
that “[t]he presence of a single badge of fraud may spur mere suspicion; the confluence of several

can constitute conclusive evidence of actual intent to defraud, absent “significantly clear’ evidence

of a legitimate supervening purpose.” In re Acequia. Inc., 34 F.3d 800 (9th Cir. 1994) (emphasis
added); see also S. New England Tel. Co. v. Sahara & Arden. Inc., No. 2:09-CV-00534-RCJ-PAL,

2010 WL 2035330, at *4 (D. Nev. May 24, 2010) (“[a]lthough the *presence of a single factor, i.e.
a badge of fraud, may cast suspicion on the transferor’s intent, the confluence of several in one

transaction generally provides conclusive evidence of an actual intent to defraud.”™) (quoting

Gilchinsky v. Nat'l Westminster Bank, 159 NI, 463, 732 A.2d 482, 490 (N.J. 1999)); In re Nat'l

Audit Def., 367 B.R. at 220 (“Although none of the badges standing alone will establish fraud, the
existence of several of them will raise a presumption of frand.”). In Nevada, as few as three badges
have been found to establish clear and convincing evidence of actual fraudulent intent. See
Sportsco Enters.. 112 Nev. at 632.

22. Where the plaintifl” establishes the existence of “indicia of badges of fraud, the
burden shifts to the defendant to come forward with rebuttal evidence that a transfer was not made
to defraud the creditor.” See Sportsco Enters., 112 Nev. at 632 (citing Territorial Sav. & Loan
Ass'n v. Baird, 781 P.2d 452, 462 n. 18 (Utah Ct. App. 1989); see also Southern New England
Telephone Co. v. Saha nc. 2010 WL 2033330, *4-12 (D. Nev. May 24, 2010)
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(applying the burden-shifting analysis under NRS 112.180(1)(a) and granting summary judgment
to creditor).

23.  The evidence relative to a confluence of at least a majority of the badges of fraud
identified by Nevada statute and the Sportsco case amounts to clear and convincing evidence of
Paul Morabito’s actual intemt to delay. hinder or defraud the Herbst Parties. See Lubbe v, Barba,
91 Nev. 596, 598 (1975) (establishing a requirement for proving contentions of fraud by clear and
convincing evidence).

1. Paul Morabito’s Actual Intent Is Apparent from His Own Statements and
Actions,

24.  The debtor made his intent clear through his actions and his own statements.

25.  Immediately following the Oral Ruling, Paul Morabito transferred $6 million in
cash off-shore*'’  Within two days of the Oral Ruling, he hired counsel for advice on how to
evade the Herbst Parties’ judgment and protect his assets from the Herbst Parties.®'® Recognizing
that the transfers would be challenged, he explained his motive as depriving the Herbst Parties of
a perceived “home courl, good old boy advantage.™'® When he was advised by Gary Graber that
the contemplated transfers may constitute fraudulent transfers, he terminated Mr. Graber’s firm.™"
Paul Morabito then used his long-time counsel, Vacco, to implement a series of transactions that
resulted in him being divested of most of his assets within a two-week periad. before the FF&CL
was even entered.

{f
i

27 Exh. 37, p. 4. MORABITO (341).005352.

M See Exh. 23 (Hodgson Ross indicating they had a number of ideas, “including a possible marital splir
between Paul [Morabito] and [Bayuk] pursuant to which [Bayuk] could retain some of Paul [Morabito’s)
assets” and Vacco of LMWF following with discussion of Paul Morabite selling his interest in CWC to
Bayuk and Sam Morabito}; see also Trans. L1/1/18, p. 29, L 13-18 and p. 30, 1. 21-22; 1 1/1/18, p. 33, 1l
1-6: 11/1/18, p. 46, [I. 13-15: Exhs. 26 discussing moving to California) and 32 (*[Bayuk] and | plan on
changing our primary residence from Reno to Laguna Beach.”).

1% Exh, 29,
2 Trans. 11/1/18, p. 35, I. 6-14.
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20.  BSubsequent fo the transfers. Paul Morabito acknowledged that he had stripped
himself of any assets other than the Panorama Property and had effectively limited the Herbst
Parties” collection attempts to the Panorama Property, telling Vacco:

With the sale of the Reno house closing December 315t our friends
in Las Vegas get a nice gift. They also acknowledge the change of
ownership to just me. $1.5 million is [their] bounty. If we go past
December 31st the only material asset that they can lay their hands
on through me is access to Edward Bayuk and Virsenet - and that is
now valued at $2.12 billion. After dilution Edward owns 72%. $85
million is 4% of the overall value. If they want to go after me and
think that they can make a claim on him, then that's [their] value
proposition. , . >

27.  On April 24, 2013, on the eve of Paul Morabito’s default under the Forbearance
Agreement with the Herbst Parties, he asked Vacco “How do you do this so that Herbst cannot
ever access it?" %

28.  Paul Morabito’s communications with his counsel both before and after the
transfers leave no doubt of his knowledge that the transactions would operate to the detriment of
the Herbst Parties. The evidence presented at trial established the actual intent to hinder, delay, or
defraud a creditor by clear and convincing evidence without any further consideration of the
statutory or common-law badges of fraud. See Haves, 916 F.2d at 535 (debtor’s knowledge that a
transaction will operate to the detriment of creditors is sufficient to establish actual intent).

29.  Evenif'the court were to accepl the story offered by Paul Morabito and Defendants
(which this Court does not find credible) thal the parties were seeking to separate their assets as a
result of the Oral Ruling. a non-fraudulent motive will not *cure™ a transaction effectuated with
actual intent*** See Bertram, 41 A.3d at 1247 (transaction is intentionally fraudulent if debtor has

a motive of effecting a transaction to hinder a ereditor, even if the debtor also has non-fraudulent

motives).

21 Exh, 161 (December 18, 2012 email from Paul Morabito to Dennis Vacco).
2 Exh, 162,

7 As noted above, the story that Paul Morabito was merely separating his assets from Bayuk and Sam
Maorahito in September 2010 is belied by the transfer of $6 million from Paul Morahilo®s account
immediately following the Oral Ruling, along with Paul Maorabito’s continued involvement in their
businesses as an “advisor.”
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2 The Presence of Multiple Badges of Fraud Compel a Determination of
Paul Morabito’s Intent to Hinder, Delay, or Defraud the Herbst Parties.

30.  Even if Paul Morabito had not admirted his intent to hinder and delay the Herbst
Parties. consideration of the badges of fraud compel the conclusion that Paul Morabito intended to
hinder, delay. or defraud his creditors, the Herbst Parties.

a. The transfers were to insiders — NRS 112.180(2)(a).

3l. The transfers at issuc in this case were made fo insiders. Under NUFTA, a relative
of the debtor is an insider. NRS [12.150(7)a)(1). Here. Sam Morabito is Paul Morabito®s brother
and, therefore, a relative of the debtor,

32, NRS 112.150(7)d) further provides that a statutory insider includes an affiliate, or
an insider of an affiliate as if the affiliate were the debtor. “Affiliate” is defined as:

(b} A corporation 20 percent or more of whose outstanding voting securities are

directly or indirectly owned. controlled or held with power to vote. by the debtor

or a person who directly or indirectly owns, controls or holds with power 1o vote,

20 percent or more of the outstanding voting securities of the debtor, other than a

person who holds the securities: (1) As a fiduciary or agent without sole power 1o

vote the securities; or (2) Solely to secure a debt, if the person has not in fact

exercised the power to vote...

NRS 112.150(1)(b). Paul Morabito directly and indirectly owned and controlled 20% more of the
outstanding voting securities of CWC, Superpumper, and Baruk LLC and therefore, they all
constitute Paul Morabito's affiliates. If the affiliate is a corporation, an insider includes (1) a
director of the affiliate, (2) an officer of the affiliate, or (3) a person in control of the affiliate.
Here, Bayuk was a director and officer of CWC and Superpumper along with Paul Morabito and
owned 50% of Baruk Properties with Paul Morabito, Therefore, Bayuk was therefore an insider
of Paul Morabito’s afTiliales and, by extension, a statutory insider of Paul Morabito.

33, Furthermore, the “UFTA’s definition of “insider” is not intended to limit an insider
to the .. listed subjects. Instead, the drafters provided the list for purposes of exemplification.”
See In re Holloway, 955 F.2d 1008, 110 (5th Cir. 1992) (analyzing identical provision under
Texas’ adopted UFTA)): Landmark Cmty. Bank. N.A. v. Klingelhutz, 874 N.W.2d 446, 452, 2016
WL 363521 (Minn. Ct. App. 2016). review denied (Apr. 27, 2016) (finding that single-member

LLC of spouse was an insider because the definition of “insider™ is not limiting) (citing Citizens

4
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State Bank Norwood Young Am. v. Brown, 849 N.W.2d 55, 62—63 (Minn. 2014) (finding that
former spouse was an insider). When determining whether a transferee is a non-statutory insider
two factors must be considered: (1) the closeness ol the relationship between the transferee and
the debtor, and (2) whether the transactions between them were conducted at arm’s length. Inre
Emerson, supra at 707 (citing to [n re Holloway, 955 F.2d 1008, 1011 (5th Cir, 1992)); Inre Village
at Lakeridge, LLC, 814 F.3d 993, 996 (9th Cir. 2016). *The true test of *insider” status is whether
one’s dealings with the debtor cannot accurately be characterized as arm’s-length.” In re Craig
Systems Corp., 244 B.R. 529, 539 (Bankr. D. Mass. 2000).

34.  Paul Morabito and Bayuk were long-time companions and business partners who
cohabitated for over a decade prior to the subject transfers, owned several properties together as
tenants in common, and co-owned several businesses. Domestic partners, same-sex or otherwise,
are, like spouses, insiders for the purposes of an avoidance analysis. *** Given the nature of their
relationship, and the nature of the subject transactions, the subject transactions between Paul

Morabito and Bayuk were not entered arm’s length with one another.

b. The debtor retai yossession or control of the property transferred
after the transfer — NRS 112.180(2)(b).

35, It was Paul Morabito’s intent that he would continue to be involved in his
businesses behind the scenes, but that he would not have assets titled in his name and his businesses

would be titled in the names of Bayuk, Sam Morabito, and Dennis Vaceo, ™™

*Mgee Bloom v. Camp, 336 Ga. App. 891, 895, 7835 S.E.2d 573, 578, adopted. (Ga. Super. May 24, 2016} (finding
same-sex parner to be an insider though same-sex marrisges were not recognized in Georgiy at the time of the
transfer); In re Fisher, 206 F. App'x 494, 502, 2008 WL 4569946, at *5 (6th Cir 2008) (though finding no fraudulent
transfer occurred, finding that opposite-sex domestic partner was an insider); In re Tanrer, 145 B.R. 672, 678 (Bankr.
W.D. Wash. 1992) (same-sex partner who had cohabitated with debtor was an insider) (eiting Matter of Montaning,
15 B.R, 307 (Bankr. D. N1, 1981) (parents of debtor’s live-in fancé were insiders); Inre Ribeke, 64 B.R. 663 (Bankr.
0. Md. 1986) (parents of a deblor’s deceased wife were insiders); [n re O'Connell. 119 B.R. 311 (Bankr, M.D. Fla.
1990} (a good friend who had made numerous nformal loans to a deblor was an insider); In e Standard Stores, Inc.,
124 B.R. 318 (Banke. C.D. Cal. 1991) (a corporate debtor’s president®s ex-hrother-in-law was an insider with respect
1o a transfer five years afier divorce from debtor’s president’s sister).

23 Exh. 30 (9/21/2010 email to joint counsel, Vacco, and a third party representing that he “would no longer
be actively seeking to accumulate asscts in companies that [he was| a sharcholder in, and instead would be
acting as an advisor to amongst other entities, Snowshoe Petroleum LLC, a company to be owned and
operated by [his] brother. Sam: Edward Bayuk, and Dennis Vacco...").
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36.  Couosistent with his plan, following the transfers, Paul Morabito, Bayuk, and Sam
Morabito maintained the status guo, with Paul Morabito retaining significant control of and
continuing to use the transferred assets as il he still owned them. Alier the transfers, Bayuk and
Sam Morabito funded Paul Morabito’s lifestyle and Bayuk supplied Paul Morabito with money,
credil card, a Mercedes, and a luxurious home. Paul Morabito continued to receive financial
remuneration from Snowshoe, which paid $126,000 in Paul Morabito’s personal legal expenses
between Octaber of 2015 and March of 2018—years after his financial interests were supposedly
separated from those of his brother and Bayuk.*¢

AT Paul Morabito continued to negotiate deals using Superpumper as if he still owned
it, and had general authority to speak on behalf of Snowshoe.’ Among other examples of his
continued control, in April 11, 2011, without any involvement by Bayuk or Sam Morabito, Paul
Morabito proposed contributing Snowshoe’s 100% interest in Superpumper in connection with the
proposed Nella Deal, for which negotiations had commenced prior to the transfers.”®® In August
2011, Paul Morabito’s and Defendants’ joint counsel advised Paul Morabito (without copying
Bayuk or Sam Morabito) to simply use Superpumper to make a payment to real estate broker Tim
Haves in order to conceal the payment from the Herbst Parties.”™ In April of 2012, in response to
inquiries by Superpumper’s auditors regarding affiliate loans, Paul Morabito instructed Vacco
“MY POSITION 1S BELOW - PLEASE MAKE IT HAPPEN".**" [n March 2013. nearly three
years after the Superpumper Transfer, Paul Morabito was still bargaining with Superpumper,
proposing a settlement with the Herbst Parties whereby he would transfer Superpumper to the

Herbst Parties in partial satisfaction of the judgment®®' Though Bayuk and Sam Morabito

6 Exhs. 308, 309.

27 Trans. 10/20/18, p- 224, 1. 3 — p. 226, 1. 20.

28 Exhs. 131, 132 133; Trans. | 1/2118,p. 12, 1.23 —p. 16, L. 3:p. 16, 1. 4 —p. 17, L. 19,
29 Exhs. 136 and 137,

B0 Exh, 144,

21 Exh, 153.
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supposedly owned Superpumper at that point through Snowshoe, neither was included in these
discussions,

38 Paul Morabilo also continued to use Superpumper Propertics, the successor to
Baruk LIC, and its assets as if he still owned them. In November of 2011, Paul Morabito sought
to use the assets of Snowshoe Properties (the successor to Baruk LLC) to settle a lawsuit against
him. In February 2012, he sought to negotiate a third-party sale of 1461 Glenneyre and a master
lease with the new buyer for Snowshoe Capital, a company owned by Paul Morabito, for the
property, without any involvement by Bayuk.** Later, he caused a second deed of trust to be
placed on 1461 Glenneyre in connection with a settlement of his lawsuit with Bank of America,
which had nothing to do with Bayuk—Vacco simply instructed Bayuk when and where to sign for
Paul Morabito.” Similarly, in September of 2012, Bayuk instructed their counsel that he would
sign a second deed of trust on the Mary Fleming House in Palm Springs that Paul Morabito wanted
in connection with funding for Virsenet, an entity in which Bayuk and Paul Morabito held joint
interests. ™ When the sham of the sale of the Baruk LLC interest to Bayuk became inconvenient,
Paul Motabito instructed Vagcco teo just undo it**® On October 3, 2012, Paul Morabito instructed
Vaceo and Lovelace regarding negotiation of a $5 million loan to Snowshoe Properties—in which
Paul Morabito supposedly held no interest—without including Bayuk.*** In March 2014, Paul
Morabito caused Bayuk to transfer the Claylon Property to Desi Moreno without any value to |
Bayuk.*’

39.  Paul Morabito’s continued control makes clear that the intent of the transfers was

not to separate Sam Morabito's and Bayuk’s interests from Paul Morabito’s interests, as Bayuk

31 Exh. 142;Trans, 10/30/18, p. 28, .9 —p. 29, L.L.
53 Exhs. 145, 147, 148, 152,

2 Exh. 150; see also Exhs. 159 and |60

33 Exh. 70.

26 Exh. 151,

B Trans. 10/30/18. p. 66, Il 1-12,
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and Sam Morabito now contend. There was never any separation one would expect in an arms’
length transaction; rather, Paul Morabito viewed the transfemed assets as if he still owned them. |

The only difference following the transfers was that the assets were out of the Herbst Parties |'

reach. While Bayuk and Sam Morabito ofien ailempted to characierize Paul Morabilo’s |

representations regarding the assets and his continued use of the assets as mere “whiteboarding,”
neither of them ever repudiated Paul Morabito’s representations regarding the assets or his

238

attempts to sell, lien, or otherwise leverage them in connection with a transaction,” and,

consistent with their unwavering support for Paul Morabito.”* testified thal they believed in his

ability to put together a favorable transaction and would have agreed to a transaction negotiated
by him.*¥"

c. The transfers were concealed (NRS 112.180(2)(c)) and the debtor
removed or concealed assets — NRS 112.180(2)(g).”

40.  Judge Adams announced the Oral Ruling on September 13, 2010. By October 1,
2010, the transfers were largely complete. Neither Paul Morabito, his counsel, nor Defendants
informed the Herbst Parties that the transfers were occurring, despite the fact that Paul Morabito

and the Herbst Parties were in the midst of preparing for the punitive damages phase of the trial.

41.  The Herbst Parties were not informed of the Baruk Transfer or the subsequent
transfers of the Baruk Properties. Both the name and location of the entity owning the Baruk
Properties was changed to Snowshoe Properties. .By October 1, 2010, Bayuk had transferred the
Palm Springs Property again, this time to the Bayuk Trust. Thereafier, the $1.617.500 Note was
assigned 10 Woodland Heights, Ltd. so the Herbst Parties could not simply attach the proceeds to
satisfy the Confessed Judgment,

42, The Herbst Parties were not informed of the Compass Loan, the distributions by

Superpumper, the Matrix Valuation, or the Superpumper Agreement, Further, Paul Morabito

M Nor did their counsel, Vacco.
19 See Trans. 10/30/18, p. 98, 1. 4 —p. 99, 1. 7;p. 233,1. 15-235,1.9
0 Trans. 10/30/18, p. 239, [. 1-13.

*! These badges of fraud are overlapping, and therefore are discussed together.
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removed his assets from Nevada when he transferred his interest to Snowshoe, a new company
incorporated in New York.

43.  As Paul Morabito made clear in his communications with his counsel, removing
and coneealing assets in different jurisdictions was an intentional measure to ensure that the
assets were out of the reach of the Nevada courts and to strip the Herbst Parties of a perceived
“home courl, good old boy™ advantage in their collection efforts.

d. Before the transfer was made or obligation was incurred, the debtor had
been sued or threatened with suit — NRS 112.180(2)(d), the transfer

occurred shortly before or shortly after a substantial debt was incurred —
NRS 112.180(2)(j), and the transfers were hurried — Sportsco Enterprises.

44.  The presence ol these related badges of fraud are the most obvious and compelling.
Not only had Paul Morabito been sued by the Herbst Parties, but Judge Adams had announced an
585 milhon Oral Ruling against him on September 13, 2010.

45.  The transfers were largely completed within the next two weeks, when the punitive
damages phase of the litigation was just commencing. See Sporisco Enters., 112 Nev. at 632
(secrecy or a hurried transaction as indicative of fraud). By the time of Judge Adams’ FF&CL, let
alone entry of the Final Judgment on August 23, 2011, Paul Morabito’s attachable assets were
gone. It is not even necessary to infer that the Oral Ruling prompted the transfers, because Paul
Morabito, Bayuk and Sam Morabito all admitted it 2*?

e. The transfer was of substantially all the debtor’s assets — NRS
112,180(2)(e).

46, Within days after Judge Adams announced the Oral Ruling, Paul Morabito divested
himself of almost all, if not all, of his assets: approximately $7 million in funds were transferred
from his bank account, Paul Morabito’s interest in the Laguna Properties was transferred, the 50%

interest in Baruk LLC, and the 80% interests in Superpumper. He even transferred his furnishings

1 Trans. 10/29/18, p. 132, ll. 6-16; see alse id., p. 132, 1I. 17-19 (stipulating that Oral Ruling was the
impetus for the transfers); Trans, 10/31/18, p. 150, 1. 20 —p. 151, . 3,
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and personal property (including those he continued to use), to Bayuk. Paul Morabito was left
with minimal tangible assets subject to execution by his creditors.
f. The value of the consideration received by the debior was not reasonably

equivalent to the value of the asset transferred — NRS 112.180(2)(h), and
there was lack of consideration for the transfers.”"

47.  Whether a deblor receives reasonably equivalent value is determined from the
perspective of creditors. In Herup, the Nevada Supreme Court found that the underlying public
policy of the Bankruptcy Code and the UUFTA is the same: “to preserve a debtor’s assets for the
benefit of creditors” Herup, 123 Nev. at 235 (emphasis added). Because the language of the
UFTA and § 548 of the Bankmuptcy Code are nearly identical and the purposes of the different
laws are the same, cases applying § 548 of the Bankruptey Code are persuasive authority. See id.
{citing cases) (synthesizing authority for the conclusion that the bankruptey code dictates “the
appropriate standard to apply under Nevada’s version of the UFTA.").

48, Likewise, the comments to the UFTA expressly state that the definition of “value”
within the uniform act *is adapted from § 548(d)(2)(A) of the Bankruptcy Code.... The definition
[ Jis not exclusive [and] is to be determined in light of the purpose of the Acl to protect a debtor's
estate from being depleted to the prejudice of the debtor's unsecured creditors.”™ UFTA § 3, emt.
2. “Ceonsideration having no utility from a creditor's viewpoint does not satisfy the statutory
definition.” 1d. (emphasis added),”"

49.  Toconstitute a cognizable benefit under the UFTA, (1) the benefit must be received
by the debtor, such that the debtor’s net worth is preserved 1o the exception of the interests of the

creditors: (2) such benefits must be for a cognizable value, including *property” and “satisfaction

W The lack of reasonably equivalent value is both o badpe of fraud under NRS 112.180(2)(h) and an
clement of a constructive [raudulent transfer under NRS 112.180(1)(h).

*# Other jurisdictions have reached the same conclusion. See In re Countrywide Fin. Corp. Morte-Backed Sec. Litig.,
No. 21IMLD2265SMRPMANX, 2013 WL 12148482, at *6 (C.D. Cal. June 7, 2013); Janvey v. Golf Channel, Inc.,
792 F.3d 539. 544 (5th Cir, 201 5), certified question answered, 487 5.W 3d 560 {Tex. 2016). California’s UFTA, for
example, “requires ‘reasonably equivalent value® to bhe determined from the standpoint of the ¢reditors” as
contemplated under section 548. In re Prejean, 994 F.2d 706. 708 (91h Cir. 1993) (emphasis added); see In re Bay
Plastics, Inc.. 187 B.R. 315, 329 (Bankr. C.D. Cal. 1995) (noting that “under California law, reasonable equivalence
must be determined from the standpoint of creditors™); see also In re Blixseth, 489 B.R. 154, 184 (Banks, D. Monl.
2013), aff'd. 514 B.R. 871 (D). Mont. 2014), aff'd in part, rev'd in part, 679 F. App'x 611 (%th Cir. 2017).
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or securing of a present or antecedent debt of the debtor;” and (3) the benefit must have been
received by the debtor in exchange for the transfer or obligation.*"® The reasonably equivalent
value of a given transfer under the UFTA is not determined relative to the transferee or the
transferor, but relative to assets available for the benefit of creditors. Consideration is “reasonably
equivalent™ if' it leaves crediiors in the substantially the same position as before the transfers.

50.  Here, Paul Morabito did not receive reasonably equivalent value in exchange for
the assets he transferred.

a. Prior to the subject transfers, Paul Morabito owned (1) a 70% interest in the
Panorama Property, a 75% interest in the El Camino Property, and a 50% interest in the Los Olivos
Property, with a collective value of approximately $1.916.250; (2) a 50% interest in Baruk LLC,
with a value of approximately $1,654,550, and (3) 80% of the equity of CWC, which held an 100%
interest in Superpumper, with a value of $10.440,000. In addition, he owned personal property at
the El Camino, Los Olivos, Panorama, and Mary Fleming Properties which he valued at
$2,000,000.

b. After the transfers, Paul Morabito owned the Panorama Property, which had
an equity value of only $971,136 (further reduced by credits for the theatre equipment and water
rights that Bayuk retained), 360,000 in cash and nominal payments for the personal property, the
51.617.050 Note, the $492.937.30 Note, and a slew of payments as directed to the LMWF firm
(who represented Paul Morabito and Defendants) and other third parties to support his lifestyle.

3l. The evidence establishes because the bulk of the “value” received—the $1,617,050
and $492,937 30--Notes by Paul Morabito were illusory, and certainly did not result in tangible
assets available for Paul Morabito’s creditors. A promise is illusory when i appears “so
insubstantial as to impose no obligation at all on the promisor — who says, in effect, *1 will if |

want 10.”" See Sateriale v, R.J. Reviiolds Tobieco Co.. 687 F.3d 1132, 1146 (9th Cir. 2012). Paul

3 See In re Blixseth, 489 B.R. at 184; see also SE Prop. Holdings, LLC v. Braswell, 255 F. Supp. 3d 1187, 1198
(5.0, Ala. 2017) (citing UFTA and synthesizing similar bankruptey authority for the conclusion that “reasonably
gquivalent value” is measured from the net effect of the transfer on the debtors estate and the value of the transfer to
the creditors at-issue).
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Morahito’s relationships with Bayuk and Sam Morabilo were such that Bayuk’s and Sam
Morabito’s obligations on the Notes were nothing more than “1 will if I want to.” Defendants have
heen unable to credibly account for payments on the Nates, the terms of which were never enforced
and meaningless o the partics.  While Paul Morabito transferred executable assets to the
Defendants, he received only a fraction of the value in cash, illusory notes, and promises to
maintain his lifestyle without regard for the terms of the notes or the agreements documenting the
transfers.

A, The Transfers Were Constructively Fraudulent as to Creditors,

52.  The evidence presented, the chronology of evenls and transfer of assets, and the
other surrounding circumstances lead to the inescapable conclusion that the transfers to the
Defendants were intentionally, willfully and fraudulently designed to evade collection by the
Herbst Parties. But even if actual intent had not been established, the transfers would be avoidable
as constructively fraudulent. Under Nevada's constructive fraud provision:

|a] transfer made... by a debtor is fraudulent as to a creditor, whether
the creditor's claim arose before or after the transfer was made.. if
the debtor made the transfer... [wlithout receiving a reasonably
equivalent value in exchange for the transter..., and the debtor:
(1} Was engaged or was about to engage in a busingss or
transaction for which the remaining asscls of the debtor were
unreasonably small in relation to the business or transaction; or
(2) Intended to incur, or believed or reasonably should have
believed that the debtor would incur, debts beyond his or her
ability to pay as they became due.”

NRS 112.180(1){(b).

53.  While the creditor generally bears the burden of proof both with respect to the
insolvency of the debtor and the inadequacy of consideration. as with the actual fraudulent transfer
statute, “under [the] constructively fraudulent transfer statute, where the creditor establishes the
existence of certain indicia or badges of fraud, the burden shifts to the defendant to come forward
with rebuttal evidence that a transfer was not made to hinder, delay, or defraud the creditor. See

Sportsco Enters., 112 Nev. at 632 (citing Territorial Sav. & Loan Ass'n v. Baird, 781 P.2d 452,

462 n. 18 (Utah Cu App. 1989); Erjavec v. Herrick, 827 P.2d 615. 617 (Colo. Ct. App. 1992)); In
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re Nat'l Audit Defense Network, 367 B.R. 207, 226 (Bankr. D. Nev. 2007) (applying burden

shifting analysis to constructive fraud). While “[i]t may appear contradictory to consider facts
used to infer actual intent lo defraud in order to determine ‘constructive’ fraud,” the “[f]actors
relevant to determining actual intent to defraud, a higher culpability standard, should be equally
probative where something less than actual intent will suffice.” In re Soza, 542 F.3d 1060, 1066-
67 (5th Cir. 2008).

54.  To rebut an inference of fraud, the defendant must show either that the debtor was
solvent at the time of the transfer and not rendered insolvent thereby or that the transfer was
supported by fair consideration.** Sportsco Enters.. 112 Nev. at 632 (citing Kirkland v. Risso, 98
Cal.App.3d 971, 159 Cal Rptr. 798, 802 (Ct. App. 1980)).

55, A number of the badges of fraud are present in this case, giving rise to a
presumption that the transfers were constructively fraudulent, thereby shifting the burden to
Defendants to establish the transfers were not constructively fraudulent. Defendants have not
offered evidence sufficient to overcome the presumption. As discussed in the context of actual
intent under NRS 112.180(a)(1). Paul Morabito did not receive reasonably equivalent value in
exchange for the subject transfers. Moreover, after the transfers. Paul Morabito was left with
insuflicient assets to even meet his basic expenses, relying on Bayuk and Sam Morabito to pay his
living expenses. The transfers were made immediately following Judge Adams’ Oral Ruling, but
before entry of the Final Judgment. As of the Oral Ruling, Paul Morabito knew, or at the very
least, should have known, that he would incur a debt to the Herbst Parties beyond his ability to pay
as it came due. That insolvency was imminent upon entry of the final judgment was confirmed by
Michele Salazar in her net worth expert report submitted in the Herbst Litigation.*

i
i

¥ The 1erm “fair consideration™ derives from the Uniform Fraudulent Convevance Act. 7A U.L.A. 427,
428 (1985}, the predecessor to the UFTA. In re Bay Plastics. Inc., 187 B.R. 315, 322, 329 (Bankr. C.D,
Cal. 1995). The UFTA replaced “fair consideration™ with “reasonably equivalent value. Id. at 329,

M7 Exh, 44.

52

9326




B

=] & Ln

B. Plaintiff Is Entitled to Avoidance of the Transfers and Return of the Property or the

Value Thereof.

6. Having determined that the transfers were acinally or constructively fraudulent
under NRS 112.180(a)(1) or (a)(2), the Court must evaluate the Defendants’ good faith defense
and the equable remedies under NRS 112210 and NRS 112.220. See Herup, 123 Ney. at 232:
Cadle Co. v. Woods & Erickson, LLP, 131 Nev 114, 119 (2015) (finding that Nevada's fraudulent
transfer statute creates equitable remedies including avoidance, attachment, and, subject to
principles of equity and the rules of civil procedure, injunction, receivership, or other relief
under NRS 112.210 or payment for value under NRS 112.220).

57, Nevada law provides a complete defense to avoidance to a good faith transferee
who pays reasonably equivalent value as follows:

A transfer or obligation is not voidable under paragraph (a) of
subsection | of NRS |12.180[**] against a person who took in good
faith and for a reasonably equivalent value or against any subsequent
transferee or obligee.

NRS 112.220(1). A partial defense is afforded to a good faith transferee under NRS 112.220(4).

which provides;
Notwithstanding voidability of a transfer or an obligation under this
chapter, a transferee or obligee who took in good faith is entitled. to
the extent of the value given the debtor for the transfer or ohligation.
to:

(@) A lien on or a right to retain any interest in the asset
transferred:

(b) Enforcement of any obligation incurred; or

(¢) A reduction in the amount of the liability on the judgment.
Thus. under Nevada law, if the complete defense under subsection (1) of NRS 112.220 does not
apply to a transfer made with actual intent because less than “reasonably equivalent value” was

given. a good faith transferee may receive a lien, enforcement of any obligation incurred, and/or

® Transfers which are made with actual intent to hinder, delay, or defraud.
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“a reduction in the amount of the liability on the judgment™ to the extent of the value provided.

See In re Nat'l Audit Def, Network, 367 B.R. at 223 (describing good faith defense).

38.  Under either NRS 112.220(1) or (4). however, the transferee bears the burden of
prool to establish that the transferee received the transfer in good faith. Herup, 123 Nev. at 236-
237. Good faith is an indispensable element of the defense, and as such. even if a transferee gives
reasonably equivalent value in exchange for the transfer avoided, the transferee may not recover

such value if the exchange was not in good faith. In re Agric, Research & Tech. Group. Inc., 89-

15416, 1990 WL 149820 (9th Cir. 1990) (applying Haw.Rev.Stat. § 651C-8 with Bankruptey
Code § 548(c) as persuasive authority) (eiting In re Candor Diamond Corp., 76 B.R. 342, 351

(Bankr. S.D.N.Y. 1987); Dean v. Davis, 242 U.S. 438, 37 S.Ct. 130, 61 L.Ed. 419

(1917): In re Roco Corp., 701 F.2d 978, 984 (1st Cir. 1983); In re Health Gourmet, Inc.. 29 B.R.
673. 677 (Bankr. D. Mass. 1983)).

59.  “A majority of courts applying the UFTA hold that a transferee must prove that he
received the transfer in ebjective good faith. That is, good faith must be determined on 4 case-by-
case basis by examining whether the facts would have caused a reasonable transferee to inquire
into whether the transferor’s purpose in effectuating the transfer was to delay, hinder, or defraud
the transferor’s creditors.” Herup, 123 Nev. at 236-237 (emphasis added) (adopting the objective
standard of good faith applicable under the Bankruptey Code and other states’ adoption of UFTA
and collecting cases). “[T]o establish a good faith defense to a fraudulent transfer claim, the
transferee must show objectively that he or she did not know or had no reason to know of the
transferor's fraudulent purpose to delay, hinder, or defraud the transferor’s creditors.” 1d. at 237.

60.  Under this objective, inquiry notice standard, transferces “have a duty to investigate
if there is sufficient information to put the transferee on notice that something is wrong.”™ Leonard
v. Woods & Erickson, LLP (In re AVI, Ing.), 389 B.R. 721, 736 (B.A.P. 9th Cir. 2008) (applying
objective standard of good faith under Bankruptcy Code § 550 that is similar to UFTA) (citing
Bonded Fin. Servs.. Inc. v. Eur. Am. Bank, 838 F.2d 890, 897-98 (7th Cir, 1988)),

61. Defendants contend that because they were, in their words. “exonerated™ by Judge

Adams in the Herbst Litigation, they are absolved of liability. However. whether Bayuk or Sam
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Morabito were participants in the original [raud that resulted in the judgment does not mean they
had no reason to know that Paul Morabito intended to hinder or delay enforcement of the Herbst
Parties’ judgmeni. Bayuk and Sam Morabito were present at the Oral Ruling when Judge Adams
awarded the Herbst Parties $85 million in damages against Paul Morabito on the basis of actual
fraud. In the Oral Ruling. Judge Adams not only awarded the Herbst Parties $85 million, but he
expressly found by clear and convincing evidence that Paul Morabito knowingly and intentionally
made material misrepresentations which “had no basis in reality.”*" Within the next two weeks,
the Defendants received substantially all of Paul Morabito’s assets. This alone put Defendants on
notice that something was wrong.

62.  Bayuk and Sam Morabito cannot demonstrate that they did not know or have reason
to know of Paul Morabito’s intent to hinder, delay, or defraud the Herbst Parties. They were aware
of the Oral Ruling and Paul Morabito®s obligations to the Herbst Parties at the time of the transfers.
They utilized the same counsel to orchestrate the transfers. They participated in the actions to strip
the value from Superpumper prior to Paul Morabito’s transfer of the equity. They allowed Paul
Morabito to continue using and controlling the assets transferred. They assisted in ensuring that
the Notes were not paid in accordance with their terms. thereby hindering collection by the Herbat
Parties. They continued to fund Paul Morabito’s lifestyle to ensure that, after the assets were
transferred, the Herbst Parties could not collect their judgment but Paul Morahito’s high-flying
lifestyle would not change. They did not receive the transfers in objective good faith. They were
complicit in all respects.

63.  Evenifgood faith could have been established, the transferee must still demonstrate
that it has provided value in exchange for the transfer. A complete defense to a fraudulent transfer
arises in favor of a good faith wansferee only if reasonably equivalent value is provided in

exchange. NRS 112.220(1). If the value provided is not “reasonably equivalent,” the value

9 Exh. | (Sept. 13,2010 Transcript of Judge Adams® Oral Ruling) at LMWF SUPP 23106, I. 14 - LMWF
SUPP 23107, . 6; LMWF SUPP 23117, 1L 11-22 (finding that Paul Morabito “knew firsthand from his own
employees and from his own accountant that [the working capital estimate] was incorrect,” that it
“materially inflated and false inflated the value of the company,”™ and that it had “no basis in reality, but it
was contrary to what he knew firsthand to be the truth.™)
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provided a good [aith iransferee entitles the transferee (o 4 lien or reduction in liability to the extent
of the value given. NRS 112.220(4)

64.  Prior to the transfers, Morabito owned interests in the Laguna Properties and
Panorama Property with an aggregate value of approximately $1,916,250; (2) a 50% interest in
Barul, with a value of approximately $1,654,550, and (3) an indirect 80% interest in Superpumper,
with a value of at least $10,440,000, After the transfers. Paul Morabito owned the Panorama
Property, with a net value of only $971,136 and the sham Notes, and received no more than
$60.000 in cash in connection with the Real Properties transfers and $1,035.068 in cash in
connection with Superpumper. For the reasons discussed above, the total amounts received by
Morabito are not reasonably equivalent to the more than $14 million in value transferred.

65.  Because the Defendants did not take the transfers in good faith, the Court does not
find they have established a good faith defense.

L G Plaintiff is Entitled to Avoidance of the Transfers and Return of the Property

Transterred Under NRS 112.210(a) and 11 U.5.C. § 541(a), and Judgment Under

NRS 112.220

1. Remedies Available to Plaintiff Under Chapter 112,

66.  The equitable remedies under UFTA are found in NRS 112.210 and 112.220(2).
NRS 112.210 provides:

1. In an action for relief against a transfer or obligation under this chapter.
a creditor. subject to the limitations in NRS 112.220. may obtain:

{a) Avoidance of the transfer or oblication to the extent necessary to
satisfv the creditor’s claim:

(b} An attachment or earnishiment against the asset transferred or other
property of the transferee pursuant to NRS 31.010 to 31.460. inclusive:
and

(c) Subiect to applicable princiles of equity and in accordance with
applicable rules of civil procedure:

(11 An injunction against further disposition by the debtor or a
transferee, or both. of the asset transferred or of other property;

{2) Appointment of a receiver to take charge of the asset wransferred
or of other property of the transferee: or

{31 Any other relief the circumstances may require.
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2. If a creditor has obtained a judament on a ¢laim asainst the debtor. the
creditor, if the court so orders, may levy execution on the asset transferred
or its proceeds.
NRS 112.210. Subsection (2} of NRS 112.220 provides:

Except as otherwise provided in this section. to the extent a transfer is
voidahle in an action by a creditor under paragraph (a) of subsection 1 of
NRS 112.210. the creditor may recover judgment for the value of the asset
transferred. as adijusted under subsection 3 of this section. or the amount
necessary to satisfy the creditor’s claim. whichever is less. The judgment
may be entered against:

{a) The first transferee of the asset or the person for whose benefit the
transfer was made: or

(b) Anv subscauent transferee other than a transferee who took in good
faith for value or from anv subsequent transleree.

67.  Thus, under NRS 112.210(1)(a). the first remedy is actual avoidance of the
transfers—undoing the transfer sued upon. NRS 112,150 expressly advises Nevada courts
construing the UFTA to harmanize its ruling with other states’ courts construing the UFTA. Courts
in other states interpreting UFTA have found that avoidance operates as a reconveyance of the
property to the transferor. See In re Sexton, 166 B.R. 421, 426 (Bankr. N.D. Cal. 1994) (applying
California law, . . . a creditor that succeeds in causing a fraudulent transfer to be avoided merely
causes the properly to be reconveyed io the transferor.”) (citing Wagner v. Trout, 124 Cal. App.2d
248, 254, 268 P.2d 537 (1954); Wright v. Salzberger. 121 Cal.App. 639. 9 P.2d 860 (1932));

United States v, Ultra Dimensions, 803 F. Supp. 2d 596. 601 (E.D. Tex. 2011) (under the Texas
UFTA, “a conveyance which is found to be fraudulent as to creditors is wholly null and void as to
such creditors, and the legal as well as the equitable title remains in the debtor for the purpose of
satisfying debts.”) (citing California Pipe Recyeling. Inc. v. Southwest Holdings, Inc.. 2010 WL
56053, ar *5 (S.D. Tex. 20109,

68.  Further, under NRS 112.210(1)(c), this Court has authority to issue an injunction
“against further disposition by the debtor or a transferee, or both, of the asset transferred or of other
property.” In addition to the power to grant injunctive relief under NRS 112.210(1)(c), the court
is also vested with the power 1o issue injunctive reliel pursuant to NRCP 65 and NRS 33.010.

NRS 33.010(3) provides for injunctive relief when a party acts in “violation of the plaintiff's rights
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respecting the subject of the action, and tending to render the judgment ineffectual.” NRS
33.010¢3). The Nevada Supreme Court has long held that “if the injury is likely to be irreparable,
or if the defendant be insolvent, equity will always interpose its powers to protect a person from a
threatenad injury.,” Champion v, Sessions, 1 Nev. 478, 483 (1865) (emphasis added). Injunctive

relief may be of either a mandatory or prohibitive nature, and is properly issued where “it is

essential to preserve a business or property interests.” Guion v. Terra Marketing of Nevada, Inc.,

90 Nev. 237, 240; City of Reno v. Matley, 79 Nev. 49, 60 (1963).

6. In addition, NRS 112.220(2) allows a creditor to recover judgment for the value of
the asset transferred,” subject to adjustment as equities may require. Moreover, NRS 112,220
permits the plaintifl to recover judgment against the initial transferee or the person for whose
benefit the transter was made—in this case, Bayuk and Sam Morabito.
70. Finally, NRS 112.210(1)c)(3) broadly permits the court to award “[ajny other
relief the circumstances may require” subject to principles of equity and the applicable rules of
civil procedure.
71.  The breadth and flexibility of these remedies is reflected in Altus Brands 11, LLC
v. Alexander, a Texas appellate decision discussing provisions of Texas’s UFTA which are
substantively identical to NRS 112.210 and 112,220. 435 5.W.3d 432 (Tex.App.--Dallas 2014,
no pet.) (applying Chapter 24 of the Texas Business & Commerce Code and specifically, Tex.
Bus, & Com. Code Ann., §§ 24.008 and 24.009). The Altus court described the purpose and
remedial provisions of UFTA as follows:
UFTA is intended to prevent debtors from defrauding creditors by moving
assets out of reach. “[Tlhe focus of an UFTA claim is 1o ensure the satisfaction
of a creditor’s claim when the elements of a fraudulent transfer are proven.”

Id. at 441,

i

i

H

i

fit
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As to a particular remedy, the court stated;
However. UFTA does not specify how a remedy is to be selected in a particular
case. To the extent appellees contend UFTA limits a crediter who has obtained
a iudement against the debior to the remedy described in Subsection 24.008(b),
i.e. execution on the asset transferred or its proceeds. the language of UFTA
does not. on its face, state such a limitation. Further. appellees cite no case law
supporting such a limitation. and we have found none.

Id. at 444 (internal citations omitted). >

72.  The remedial provisions of UFTA are equitable in nature and intended to restore
the creditor to the position he would have had if the fraudulent transfer had not occurred. The
court has the equitable power to fashion a remedy that fully restores the creditor—in this case, the
bankruptcy estate—to the position il would have held had the transfers not oceurred.

73. Plaintiff is therefore entitled to avoidance of the transfers to the extent necessary 1o
satisfy the claims of creditors against Paul Morabito’s estate pursuant fo NRS 112.210{a) and 11
US.C. § 544(b). It is undisputed that the combined value of the property transferred from
September 13, 2010 to October 10, 2010 is less than the amount of the claims. inclusive of the
Herbst Parties” claim arising from the Confessed Judgment. Therefore, Plaintiff 15 entitled to
avoidance of the transfers in their entirety, such that all of the transferred assets are returned to the

250

bankruptey estate.”

*" See also Arriaga v. Canmill, 407 S.W.3d 927, 933 (Tex.App.--Houston [14th Dist] 2013, ne pet.)
(reversing trial court’s award of judzment instead of execution on transferred property in light of debtor's
evasion of prior judgment, finding that “the trial court’s award of a money judgment effectively denies
[plaintiff]. the prevailing party, the equitable relief she sought—a result that is contrary to the purpose of
the UFTA ™). Matter of Galar, 850 F3d 800, 806 (5th Cir. 2017) (given the evidence of actual intent to
defraud and the broad remedial authority conferred by authority to grant “any other relief the circumstances
may require” and to make “adjustment as the equities may require” of UFTA, the trial court properly
awarded creditor amount which would restare her to the position she would have had if the fraudulent
transfer had nol occurred, which included percentage of gross income alter the date of the transfer, over
transferee’s ohjection the district court should have limited compensatory damages to the value of the
royalty rights at the time of the transfer).

#1 Here, because Paul Morabito is a debtor under Chapter 7 of the Bankruptey Code, all legal and
equitable interests of Paul Morabito as of June 20, 2013 are property of the bankruptey estate, ||
U.S.C. § 5341{a). Reconvevance of the property to the transferor—Paul Morabito—therefore requires
conveyance of the property to the bankruptey estate.
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v Plaintiff Is Entitled to Avoid the Real Property Transfers and Recover
Paul Morabito’s Interest in the Laguna Properties, as well as Monetary
Judgment Acainst Bavuk and the Bayvuk Trust Based on the Real
Property Transfers in the Amount of $1,236.458.

74, Bayuk and the Bayuk Trust continue to own the Laguna Properties, Therefore,
under NRS 112.210(1)(a) and 11 U.S.C. § 541(a), the bankruptcy estaie is entitled to a return of
Paul Morabilo’s 75% interest in the El Camino Property and his 50% interest in the Los Olivos
Property.

75.  PlantifTis also entitled to 2 monetary judgment equal to the value of the transferred
asset as of the date of transfer. Paul Morabito’s 75% interest in El Camino Property was valued
at $80B, 981 at the time of the transfers, and his 50% interest in Los Olivos Property had a value of
$427.477 at the time of the translers, for a total interest in the Laguna Properties at the time of the
transfers of $1,236,458.

3. Plaintiff Is Entitled to Avoid the Baruk Transfer and Recover the Equity
Interest in Baruk LLC, and Monetary Judgment Against Bayvuk and the
Bayuk Trust Based on fhe Baruk Transfer in the Amount of 1,654,550,

T6. Paul Morabito indirectly owned 50% of the Baruk Properties prior to the transfers

through Baruk LLC. Bayuk testified that he transferred the interest in Baruk LLC acquired from
Paul Morabito to Snowshoe Properties and the Bayuk Trust. Bayuk still owns and controls the
transferred properties (except the Clayton Property)}—the Bayuk Trust owns 100% of the
Glenneyre Properties indirectly through Snowshoe Properties, and directly owns the Mary Fleming
Property. While litigation has been pending, Bavuk converted Snowshoe Properties from a
California company to a Delaware company.

77.  Plaintiff is entitled to avoidance of the Baruk Transfer, thereby restoring Paul
Morabito’s 50% equity interest in the remaining Baruk Properties. However, as a result of the
subseguent transfers, Plaintiff is not remedied with avoidance alone,

78.  Plaintiff is entitled to a monetary judgment against Bayuk and the Bayvuk Trust
based on the Baruk Transfer in the amount of $1,654,550 under NRS 112.220(2), As evidenced
by the valuations obtained by Paul Morabito and Defendants, and the appraisal of the Clayton

Property which was not valued by Defendants at the time of the transfers, the total value of Baruk
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LLC on September 30, 2010 was $3,309,100. Morabito’s 50% interest, therefore, had a value of
$1.654,550. As a resull, the Trustee is entitled to judgment against Bayuk and the Bayuk Trust in
the amount of $1,654,550.

4. Plaintiff Is Entitled to Monetary Judgments Against Bavuk, Sam
Morabito, and Snowshoe Based on the Superpumper Transfers.

79.  While this action was pending, Defendants sold Superpumper and therefore,
avoidance of'the Superpumper Transfer is an inadequate remedy. Under NRS 112.220(2), Plaintiff
is entitled to a judgment against the Defendants in the amount of the value of Morabitos interest
at the time of the transfers.

80.  Between September 21 and 23, 2010, Morahito transferred $355,000 to Salvatore
and $420,250 to Bayuk, purportedly in exchange for their interests in Raffles. However, the
Raffles assets remained an asset of CWC and Snowshoe, demonstrating that the alleged transfer
was intended solely to strip CWC of one of its two assets and thereby reduce the valuation of
Superpumper. Plaintiff 1s entitled to judgment in the amount of $355,000 against Salvatore and
$420.250 against Baruk for the fraudulently-transferred cash.

gl. Furthermore, Morabito’s 80% interest in Superpumper had a value of $10.440,000
(exclusive of Raffles), In exchange for his interest in Superpumper. Morabito received only
$1,035.068 and the Superpumper Note, which was illusory and provided no benefit to Morabito's
creditors. Snowshoe was the initial transferee of the Superpumper Transfer. Bayuk and Salvatore
were the ultimate recipients of the equity Interests in Superpumper and therefore, the persons for
whose benefit the transfers were made. Accordingly, Plaintiff is entitled to a judgment against
Snowshoe in the amount of $9,404,932, and judgments against each of Bayuk and Salvatore for
$4.702,466.

5. Plaintiff 1s Entitled to Injunctive Relief,

82. During the pendency of this action, Defendants sold Superpumper to a third party,
and Bayuk converted Snowshoe Properties from a California company to a Delaware company.
Defendants have demonstrated both the ability and the willingness to engage in shell games to

prevent Paul Morabita’s creditors and Plaintiff from recovering assets to satisfy their claims.
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Absent injunctive relief, Defendants are likely to transfer assets in an attempt to evade the count's

judgment in favor of the Plaintiff,

I1.
JUDGMENT

Based upon the foregoing and good cause appearing,

IT [SHEREBY ORDERED that judgment is entered in favor of Plaintiff and against Bayuk

and the Bayuk Trust, as follows:

I

Avoiding the transfer of the El Camine Property and the Los Olivos Property. and
awarding Plaintifl’ damages in the amount of $884.999.95, with offset for amounts
collected on account of the El Camino Property and the Los Olivos Property;
Avoiding the transfer of Baruk LLC and awarding PlaintifT damages in the amount
of $1.654,550 with offsel for amounis collected on account of Baruk LLC;
Avoiding the transfer of $420.250 and awarding Plaintiff’ damages in the amount
of $420,250 with offset for amounts collected an account of the $420,250; and
Avoiding the Superpumper Transfer and awarding Plaintiff damages in the amount
of $4,949 000 with offset for amounts collected on account of the Superpumper

Transfer.

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED that judgment is entered in favor of Plaintiff and

against Sam Morabito as follows:

L.

Avoiding the transfer of $335,000 and awarding Plaintiff damages in the amount
of $355,000 with offset for amounts collected on account on account of the
$355.000; and

Avpiding the Superpumper Transfer and awarding Plaintiff damages in the amount
of $4.949,000 with offset for amounts collected on account of the Superpumper

Transfer.

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED that judgment is entered in favor of Plaintiff and

against Snowshoe, avoiding the Superpumper Transfer and awarding Plaintiff damages in the

amount of $9.898.000 with offset for amounts collected on account of the Superpumper Transfer.
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IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED that Plaintiff is awarded pre-judgment interest on
the amounts set forth above at the Nevada statutory rate from date of service of the summonses
and complaint to the date of entry of this judgment.

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED that PlaintifT is awarded post-judgment interest on
the amounts set forth above at the Nevada statutory rate until the judgment is paid in full.

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED that under NRCP 65, NRS 33.010, and NRS
112.210(1)(c), the Court hereby enjoins and restrains Delendants, and each of them, as well as
their officers, directors, agents, servants, and atiorneys, and those persons or entities in concern
with them who receive actual notice of this Judgment, whether acting directly or indirectly, or
through any third party. from concealing, transferring, disposing of, or encumbering the El Camino
Property, the Los Olivos Property, the Baruk Properties (or their proceeds), Snowshoe Properties

or any successor thereto, or any assets held for the benefit of Panl Morabito.

Dated this &53 day of  Moudn _ 2014,

DISTRICT JUDGE
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

CASE NO. CV13-02663

I certify that 1 am an employee of the SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT of the
STATE OF NEVADA, COUNTY OF WASHOE: that on the _Lo[_ day of
~Y -10 }(’C/ft'\‘ , 2019, 1 filed the FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF
LAW AND JUDGMENT with the Clerk of the Court.

I further certify that I transmitted a true and correct copy of the foregoing document by the
method(s) noted below:
Personal delivery to the following: [NONE]

lectronically filed with the Clerk of the Court, using the eFlex system which
constitutes effective service for all eFiled documents pursuant to the eFile User Agreement,

GABRIELLE HAMM, ESQ. for WILLIAM A. LEONARD, JR, TRSTEE OF ESTATE OF
PAUL A. MORABITO

MARK WEISENMILLER, ESQ, for WILLIAM A, LEONARD, IR, TRSTEE OF ESTATE
OF PAUL A. MORABITO

FRANK GILMORE, ESQ). for SNOWSHOE PETROLEUM, INC. et al

TERESA PILATOWICZ, ESQ. for WILLIAM A. LEONARD. JR, TRSTEE OF ESTATE
OF PAUL A. MORABITO

ERIKA TURNER, ESQ. for WILLIAM A. LEONARD, JR, TRSTEE OF ESTATE OF
PAUL A. MORABITO

Transmitted document to the Second Judicial District Court mailing system in a scaled
envelope for [mstaﬁ: and mailing by Washoe County using the United States Postal Service
in Reno, Nevada: [NONE]

Placed a true copy in a sealed envelope for service via:

Reno/Carson Messenger Service - [NONE]
Federal Express or other overnight delivery service [NONE]

DATED this?) 9] day of
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FILED
Electronically
CV13-02663

2700 2019-07-10 11:15:27 AM

Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Court

Transaction # 7364866

IN THE. SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COHINTY OF WASHOE

WILLLAM A, LEONARLD, Trustee for the CASE NO-: CV13-02663
Bankrupicy Estate of Paul Anthony Morabito,
Plaintift, DEPT. NO. 4

¥,
SUPERPUMPER, INC., an Arizona
corporation; EDWARD BAYUK. individually
and as Trustee of the EDWARD WILLIAM
BAYTJK LIVING TRUST,; SALVATORL
MORABITC, and individual: and
SNOWSHOE PLTROLEUM. INC., a New
York corpomation.

Defendants.

ORDER DENYING DEFENDANTS® MOTIONS FOR NEW TRIAL AND/OR TO
ALTER OR AMEND JUDGMENT

Defendants Superpumper, Inc. (*Superpumper™), Salvatore Morabito (“Maorabite™), and
Snowshoe Petroleum, Inc. {“Snowshoe™) filed a Metion for New Trial andior 1o Alter ar Amend
Defendant Edward Bayuk, individually and as Trustee of the Lidward William Bayuk T.iving Trust

{“Bayuk.” and collectively with Superpumper, Morabito, and Snowshoe, “Defendants™ filed a

Motion for New Trial andier to diter or Amend Judement filed on April 26, 2019 (the “Bavuk

Muotion® and topether with the Snowshoe Motion, the "Motions™). Plaintilt Williatn A. Leonard.

chapter 7 trustec tor the bankrupicy estate of Paul A. Morabito (“Plaintift™) filed Pleinddif s

Opposition o Defendants” Motions for New Trial andior to Alter or Amend Judgment (the .

“Opposition™) on May 7, 2019, and Superpumper, Snowshoe, and Morabito filed Deféndants’
Repdy in Suppors of Motion for New Trial andior to Alter or Amend Judgment Pursaant to NRUP

52, 38, and 60 {the “Snowshoe Reply™) on May 14, 2019, The Snowshoe Motion was submitted

for decision on May 14, 2019, Bayuk did not file a reply in support of the Bayuk Motion, and

Plainuiff submitted the Bayuk Motion for decision on May 21, 2019,
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The Court has reviewed and considered the arguments made in the Motions, the
Opposition, and the Snowshoe Reply, the papers and pleadings on file with the Court in this action,
the testimony and exhibits admitted during the trial, and the Court’s Findings of Fact, Conclusions
of Law, and Judgment, entered on March 29, 2019 (the “Judgment™). The Court, persuaded by
the argument and authorities in Plaintiff’s Opposition, along with the pleadings and papers on file,
the trial record, and the findings and conclusions set forth in the Judgment, finds as follows:

1. Defendants’ Motions identify no clerical mistakes, oversights, newly-discovered
evidence, or any other grounds for relief from the Judgment under Rule 60 of the Nevada Rules of
Civil Procedure (“NRCP”). See NRCP 60(a) and (b).

2. Defendants’ Motions do not set forth grounds for relief under NRCP 52. The Court
made specific findings of fact substantiated by the actual trial record and separately stated its
conclusions of law, and the Court’s findings and conclusions were set forth in a memorandum in
the Judgment. See NRCP 52(a)(1). Defendants failed to set forth any basis for the Court to make
additional findings or amend its findings. See NRCP 52(b).

3. Relief from a judgment or order under NRCP 59 is an extraordinary remedy

available only upon a finding that an error occurred which materially affected the substantial rights

of the movant. See NRCP 59(a)(1); see also Khoury v. Seastrand, 132 Nev. Adv. Op. 52,377 P.3d
81, 94 (2016); Gunderson v. D.R. Horton, Inc., 130 Nev. 67, 74, 319 P.3d 606, 611 (2014). Here,

there was no irregularity that denied Defendants a fair trial, nor an error in law over Defendants’
objection that would justify a new trial or altering or amending the Judgment. Further, in light of
the volume of evidence supporting the Court’s findings regarding the multiple badges of fraud and
Defendants’ lack of good faith, Defendants cannot demonstrate that any error, if one occurred, was
one that affected the outcome of the trial or materially affected their substantial rights.

Based on the foregoing, and good cause appearing,

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Defendants’ Motions for New Trial and/or to Alter or

o S

DISTRICT JUDGE
2

Amend Judgment are DENIED.
Dated this 9 day of July, 2019.
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FILED
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2019-07-10 11:17:04 A
2777 Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Court
Transaction # 7364871

IN THE SECONTD JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEYADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

WIL1.IAM A LEON AR, Trusice for the CASE NO.: CVI13-02663
Rankruptey Lstate of Paul Anthony
Moarabito, DEPT. NO.: 4

Plaintuff,

VE,
SUTERPUMPER, INC., an Arizona
corpotation; EDWARD BAYUK,
individually and as Trustee of the EDWARD
WILLIAM BAYUK LIVING TRUST,
SALVATORE MORABITO, and individual:
and SNOWSHOE PETROLEUM, INC., a
New York corporation,

Defendants.

ORDER GRANTING FLAINTIFF'S APPLICATION FOR AN AWARD
OF ATTORNEYS' FEES AND COSTS PURSUANT TO NRCF 68

Plaintitf Willlum A. Leonard. chapter 7 trustec tor the bankrupley estate of Paul A.

Moarahito and judgment ereditor in the above-entitled action (the “Plaintifl™) filed an dppfication

For am Award of Attorneys ' foes und Costs Pursuont to NRUP 68 (the “Application™ on April 12, -

2019, Superpumper. In¢.. Salvatore Morabito, and Snowshoe Petroleum, Ine. (collectively, the

“Responding Defendants™) filed an Opposition to the Application for Attorreys ' Fees and Costs

.

(the *Opposition™) on April 25, 2019, Plaintift filed a Reply in Support of the Application for
Attorneys " Fees and Costs purswant to NRCP 68 (the “Reply™) on April 30, 2019, Fdward Bayuk,
individually and as trustee of the lidward William Bayuk 1 iving ‘T'rust (“Bayuk,” and together with
the Responding Defendants, the “Delendants™ did not oppose the Application. 'The Application
was submitled [or decision on May 1, 2019,

The Court has reviewed and considered the arguments made in the Application, the

Opposition, and the Reply, the papers and pleadings on file with the Court in this action, including
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the Memorandurmn of Costs (iled by Trustee on April 11, 2019, the Morion to Rerax (the “Motion

w_Retax™) filed on May 1, 2019, the testimony and exhibits admitted during the trial, and the
Court’s Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Judgment, entered on March 29, 2019 (the
“Judgment™). The Court, persuaded by the argument and authorities in Plaintiil’s Application,
alang with the pleadings and papers on file, the trial record, and the lindings and conclusions set
farth in the Judgment, finds as ollows:

l. Plaintift served a valid apportioned offer of judgment in the amount of §3,000,000

on Defendants an May 31, 2016 (the “Ofter of Judesment™),

2 Defendants rejected the Offer of Judgment.
3. Plaintill obtained a verdict in an amoumt greater than the Olier of Judgment alier a
trial on the merits.
4, Plaintiff"s Offer ol Judgement must be enforced under NRS 6%(f) and consistent
with the factors delincaled in Beorrie ve. Thomas, 99 Nov, 579, 008 P.2d 268 (1983)
a. Plaintiff's Offer of Judgment was a goed faith offer premiscd on sound factual

and lcgal bases,

b. Plaintiff' s Offer of Judgment was rcasonable and in good faith in timing and

armgunt.
C. Defendants’ rejection of the Offer of Judgment was unreasonable.
5. Plaintift"s attorney’s fees are fair and reasonable and enforceable under the

standards set forth in Brunzel! v, Golden Cete Notiomed Bunk, 85 Nev, 343, 349, 4335 p.2d 31, 33

(1969):
a. Thework required in connection with the case was difficult and time consuming
und petformed by skilled counsel.
b. The character of the work, time, and skill required justifies the fees requested.
c. 'The attorneys were suceessful in obtaining a favorable result Tor the Plaintiff
.-'rn"lJ'll
L
fi

bl

9344




- -

W

26
27
28

0. The Otfer of Judgment justifies the award of fees and cosls.

Bascd upon the foregoing, and good cause appearing:

IT 1S HEREBRY QRDERED that the Application lor an Award of Attorneys’ Fees and
(Costs Pursuant to NRCP 68 is GRANTEL.

'l IS HEREBY IPURTHER ORDERLD that the Plaintiff is awarded attomeys’ fecs
incurred from June 1, 2016 through the date of the Judgment in the amount of $773,116.00.

ITIS HERERY FURTHIR ORDERED that the Plainuff is awarded costs incurred from
June 1, 2016 through the date of Judgment. which have not been otherwise reduced already by the
Erder Uraming in Purl and Denving in Part Motion to Retax, in the amount of $109.427.

IT IS HERERY FURTHER ORDERELD that the Defendants ave ordercd w pay Plaintiff's
attomeys’ (ves in the amount of $773,116.00, less the $8.128.67 in sanctions already paid, for a
totul amount of $764,.987.33 in atlomeys” fecs and $100,427 in costs,

IT IS HEREBY FURTHLR CRDERED that this award of attorneys’ lees and costs shall
be added 1o the amount of the Judgment.

Dated this 3 day of July, 2019,

e

DISTRICT JUIGE
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nzs 2019-07-10 11:16:11 A
Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Court
Transaction # 7364868

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE
WILLIAM A, LEONARD, Trustee forthe | CASE NO.: CV13-02663

Bankruptcy Estate of Paul Anthony
Morabito, PEPT. NOQ.: 4

Plaintiff,
Vs,

SUPERPUMPER, INC._, an Arizona
corporation; EIYWARD BAYUK,
individually and as Trustee of the EDWARD
WILLIANM BAY UK LIVING TRUST;
SALVATORE MORABITG, and individual.
and SNOWSTIOE PETROLEUM, INC., a
New York corporation,

Detendants.

ORDER GRANTING IN PART AND DENYING IN PART MOTION
TO RETAX COSTS

Defendants Salvatore Morabito, Superpumper, Inc., and Snowshoc Petroleum, Ine.

{collectively. the “Defendants™) filed their Meaiion to Retfax Costy {(*Motion to Betax™) on April

15, 2016, Plaintiff William A, Leonard, chaprer 7 trustee for the bankruptey estate of Paul A.
Morabito and judgment creditor in the above-entitled action (the “Plaintitt™) filed his Opposition
to Motion to Retex Costs (the “Opposition™) on April 18, 2019, Defendants filed their Reply in
Support of Motion f0 Retax Costy (the “Reply™) on April 22, 2018, The Motion to Retax was
submitted for decision on May . 2019,

The Court has reviewed and considered the argutnents made in the Motion, the Opposition,

and the Reply, the papers and pleadings on file with the Court in this action, the testimony and
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exhibits admitted during the trial, and the Court’s Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and
Judgment, entered on March 29, 2019 (the “Judgment™). The Court, persuaded by the argument
and authorities in Plaintiff’s Opposition, along with the pleadings and papers on file, the trial
record, and the findings and conclusions set forth in the Judgment, finds as follows:

1. Plaintiff filed his Memorandum of Costs and Disbursements (the “Memorandum”)
on April 11, 2019.

2. The four-day delay in filing the Memorandum is for good cause based on the

Plaintiff’s confusion regarding the application of NRCP Rule 68 and NRS 18.110.

3. The four-day delay in filing the Memorandum has not caused any prejudice to the
Defendants.

4, The following reductions in the costs requested in the Memorandum are
appropriate:

a. The costs of experts should be reduced from $77,201.80 to $75,505.90;
b. The costs of photocopies should be reduced from $17,961.67 to $17,772.17,
c. The costs for use of Odyssey in the amount of $200 are reduced to $0.00.
5. The remaining costs incurred for Plaintiff’s experts were reasonably incurred and
are reasonable under the circumstances of this case as modified from the Memorandum.
6. The remaining charges for photocopying were reasonably incurred and are
reasonable under the circumstances of this case as modified from the Memorandum.
7. Plaintiff had no obligation to only retain local counsel and the costs associated with
Plaintiff’s chosen counsels’ representation were reasonable and necessary.
8. There was no objection to the remaining costs in the Memorandum and they were
authorized, reasonable, and actually incurred.
Based upon review of the entire file, the foregoing, and good cause appearing:
IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the Motion to Retax is granted in part and denied in part.
IT ISHEREBY FURTHER ORDERED that the five-day deadline to file the Memorandum

is extended up to and including April 11, 2019 and the Memorandum is therefore timely.

9348




Il 1S HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED that the costs listed in the Memorandum, as
madified herein, in the amount of $152,856.84 are reasonable costs incurred in this matter pursuant
to NRS § 18110 and are awarded in Plaintiff's favor and against Delendants and Edward Bayuk,
individually and as trustee of the Edward William Bayuk Living T'rust.

IT 18 HEREBY I'URTHER ORDERED that this award of costs shall be added to the
amunt of the Judgment.

Dated this S day of July, 2019

DISTRICT JUDGE
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Garman Turner Gordon

650 White Dr., Suite 100

Las Vegas, Nevada 89119

(725) 777-3000

3790

GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP
ERIKA PIKE TURNER, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 6454

E-mail: eturner@gtg.legal
TERESA M. PILATOWICZ, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 9605

E-mail: tpilatowicz@gtg.legal
GABRIELLE A. HAMM, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 11588

E-mail: ghamm@gtg.legal

650 White Drive, Ste. 100

Las Vegas, Nevada 89119
Telephone 725-777-3000

Special Counsel to Trustee

FILED
Electronically
CV13-02663

2019-08-05 09:08:25 PM
Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Court
Transaction # 7412704 : csulezi

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF

THE STATE OF NEVADA, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

WILLIAM A. LEONARD, Trustee for the
Bankruptcy Estate of Paul Anthony
Morabito,

Plaintiff,
VS.

SUPERPUMPER, INC., an Arizona
corporation; EDWARD BAYUK,
individually and as Trustee of the EDWARD
WILLIAM BAYUK LIVING TRUST;
SALVATORE MORABITO, and individual;
and SNOWSHOE PETROLEUM, INC., a
New York corporation,

Defendants.

CASE NO.: CV13-02663
DEPT.NO.: 4

PLAINTIFF’S REPLY TO DEFENDANTS’
OBJECTION TO PLAINTIFF’S PROPOSED
ORDER DENYING CLAIM OF
EXEMPTION AND THIRD-PARTY CLAIM

Plaintiff, William A Leonard, Trustee for the Bankruptcy Estate of Paul Anthony

Morabito’s, replies (the “Reply”) to the five arguments raised in Exhibit “2” to the Objection to

Plaintiff’s Proposed Order Denying Claim of Exemption and Third-Party Claim (the “Objection”)

filed by Edward Bayuk, individually and as trustee of the Edward William Bayuk Living Trust

(collectively, “Bayuk™).

Each dispute is addressed in the order in which it is listed in the Objection by first listing

the Defendants’ proposed changes to Plaintiff’s proposed language, then restating Bayuk’s
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position set forth in Exhibit “2” to the Objection, and finally presenting Plaintiff’s response:

A. Disputed Language in Paragraph 2:

Bayuk Trust was established in 1998

the Bayuk Trust received fraudulently transferred property
which was established by clear and convincing evidence.

1. Defendants’ Position: - §2: Barry L. Breslow, Esq., in a supplement to NRCP 16.1

disclosures dated March 1, 2011 provided Plaintiffs with copies of the Fifth Amendment and
Restatement of the Trust Agreement for the Arcadia Living Trust (RBSL 001868-001906) which
stated that this revocable trust was established on February 14, 2006; and of the Spendthrift Trust
Agreement for the Arcadia Living Trust established on October 14, 2005 (RBSL 001907- 001942)
revoking the August 25, 1998 Arcadia Living Trust revocable trust established in Miami Beach,
Florida (CG000043-CG000099) on August 25, 1998. Separately Plaintiffs were as well as the
revocable California Arcadia Living Trust of January 6, 2005 which was supplied to Plaintiffs in
July, 2019.

2. Plaintiff’s Response: There is no evidence before the Court that the Bayuk Trust

was properly established as a self-settled spendthrift trust and no evidence that the alleged nature
of the Bayuk Trust as a self-settled spendthrift trust was disclosed prior to June 2019. The Arcadia
Living Trust, which is Paul Morabito’s trust, and disclosure or non-disclosure of the same is
irrelevant to the disclosures and non-disclosures related to the Bayuk Trust.

B. Disputed Language in Paragraph 3:

disclosed
In response to
discovery requests the
, Bayuk and the Bayuk Trust
produced evidence regarding the date and the purpose of the Bayuk Trust
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With the Claim of Exemption, the Bayuk Trust
that there is, and has been, only one trust with the name “the
Edward William Bayuk Living Trust” and that is the Bayuk Trust.

1. Bayuk’s Position: | 3: Plaintiff's deposed Paul Morabito on Thursday, March 3,

2011 with John P. Desmond, Esq., and Brian R. Irvine, Esq., present with Mr. Breslow wherein
Mr. Morabito detailed all of the exchanges by exempt assets in Mr. Morabito's self-settled
spendthrift trusts ("SSST") of which he was a Trustee but not a beneficiary to Edward Bayuk's
SSST Edward William Bayuk Living Trust of which Mr. Bayuk was the Trustee but not a
beneficiary. Mr. Morabito went into detail the existence of the SSST Arcadia Living Trust as well
as the revocable Arcadia Living Trust that was in California (2005), Florida (1998) and Nevada
(2006) each spending trusts used for administrative convenience.

2. Plaintiff’s Position: The proposed language is intentionally misleading. The

Arcadia Living Trust, which is Paul Morabito’s trust, and disclosure or non-disclosure of the same
is irrelevant to the disclosures and non-disclosures related to the Bayuk Trust. Instead, there is
ample evidence before the Court that Bayuk repeatedly produced contradictory evidence regarding
his alleged trusts. Notably, at no point during all of the contradictory evidence produced, and not
until June 2019, did Bayuk disclose the nature of his trust as a purported self-settled spendthrift
trust.

C. Disputed Language in Paragraph 4: The Bayuk Trust does not meet the

requirements for enforcement as a Nevada spendthrift trust under NRS 166.015 because Bayuk is
the , and neither Bayuk
nor Paul Morabito are
Nevada. NRS 166.015(2). As established in the Judgment, Bayuk and Paul Morabito
moved to California in September 2010.

1. Bayuk’s Position: 74: Mr. Bayuk was the Settlor (not Settler) and Trustee of the

SSST Edward William Bayuk Living Trust and not a beneficiary. Both Mr. Bayuk and Mr.

Morabito were Nevada residents on the execution dates of their respective Nevada irrevocable
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SSST.

2. Plaintiff’s Position: Pursuant to Section 3 of the Bayuk Trust submitted with the

Declaration of Edward Bayuk Claiming Exemption from Execution dated June 27, 2019, Mr.
Bayuk is a beneficiary of his trust. Specifically, the Bayuk Trust states:

GRANTOR'S TRUST The following provisions shall apply to the
distribution of the Nevada Trust estate during Bayuk's lifetime.
During Bayuk's lifetime at Bayuk's sole discretion the Trustee may
distribute to Bayuk, or Bayuk may distribute other than to Bayuk,
such amount of net income and principal as deemed appropriate, if
at all. No distribution is required other than at the discretion of the
Trustee. Further, if Bayuk becomes incapacitated, the Trustee is
authorized to distribute to any person that Bayuk is legally obligated
to support or who has been receiving support from me that amount
of net income and principal as the Trustee deems appropriate in his
discretion to continue to support. The Trustee shall exercise this
discretion in a liberal manner, and the rights of the remainder
beneficiaries shall be of no importance. The Trustee shall
accumulate and add any undistributed net income to principal.

Furthermore, Plaintiff’s proposed language regarding Mr. Morabito and Mr. Bayuk’s domicile and
relocating to California is 2010 is factually accurate.

D. Disputed Language in Paragraph 5:

evidence presented that the Bayuk Trust
owns a burial plot in Nevada; but, even if such fact were established, the ownership of a burial plot
in Nevada is insufficient to invoke the protections of NRS 166

1 Bayuk’s Position: 1 5: Michael Lehners, Esq. on July 22, 2019 stated (pg. 55, lines

23-24) that "'l can swear Mr. Bayuk and ask him the question and there is the evidence™ regarding
the Edward William Bayuk Living Trust SSST burial plot. Mr. Bayuk had evidence in his
possession during the hearing of the ownership of a gravesite burial plot in Reno owned by his
SSST Edward William Bayuk Living Trust. When offered Mr. Bayuk's personal knowledge as
Trustee for live testimony, Judge Steinheimer commented: "He would be qualified if he told the

truth.” Present in the courtroom was former Nevada Governor Jim Gibbons, who was prepared
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to testify regarding the Bayuk Trust.

2. Plaintiff’s Position: It is misleading to claim that the Court denied the Objection

“without allowing Bayuk to introduce additional evidence in the form of documents and testimony
at the hearing.” Bayuk never disclosed the existence of any documents related to the purported
burial plot during or before the hearing on the Claim of Exemption from Execution. While this
Court rejected Bayuk’s last minute attempts to supplement the record with testimony from Mr.
Bayuk, it did not prohibit Bayuk from introducing documents. Instead, no such documents had
ever been disclosed. Furthermore, it is wrong to contend that this Court’s decision on the Objection
was made “contrary to the evidence contained in the Claim of Exemption from Execution.” This
Court specifically found, as it has done in the past, that Mr. Bayuk is not credible.

E. Disputed Language in Paragraph 5: The subject fraudulent transfers occurred in

September 2010 and thereafter

1. Bayuk’s Position: { 6: Gabrielle A. Hamm, Esq., counsel for Plaintiffs, had sworn

in Plaintiff's objections to exhibits of public records of property conveyances made from the SSST
Arcadia Living Trust to the Edward William Bayuk Living Trust SSST, either directly or through

administrative revocable trusts, most dated on October 1, 2010.

2. Plaintiff’s Position: Plaintiff does not dispute that Ms. Hamm swore in public
records of property conveyances. However, the language as proposed by Bayuk is misleading, as
further confirmed by Bayuk’s argument in the Objection. There is no indication anywhere in the
public records regarding the purported self-settled nature of the Bayuk Trust or that property was

transferred to a self-settled spendthrift trust.
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AFFIRMATION
Pursuant to NRS 239B.030

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding document does not contain the

social security number of any person.

Dated this 5" day of August, 2019.

GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP

[s/ Teresa M. Pilatowicz

ERIKA PIKE TURNER, ESQ.
TERESA M. PILATOWICZ, ESQ.
GABRIELLE A. HAMM, ESQ.
650 White Drive, Ste. 100

Las Vegas, Nevada 89119
Telephone 725-777-3000

Special Counsel for Trustee
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Garman Turner Gordon

650 White Dr., Suite 100

Las Vegas, Nevada 89119

(725) 777-3000

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
I certify that | am an employee of GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP, and that on this

date, pursuant to NRCP 5(b), I am serving a true and correct copy of the foregoing PLAINTIFF’S
REPLY TO DEFENDANTS’ OBJECTION TO PLAINTIFF’'S PROPOSED ORDER
DENYING CLAIM OF EXEMPTION AND THIRD-PARTY CLAIM on the parties as set
forth below:

Placing an original or true copy thereof in a sealed envelope placed for collection and
mailing in the United States Mail, Reno, Nevada, postage prepaid, following
ordinary business practices addressed as follows:

Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested
Via Facsimile (Fax)
Via E-Mail

Placing an original or true copy thereof in a sealed envelope and causing the same
to be personally Hand Delivered

Federal Express (or other overnight delivery)

X By using the Court’s CM/ECF Electronic Notification System addressed to:

Michael Lehners, Esq.
E-mail: mcl3303@aol.com

Jeffrey L. Hartman, Esg.
E-mail: jlh@bankruptcyreno.com

Dated this 5th day of August, 2019.
/sl Teresa Pilatowicz

An Employee of GARMAN TURNER
GORDON LLP
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FILED

Electronically

CV13-02663

2019-08-09 01:10:28 PM
2540 Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Court

Transaction # 7421482

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

WILLIAM A, LEONARD, Trustce for the | CASE NO.: CV13-02663
Bankruptey Estate of Paul Anthony i
Muorabiio, DEPT.NO.: 4

Plaintift.
Vs,

SLPERPUMPER, INC., an Arizona
corporation; EDWARD BAYLK,
individually and as Trustee of the EDWARD
WILLIAM BAYUK LIVING TRUST:
SALVATORE MORARITO, and individual:
and SNOWSIIOE PETROLEUM. INC.. a
New York corporation,

__Detendanis.

ORDER DENYING CLAIM OF EXEMPTION AND THIRD PARTY CLAIM

Betore the Court is the Notice of Claim of Exemption from Execution (the "Claim of |
Exemption™) filed on Junc 28, 2019 by Edward Bavuk (“Bayuk™), individually and as trustce of
the Edward William Dayuk Living Trust {the “Bayuk Trust™), and the Third Parey Claim to

Property Levied Upon [NRS 31,0701 (the *Third Party Claim™) filed on July 3, 2019 by the Bayuk

Trust. The Claim of Exemption and Third Party Claim are supported by the Declaraion of Edward

Buyvak Claiming Exemption from Execution (the “Bayuk Declaration™). filed on July 2, 2019

Flaintiff s Objection to (1) Declaration of Ectward Bayuk Claiming Exemption From Execution
aned (2) Third Party Claim to Properry Levied Upon, and Request for Hearing Pursuant to NRS
21012 and 31.07063) (the ~Objection™) was filed on July 11. 2009, and Bavuk and the Bavuk
Trust’s Reply to Objection to Claim of Exemption and Third Party Claim to Property Levied Upon

{the “Reply”) was filed on July 17, 2019,
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The Court held a hearing on the Claim of Exemption and Third Party Claim on July 22,
2019. Bayuk and the Bayuk Trust appeared by and through counsel, Michael Lehners and Jeffrey
L. Hartman. Plaintiff appeared by and through counsel, Erika Pike Turner, Gerald M. Gordon,
and Teresa Pilatowicz of the law firm of Garman Turner Gordon LLP.

The Court has reviewed and considered the arguments made in the Claim of Exemption
and the Third Party Claim, the Objection, and the Reply, the Bayuk Declaration, the exhibits to all
of the foregoing, the papers and pleadings on file with the Court in this action, the testimony and
exhibits admitted during the trial, the Court’s Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Judgment,
entered on March 29, 2019 (the “Judgment”), and the arguments of counsel made at the hearing.
The Court, persuaded by the argument and authorities in Plaintiff’s Objection and the arguments
of Plaintiff’s counsel at the hearing, along with the pleadings and papers on file, the trial record,
and the findings and conclusions set forth in the Judgment, finds as follows:

1. The court has subject matter jurisdiction over the claims asserted against Bayuk, as
trustee of the Bayuk Trust.

2. Bayuk has transferred all of his personal assets to the Bayuk Trust since the Bayuk
Trust was established in 1998. As set forth in the Judgment, the Bayuk Trust received fraudulently
transferred property which was established by clear and convincing evidence.

3. The purported nature of the Bayuk Trust as a Nevada spendthrift trust was not
disclosed prior to the Claim of Exemption. In response to discovery requests, in deposition, in
subject deeds, and at trial prior to the Judgment, Bayuk and the Bayuk Trust produced
contradictory evidence regarding the date and the purpose of the Bayuk Trust. With the Claim of
Exemption, the Bayuk Trust clarifies that that there is, and has been, only one trust with the name
“the Edward William Bayuk Living Trust” and that is the Bayuk Trust.

4, The Bayuk Trust does not meet the requirements for enforcement as a Nevada
spendthrift trust under NRS 166.015 because Bayuk is the settlor and beneficiary during his
lifetime of the Bayuk Trust, and neither Bayuk nor his co-trustee Paul Morabito are domiciles of
Nevada. NRS 166.015(2). As established in the Judgment, Bayuk and Paul Morabito moved to

California in September 2010.
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5. Contrary to assertions by Bayuk, there was no credible evidence presented that the
Bayuk Trust owns a burial plot in Nevada: but, even if such fact were established. the ownership
of a burial plot in Nevada is insuflicient o invoke the protections of NRS Chapter 166.

. Lven if the claims assered against the Bayuk Trust were subject Lo the time periods
under NRS 166,170, they were timely because the fraudulent iransfer ¢laim was brought {13 within
v vears after the fraudulent translers were made and (2) also within six months of discovery of,
or when Plainuft reasonably should have discovered, the existence of the purported spendthritt
trusl.  The subject fraudulent transfers occurred in September 2010 and thereafier. The Bayuk
Trust executed a twolling agreement on November 34, 2011 1o wll any statute of limitations
applicable to the fraudulent transler of property to the Bayuk Trust, which tolling agreemeant tolled
the time period 1o file until June 1%, 2013 and the Complaint was liled in December 2013, The
purported nature of the Bayuk Trust as a spendthrift trusi subject to NRS 166,170 was not disclosed
until the Claim of Exemption. Moreover, any defenses based on NRE 166,170 have been waived
as a result of the failure of Bayuk or the Bavuk Trust to raise such defenses prior (o the Claim of
Exemption.

Based upon review of the entire lile, the loregoing. and good cause appearing:

IT IS HEREBY ORDLERED that the June 28, 2019 Claim of Excmption filed by Edward
Bayuk, individually and as trustee of the Edward William Bayuk Living T'rust is DENIED.

IT1S HCREBY FURTHER ORDERED that the July 3, 2019 Third Party Claim to Property
Levied Upon [NRS 31.070] filed by the Bayuk Trust is DENIED,

Dated this_ 9 day of August, 2015

Gonmb j %ﬁj‘n\’lﬁﬂkﬁ_

DISTRICT JUDGE
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

CASE NO_ V1302663

I certify thar I an1 an employee of the SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT of the
STATE OF NEVADA, COUNTY OF WASHOL:; that on the ﬂ_ day of August, 2019, [ filed
the ORDER DENYING CLATM OF EXEMPTION AND THIRD PARTY CLAIM with the
Clerk of the Court.

1 further certify that [ transmitted a truc and correct copy of the foregoing document by
the method(s) noted below:
__ Personal delivery to the following: {NONE]

Electconically filed with the Clerk of the Court, using the eFlex system which
conjtitutes effective service for all eFiled documents pursuant to the eFile User Agreement.

ERIKA TURNLR, L5Q. for WILLIAM A, LEONARD, JR, TRSITLL OF LSTATL OF
FAUL A. MORABITO
MICAH ECHOLS, ESQ. for EDWARD WILLIAM BAYUK LIVING TRUST et al

JEFFEEY HARTMAN, ESQ. lor EDWARD WILLIAM BAYUK LIVING TRUST,
EDWARID BAYUK

MARK WEISENMILLER, LS. for WILLIAM A, LLONARD, IR, TRSTUL G LSTATE
OF PAUL A. MORABITO

FRANK GILMORE. E&). for SNOWSIIGE PETROLEUM, INC., SALVATORLE R
MOBRABITCG, SUPERPUMPER, [NC,

MICHAEL LEHNERS, ESQ, [or SALVATORE R, MORABITO

TERESA PILATOWICA, ERSG. for WILLIAM A, LEONARD, IR, TRSTEE OF ESTATE
OF PALIL A. MORABITO

GABRIELLL. HAMM, ES(Q). Jor WILLIAM A, LEONARD, JR, TRSTEE OF ESTATE OF
FATIL A MORABITO

Transmitied document to the Secend Judicial District Court mailing system in a
sealed envelope for postage and mailing by Washoe County using the United States Postal
Service inm Reno, Nevada: [NONE|

Placed a true copy in a sealed envelope for service via:
EenorCarson Messenger Service — [NONE]
Federal Express or other overnight delivery service [NONE]

PATED this Q day ol August, 2019
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Las Vegas, NV 89119

725-777-3000

GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP
GERALD M. GORDON
Nevada Bar No. 229

E-mail: ggordon@gtg.legal
ERIKA PIKE TURNER
Nevada Bar No. 6454

E-mail: eturner@gtg.legal
TERESA M. PILATOWICZ
Nevada Bar No. 9605

E-mail: tpilatowicz@gtg.legal
GABRIELLE A. HAMM
Nevada Bar No. 11588
E-mail: ghamm@gtg.legal
650 White Drive, Ste. 100

Las Vegas, Nevada 89119
Telephone 725-777-3000
Counsel to Plaintiff

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF
THE STATE OF NEVADA, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

WILLIAM A. LEONARD, Trustee for the
Bankruptcy Estate of Paul Anthony
Morabito,

Plaintiff,
VS.

SUPERPUMPER, INC., an Arizona
corporation; EDWARD BAYUK,
individually and as Trustee of the EDWARD
WILLIAM BAYUK LIVING TRUST;
SALVATORE MORABITO, and individual;
and SNOWSHOE PETROLEUM, INC., a
New York corporation,

Defendants.

NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER

FILED
Electronically
CV13-02663

2019-08-09 04:32:12 PN
Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Court

Transaction # 7422199

CASE NO.: CV13-02663
DEPT.NO.: 4

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that an Order Denying Claim of Exemption and Third Party

Claim, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit 1, was entered in this matter on the 9" day

of August, 2019.
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GARMAN TURNER GORDON
650 White Drive, Ste. 100
Las Vegas, NV 89119
725-777-3000

AFFIRMATION
Pursuant to NRS 239B.030

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding document does not contain the

social security number of any person.

Dated this 9th day of August, 2019.

GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP

By: /s/ Erika Pike Turner
GERALD M. GORDON
Nevada Bar No. 229
ERIKA PIKE TURNER
Nevada Bar No. 6454
TERESA M. PILATOWICZ
Nevada Bar No. 9605
GABRIELLE A. HAMM
Nevada Bar No. 11588
650 White Drive, Ste. 100
Las Vegas, Nevada 89119
Telephone 725-777-3000
Counsel to Plaintiff
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GARMAN TURNER GORDON
650 White Drive, Ste. 100
Las Vegas, NV 89119
725-777-3000

INDEX OF EXHIBITS

Exhibit | Description

Pages!

1 Order Denying Claim of Exemption and Third Party Claim

! Exhibit pagination includes exhibit slip sheets.
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GARMAN TURNER GORDON
650 White Drive, Ste. 100
Las Vegas, NV 89119
725-777-3000

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
I certify that | am an employee of GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP, and that on this
date, pursuant to NRCP 5(b), | am serving a true and correct copy of the foregoing NOTICE OF
ORDER_ on the parties as set forth below:

Placing an original or true copy thereof in a sealed envelope placed for collection and
mailing in the United States Mail, Reno, Nevada, postage prepaid, following
ordinary business practices addressed as follows:

Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested
Via Facsimile (Fax)
Via E-Mail

Placing an original or true copy thereof in a sealed envelope and causing the same
to be personally Hand Delivered

Federal Express (or other overnight delivery)

X By using the Court’s CM/ECF Electronic Notification System addressed to:

Michael Lehners, Esq.
E-mail: mcl3303@aol.com

Jeffrey L. Hartman, Esg.
E-mail: jlh@bankruptcyreno.com

Dated this 9th day of August, 2019.

/sl

An Employee of
GARMAN TURNER
GORDON LLP
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FILED

Electronically

CV13-02663

2019-08-09 01:10:28 PM
2540 Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Court

Transaction # 7421482

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

WILLIAM A, LEONARD, Trustce for the | CASE NO.: CV13-02663
Bankruptey Estate of Paul Anthony i
Muorabiio, DEPT.NO.: 4

Plaintift.
Vs,

SLPERPUMPER, INC., an Arizona
corporation; EDWARD BAYLK,
individually and as Trustee of the EDWARD
WILLIAM BAYUK LIVING TRUST:
SALVATORE MORARITO, and individual:
and SNOWSIIOE PETROLEUM. INC.. a
New York corporation,

__Detendanis.

ORDER DENYING CLAIM OF EXEMPTION AND THIRD PARTY CLAIM

Betore the Court is the Notice of Claim of Exemption from Execution (the "Claim of |
Exemption™) filed on Junc 28, 2019 by Edward Bavuk (“Bayuk™), individually and as trustce of
the Edward William Dayuk Living Trust {the “Bayuk Trust™), and the Third Parey Claim to

Property Levied Upon [NRS 31,0701 (the *Third Party Claim™) filed on July 3, 2019 by the Bayuk

Trust. The Claim of Exemption and Third Party Claim are supported by the Declaraion of Edward

Buyvak Claiming Exemption from Execution (the “Bayuk Declaration™). filed on July 2, 2019

Flaintiff s Objection to (1) Declaration of Ectward Bayuk Claiming Exemption From Execution
aned (2) Third Party Claim to Properry Levied Upon, and Request for Hearing Pursuant to NRS
21012 and 31.07063) (the ~Objection™) was filed on July 11. 2009, and Bavuk and the Bavuk
Trust’s Reply to Objection to Claim of Exemption and Third Party Claim to Property Levied Upon

{the “Reply”) was filed on July 17, 2019,
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The Court held a hearing on the Claim of Exemption and Third Party Claim on July 22,
2019. Bayuk and the Bayuk Trust appeared by and through counsel, Michael Lehners and Jeffrey
L. Hartman. Plaintiff appeared by and through counsel, Erika Pike Turner, Gerald M. Gordon,
and Teresa Pilatowicz of the law firm of Garman Turner Gordon LLP.

The Court has reviewed and considered the arguments made in the Claim of Exemption
and the Third Party Claim, the Objection, and the Reply, the Bayuk Declaration, the exhibits to all
of the foregoing, the papers and pleadings on file with the Court in this action, the testimony and
exhibits admitted during the trial, the Court’s Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Judgment,
entered on March 29, 2019 (the “Judgment”), and the arguments of counsel made at the hearing.
The Court, persuaded by the argument and authorities in Plaintiff’s Objection and the arguments
of Plaintiff’s counsel at the hearing, along with the pleadings and papers on file, the trial record,
and the findings and conclusions set forth in the Judgment, finds as follows:

1. The court has subject matter jurisdiction over the claims asserted against Bayuk, as
trustee of the Bayuk Trust.

2. Bayuk has transferred all of his personal assets to the Bayuk Trust since the Bayuk
Trust was established in 1998. As set forth in the Judgment, the Bayuk Trust received fraudulently
transferred property which was established by clear and convincing evidence.

3. The purported nature of the Bayuk Trust as a Nevada spendthrift trust was not
disclosed prior to the Claim of Exemption. In response to discovery requests, in deposition, in
subject deeds, and at trial prior to the Judgment, Bayuk and the Bayuk Trust produced
contradictory evidence regarding the date and the purpose of the Bayuk Trust. With the Claim of
Exemption, the Bayuk Trust clarifies that that there is, and has been, only one trust with the name
“the Edward William Bayuk Living Trust” and that is the Bayuk Trust.

4, The Bayuk Trust does not meet the requirements for enforcement as a Nevada
spendthrift trust under NRS 166.015 because Bayuk is the settlor and beneficiary during his
lifetime of the Bayuk Trust, and neither Bayuk nor his co-trustee Paul Morabito are domiciles of
Nevada. NRS 166.015(2). As established in the Judgment, Bayuk and Paul Morabito moved to

California in September 2010.

9367




Tk

Ly

5. Contrary to assertions by Bayuk, there was no credible evidence presented that the
Bayuk Trust owns a burial plot in Nevada: but, even if such fact were established. the ownership
of a burial plot in Nevada is insuflicient o invoke the protections of NRS Chapter 166.

. Lven if the claims assered against the Bayuk Trust were subject Lo the time periods
under NRS 166,170, they were timely because the fraudulent iransfer ¢laim was brought {13 within
v vears after the fraudulent translers were made and (2) also within six months of discovery of,
or when Plainuft reasonably should have discovered, the existence of the purported spendthritt
trusl.  The subject fraudulent transfers occurred in September 2010 and thereafier. The Bayuk
Trust executed a twolling agreement on November 34, 2011 1o wll any statute of limitations
applicable to the fraudulent transler of property to the Bayuk Trust, which tolling agreemeant tolled
the time period 1o file until June 1%, 2013 and the Complaint was liled in December 2013, The
purported nature of the Bayuk Trust as a spendthrift trusi subject to NRS 166,170 was not disclosed
until the Claim of Exemption. Moreover, any defenses based on NRE 166,170 have been waived
as a result of the failure of Bayuk or the Bavuk Trust to raise such defenses prior (o the Claim of
Exemption.

Based upon review of the entire lile, the loregoing. and good cause appearing:

IT IS HEREBY ORDLERED that the June 28, 2019 Claim of Excmption filed by Edward
Bayuk, individually and as trustee of the Edward William Bayuk Living T'rust is DENIED.

IT1S HCREBY FURTHER ORDERED that the July 3, 2019 Third Party Claim to Property
Levied Upon [NRS 31.070] filed by the Bayuk Trust is DENIED,

Dated this_ 9 day of August, 2015

Gonmb j %ﬁj‘n\’lﬁﬂkﬁ_

DISTRICT JUDGE
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

CASE NO_ V1302663

I certify thar I an1 an employee of the SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT of the
STATE OF NEVADA, COUNTY OF WASHOL:; that on the ﬂ_ day of August, 2019, [ filed
the ORDER DENYING CLATM OF EXEMPTION AND THIRD PARTY CLAIM with the
Clerk of the Court.

1 further certify that [ transmitted a truc and correct copy of the foregoing document by
the method(s) noted below:
__ Personal delivery to the following: {NONE]

Electconically filed with the Clerk of the Court, using the eFlex system which
conjtitutes effective service for all eFiled documents pursuant to the eFile User Agreement.

ERIKA TURNLR, L5Q. for WILLIAM A, LEONARD, JR, TRSITLL OF LSTATL OF
FAUL A. MORABITO
MICAH ECHOLS, ESQ. for EDWARD WILLIAM BAYUK LIVING TRUST et al

JEFFEEY HARTMAN, ESQ. lor EDWARD WILLIAM BAYUK LIVING TRUST,
EDWARID BAYUK

MARK WEISENMILLER, LS. for WILLIAM A, LLONARD, IR, TRSTUL G LSTATE
OF PAUL A. MORABITO

FRANK GILMORE. E&). for SNOWSIIGE PETROLEUM, INC., SALVATORLE R
MOBRABITCG, SUPERPUMPER, [NC,

MICHAEL LEHNERS, ESQ, [or SALVATORE R, MORABITO

TERESA PILATOWICA, ERSG. for WILLIAM A, LEONARD, IR, TRSTEE OF ESTATE
OF PALIL A. MORABITO

GABRIELLL. HAMM, ES(Q). Jor WILLIAM A, LEONARD, JR, TRSTEE OF ESTATE OF
FATIL A MORABITO

Transmitied document to the Secend Judicial District Court mailing system in a
sealed envelope for postage and mailing by Washoe County using the United States Postal
Service inm Reno, Nevada: [NONE|

Placed a true copy in a sealed envelope for service via:
EenorCarson Messenger Service — [NONE]
Federal Express or other overnight delivery service [NONE]

PATED this Q day ol August, 2019
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Las Vegas, NV 89119

725-777-3000

GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP
GERALD M. GORDON
Nevada Bar No. 229

E-mail: ggordon@gtg.legal
ERIKA PIKE TURNER
Nevada Bar No. 6454

E-mail: eturner@gtg.legal
TERESA M. PILATOWICZ
Nevada Bar No. 9605

E-mail: tpilatowicz@gtg.legal
GABRIELLE A. HAMM
Nevada Bar No. 11588
E-mail: ghamm@gtg.legal
650 White Drive, Ste. 100

Las Vegas, Nevada 89119
Telephone 725-777-3000
Counsel to Plaintiff

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF
THE STATE OF NEVADA, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

WILLIAM A. LEONARD, Trustee for the
Bankruptcy Estate of Paul Anthony
Morabito,

Plaintiff,
VS.

SUPERPUMPER, INC., an Arizona
corporation; EDWARD BAYUK,
individually and as Trustee of the EDWARD
WILLIAM BAYUK LIVING TRUST;
SALVATORE MORABITO, and individual;
and SNOWSHOE PETROLEUM, INC., a
New York corporation,

Defendants.

NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER

FILED
Electronically
CV13-02663

2019-08-12 09:33:22 AN
Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Court

Transaction # 7422767

CASE NO.: CV13-02663
DEPT.NO.: 4

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that an Order Denying Claim of Exemption, a copy of which is

attached hereto as Exhibit 1, was entered in this matter on the 2nd day of August, 2019.
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GARMAN TURNER GORDON
650 White Drive, Ste. 100
Las Vegas, NV 89119
725-777-3000

Pursuant to NRS 239B.030

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding document does not contain the

social security number of any person.

Dated this 12th day of August, 2019.

GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP

By: /s/ Teresa M. Pilatowicz, Esq.
GERALD M. GORDON
Nevada Bar No. 229
ERIKA PIKE TURNER
Nevada Bar No. 6454
TERESA M. PILATOWICZ
Nevada Bar No. 9605
GABRIELLE A. HAMM
Nevada Bar No. 11588

650 White Drive, Ste. 100
Las Vegas, Nevada 89119
Telephone 725-777-3000
Counsel to Plaintiff
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GARMAN TURNER GORDON
650 White Drive, Ste. 100
Las Vegas, NV 89119
725-777-3000

INDEX OF EXHIBITS

Exhibit

Description

Pages!

1

Order Denying Claim of Exemption

1 Exhibit pagination includes exhibit slip sheets.
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GARMAN TURNER GORDON
650 White Drive, Ste. 100
Las Vegas, NV 89119
725-777-3000

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
I certify that | am an employee of GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP, and that on this
date, pursuant to NRCP 5(b), | am serving a true and correct copy of the foregoing NOTICE OF
ENTRY OF ORDER_ on the parties as set forth below:

Placing an original or true copy thereof in a sealed envelope placed for collection and
mailing in the United States Mail, Reno, Nevada, postage prepaid, following
ordinary business practices addressed as follows:

Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested
Via Facsimile (Fax)
Via E-Mail

Placing an original or true copy thereof in a sealed envelope and causing the same
to be personally Hand Delivered

Federal Express (or other overnight delivery)

X _ By using the Court’s CM/ECF Electronic Notification System addressed to:

Michael Lehners, Esq.
E-mail: mcl3303@aol.com

Jeffrey L. Hartman, Esq.
E-mail: jIn@bankruptcyreno.com

Dated this 12th day of August, 2019.

/s/ Dekova Huckaby
An Employee of
GARMAN TURNER
GORDON LLP
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FILED
Electronically |
CV13-02663
2840 2019-08-02 03:55:49 P
Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Court | |
Transaction # 7410004‘

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF
THE STATE OF NE¥ADA, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE
WIL.LIAM A, LEONARD, Trustee for the CASE NO.: CVI3-02663

HBankruptcy Estate of Paul Anthony
Morabito, DEPT. NO: 4

Plaintift,
Vs,

SUPERPUMPER, INC., an Arizona
corporation; FDWARD BAYUK,
individually and as Frusice of the EDWARD
WILLTAM BAYUK LIVING TRUST:
SALVATORE MORABITO, and individual;
and SNOWSTIOE PETROLEUM, INC_a
New York corporation.

Delendants.

ORDER NENYING CLAIM OF EXEMPTION

Before the Court is the Nevice of Claim of Exemption from Fxecution (the *“Claim of

Exemption™) filed on July 2, 20019 by Defendant Salvatore Morabito (*Marabito™). The Claim of i
Fxemption is supported by the Declaration of Sabvatare Morabito Claiming Exemption from
Fxecution { the “Morabito Deglaration™), also filed on July 2, 2019, Plaintiff s Objection o Notice
wf Cloim of Exemption from Execution Field by Salvatore Morabito and Request for Hearing (Lhe
“Objection™) was filed on July 16, 2019, and Morahito s Reply to Plaintiff's Obfection to Notice
of Claim of Exemption from Execation (the “Reply™} was filed on July 18, 2019

The Court held a hearing on the Claim of Exemption on July 22, 2019, Morabito appeared
by and through counsel, Michael [.ehners, Plaintiff appeared by and through counsel, Erika Pike

Tumer, Gerald M. Gordon and Teresa Pilatowicz of the law firm of Garman Tamer Gordon TILP.
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The Court has reviewed and considered the arguments made in the Claim of Cxemption,
the Objection, and the Reply, the papers and pleadings on file with the Court in (s action, the
testimony and exhibits admitted during the Irial, the Court's Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law,
and fudpment, entered on March 29, 2019 (the “Judgnient™), and the arguments of counse]l made
at the hearing. The Court is persuaded by the argument and authorities in Plaintiff™s Objection and
the arguments of Plaintifl"s counsel at the hearing, along with the pleadings and papers on file, the
trial reeord, and the findings and conclusions sct forth in the Judpment. As such, the Court finds
that Sam Morabilo failed to meet his burden to show that there are assets in Nevada subject to
gxemption from execution.

Based on the forepoing, and good cause appearing:

Il [S HEREBY ORDERED that the Claim of Exemption filed by Salvatore Morabito is
denied.

Dated this =0, day of August. 2019,

|Ir“ M _(\—:I"' - lll

. : 5
HSTRICT JJDGE
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